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Financial Highlights
MBRE

Results 5

For the year ended 31 December

HET-A=+-HLEE
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

k-2 -3 “2-)\F “5tF ZERE “3-1fF

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

AEWTT ARETT ARETT ARETTL ARETTL

Operating income EEMA 838,127 1,067,585 901,041 875,197 817,970

Operating profi EEAE 171,590 140975 86,3324 103,192 76,2164

Profit before taxation fEeE 169,538 137,473 86,5614 124,2804 83,0924

Net profit for the year FHE 169,269 137,336 86,425 122,8884 82,478

Attributable to: RER:

Equity shareholders of AYNGIliEES

the Company 169,269 137,336 86,425 122,8884 82,478

Non-controlling interests PERE = = = = =

Basic earnings per share SRELEN RMBARMO0473T RMBAXMO03B4T RMBAKM0.2387* RMBAKHO0.3287* RMBAXEO021474

- Note: The assessment and deduction of input VAT is applicable to Baishui Andre Juice Co., Ltd. and Yongji Andre

Juice Co., Ltd., subsidiaries of the Group since January 2014 and December 2014, respectively. For the purchases
of agricultural raw materials which applied the assessment and deduction of input VAT as approved by the local tax
authorities, when the agricultural products are purchased, the value of the raw materials recorded in the accounts are
inclusive of tax. When the assessed input VAT deduction amount is approved by the tax authorities and before 1 January
2018, the Group calculated and allocated the inventory cost based on raw material costs for which the approved input
VAT amount was excluded. This accounting treatment would have an impact on the operating cost for the relevant
years and inventory at the end of the relevant reporting period. From 1 January 2018 onwards, in order to simplify the
cost calculation, the Group directly deducted the approved deductible input VAT amount from the operating costs for
the current period.

. st : AEBEZMAMB AR AKE ﬁﬁ%h#ﬁ@lﬂﬂ%%?%ﬂ%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ@ DRIE-Z—ME—AM_F—
E¢+:H@ﬁ%§%?EM£EM%VEE% AR E S BURS M BL fE BR 1O AR 0 51T R e R T B4R
me - EBARERR @ ZRSHSBEREME AREE - BUSHEHEE L EEBRRIZE W%ﬁﬁ&&ff NEF
*H*EZW'%ﬁ@im%%ﬁm%m%@%%ﬁ&%Mﬂ&ﬁ&ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬂ% CE_E-NF-A—HZ
&ﬁﬁ%m&¢+” AN B TR R AR RS SRR - AR &ﬁm%%%ﬁﬁmﬁ@

ERETTRBURBR T -—NEFE"T—+FXEREERAE -

H'

Profit Attributable to Equity Shareholders of the Company
# AR RF
(AE#HFT)
(RMB’000)
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Financial Highlights
MBRE

Assets and Liabilities TERAR

As at 31 December

R+=BR=+-H
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
- 2 182 —T-N\f “T-tf Ik “E-n%
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT AREFT AREFT ARETT ARETT
Total assets EEGE 2,039,682 1,921,459 1,981,8034 2,156,3874 2,242,250
Total liabilities RiEEME 127,209 142,455 304,335 505,159 655,658
Total equity attributable to ARAfEE
equity shareholders of Einikm
the Company 1,912,473 1,779,004 1,677,468 1,651,228 1,586,5024
Non-controlling interests DHRE - - - - -

Total Equity Attributable to Equity Shareholders of the Company
FATIRRHEEGER

(AR¥FT)
(RMB’000)
1,950,000 — = = = = = = = = = = = — = = = — — — — — — -

1,800,000F — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — _
1,650,000 — — — — — — — — — — — o __ 21 L
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A Adjusted. Details please see explanation note on page 4.
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Chairman’s Statement

EEREREE

| am pleased to submit to the shareholders of the Company
(the “Shareholders”) the annual report of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively known as the “Group”) for the financial
year ended 31 December 2019.

Annual Results and Review

The Group recorded a turnover of approximately RMB838,127,000
for the year ended 31 December 2019 as compared to
approximately RMB1,067,585,000 last year, representing a
decrease of approximately 21%. The gross profit margin was
approximately 32% for the year ended 31 December 2019 while the
gross profit margin for the previous year was approximately 27%.
The profit attributable to equity Shareholders was approximately
RMB169,269,000 for the year under review, representing an
increase of approximately RMB31,933,000 over the previous year
of approximately RMB137,336,000. Basic earnings per share was
approximately RMB0.473.

The significant decrease in turnover of the Group was mainly
attributable to decrease in sales volume under the impact of the
Sino-US trade friction and the significant advance purchases by
customers in US for the avoidance of tariff in 2018. Although the
selling price increased slightly in 2019, the effect of decrease in
sales volume overrode, causing a drop of turnover of the Group
compared with last year.

Under the trend of depreciation of Renminbi against US Dollar
and the gradual decrease in gearing ratio of the Group, the
Group has continued to enhance its cooperation with renowned
domestic and international financial institutions. This reduced the
Group’s exchange rate risk and can better facilitate its business
development. In relation to expanding the market sales, the Group
continued to maintain close and stable business relationships with
certain renowned beverage manufacturers in China and overseas
and has further developed quality customers with broadened
sales channels. Both domestic sales and sales to overseas
customers in Asia, Europe, Oceania and South America recorded

6  Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd. & LFZEFRARHERATE
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increase compared with last year. In respect of research and
development, the Company had developed six types of 100%
compound fruit (vegetable) juice based on cloudy apple juice;
completed the research on key technologies for industrialization
and initial completion of transformation on color stability of clear
apple juice concentrate and reduce the content of insoluble
matters; continued key technology research on energy saving
and emission reduction in the processing of juice concentrate;
participated in the formulation of one industry standard; filed two
enterprise standards; and won the first prize of scientific research
of Shennong China Agricultural Science and Technology Award
in 2018-2019 by the Company’s project, “Key Technologies for
Aseptic Storage, Filling and Quality Improvement of Apple Juice
Concentrate”.

Analysis of the Industry and Our Market Share

In 2019, the total volume of China’s apple juice concentrate
exports was approximately 385,600 tonnes, representing a
decrease of 31% as compared to approximately 558,200 tonnes
in 2018. Although the Chinese apple juice concentrate industry
has only begun mass production since the late 90’s of the last
century, the industry grew at a tremendous rate and has claimed
a global market share of over 50% within just a decade, owing
to the abundant apple supplies in China. Behind China, Europe
is the second main production site of apple juice concentrate in
the world. Hence, the export volume and price of China’s apple
juice concentrate is affected not only by the global economy,
but also the production and sales of apple juice concentrate in
Europe. Starting from 2014, due to the increasing competition of
producers of apple juice concentrate in Europe and low growth
pace of the global economy, the international market price of apple
juice concentrate started to decrease until 2017. Since 2018,
the production of apple juice concentrate has decreased due to
the reduction of apple supply in China. Changes in the demand
and supply relationship in the international market of apple juice
concentrate caused the recovery of the international market price
of apple juice concentrate. In 2019, under both the impact of the
Sino-US trade friction and the significant advance purchases by
customers in US for the avoidance of tariff in 2018, the volume of
apple juice concentrate exported to the US dropped significantly,
resulting in the decrease in the total export volume of apple juice
concentrate in China.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement

EEREREE

Since apple juice itself is nutritious, increasing pursuit for green
and healthy food of the general public is bound to bring more
room for development for the apple juice market. Currently, 80%
of the world’s apple juice consumption market is concentrated in
the developed countries with solid demands and steady growths.
In these major consumer countries, we already have relatively fixed
market shares and customer base. Meanwhile, due to the dense
population and rising public awareness on dietary nutrition, natural
apple juice will undoubtedly be one of the best options for people
in the developing countries. This gradually maturing consumer
market will surely become a take-off area for future apple juice
consumption. In the long run, healthy and pure natural juice will
become more and more popular.

Being a leader in China’s apple juice concentrate industry and
through our proactive and visionary leadership, we will capitalize
on the capital and administrative expertise of the Company, to
gradually expand its domestic market share and stabilize its leading
export position in the industry, so as to expedite the healthy
development of the Company.

Prospects and Outlook

As a mild raw material, apple juice concentrate can be mixed with
different fruit and vegetable juice, to fulfill the market requirements
like low cost and good taste. Therefore the demand of apple juice
concentrate is solid and steady.

With the gradual implementation of specific measures favourable
to the agricultural industry under the PRC government’s
macroeconomic policies as well as the gradual improvement of
various relevant PRC laws and regulations, the Group will enjoy
better development and financing opportunities. Aiming at enlarging
its business scale, the Group will strive to further extend its market
coverage, enhance productivity, diversify products, expand sales,
disperse markets and broaden financing channels, etc.
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In terms of juice production capacity, volatility in the industry
will force some of the small and medium domestic enterprises
out of the market. Moderate reshuffling in the industry will
favour industry consolidation and improve industry competition
environment. The Group aims to further increase its annual juice
concentrate production capacity and to strengthen its leading
position in the industry, to rationally adjust the Group’s existing
production capacities according to changes in the sources of
raw materials and to extend the research on different types of
juice concentrate and production capacity. On research and
development, in 2020, the Group will continue to exploit fruit
and vegetable beverage; conduct research on key technologies of
energy saving and emission reduction in the process of processing
on distinguishing fruits grown in the North and fruit juice; and
optimize juice processing technique.

At present, the Group has a sound financial base. The Group
is also well positioned to take advantage of the State’s policy
on development of new villages and agriculture with a view
to developing rural villages, enriching farmers and expanding
domestic demands. The board (the “Board”) of directors of the
Company (“Directors”) and | have full confidence in the Group’s
future development. Our employees will continue to support the
Group and to contribute to the Group’s continuous and steady
development.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement

EEREREE

Dividend

The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend for
the financial year 2019.

Appreciation

During the reporting period, turnover decreased due to the
reduction in apple supply in China and the impact of the Sino-
US trade dispute. Despite that, as one of the major apple juice
concentrate producing countries which has significant influence
and strong negotiation power in the international market, the
selling price of apple juice concentrate in China still rose slightly.
With the simultaneous efforts in enlarging the production and
operation control and developing customers outside the United
States, both the net profit and net profit margin of the Company
recorded significant increase. The Directors strongly believe that
the Company will have a brighter prospect in 2020, given that
some small and medium domestic enterprises are expected to exit
from market competition in the face of the volatility in the industry
and the international market is gradually recovering. On behalf of
the Board, | would like to express my sincere gratitude to all the
investors, loyal customers and suppliers for their appreciation and
unfailing support to the Group.

Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd.*
Wang An
Chairman

6 March 2020

*

For identification purpose only
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Financial Review

Results

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group’s turnover
decreased to approximately RMB838,127,000 as compared
to approximately RMB1,067,585,000 in 2018, representing a
decrease of approximately RMB229,458,000 or 21%. The Group’s
turnover was principally derived from the manufacture and sale
of apple juice concentrate, pear juice concentrate, bio-feedstuff
and related products. For the year ended 31 December 2019,
the sale of juice concentrate was approximately 94% of the total
sales of the Group (2018: approximately 98%), of which apple
juice concentrate was approximately 89% (2018: approximately
89%). The decrease in turnover was mainly due to the decrease
in sales volume under the impact of the Sino-US trade dispute
and the significant advance purchases by customers in US for the
avoidance of tariff in 2018. Although the selling price increased
slightly in 2019, the effect of decrease in sales volume overrode,
causing the drop of turnover of the Group compared with last year.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group’s gross profit
was approximately RMB264,285,000 and the gross profit margin
was approximately 32%. For the corresponding period in 2018, the
gross profit was approximately RMB290,991,000 and gross profit
margin was approximately 27%. The decrease in gross profit was
mainly attributable to the decrease in sales volume. The increase
in gross profit margin was mainly caused by the rise in selling
price and decrease in cost of raw apples.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group’s net profit
(i.e. the profit for the year attributable to equity shareholders
of the Company) increased to approximately RMB169,269,000
as compared to approximately RMB137,336,000 for the
corresponding period in 2018, representing an increase of
approximately RMB31,933,000 or 23%. The increase in net profit
was mainly attributable to the increase in gross profit margin and
decrease in distribution costs and administrative expenses.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWR DM

Distribution Costs and Administrative Expenses

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group incurred
distribution costs of approximately RMB44,781,000, as compared
to approximately RMB91,212,000 in 2018, representing a decrease
of approximately RMB46,431,000 or 51%. The Group’s distribution
costs mainly included transport, import and export service charge,
export inspection and marketing expenses. Such decrease was
mainly due to the decrease in sales volume, especially sales to
America.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group incurred
administrative expenses of approximately RMB54,273,000
as compared to approximately RMB61,468,000 in 2018,
representing a decrease of approximately RMB7,195,000 or
12%. Such decrease was mostly attributable to the reduction in
apple supply in the major plants in China last year, forcing the
production of juice concentrate in the whole industry to stop in
advance. As the production resumed normal this year, the Group
recorded a decrease in production cessation fee of approximately
RMB7,540,000.

Net Finance Costs

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group recorded net
finance revenue of approximately RMB6,468,000, as compared to
approximately RMB15,638,000 for the year ended 31 December
2018, representing a decrease of approximately RMB9,170,000.
The decrease was mainly due to the decrease in exchange revenue.

Income Tax

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the production of
condensed juice and bio-feedstuff by the Company and certain of
its subsidiaries was continuously recognized as primary processing
of agricultural produce under the Corporate Income Tax Law of
the PRC and therefore was exempt from the PRC income tax.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Risks and Uncertainties

Risk of Relying on a Single Product

The Company is principally engaged in the processing, production
and sales of juice concentrate, and most of the products are sold
abroad. Although the current demand for apple juice concentrate
is growing steadily around the globe, the Company’s profit sources
are largely dependent on a single variety of apple juice concentrate,
and fluctuations in the market price of apple juice concentrate
will adversely affect the Company’s production and operations.
In order to cope with the risk of relying on a single product, the
Company plans to raise funds through the public offering of shares,
some of which will be used to develop various varieties of juice
production lines.

Risk of Undersupply of the Major Ingredient

Apple is the major ingredient of the Company’s apple juice
concentrate and its supply has a direct impact on the Company’s
production volume. As a result of transportation costs, raw fruits
are sourced close to the production plant and the production
radius characteristic of apple juice concentrate is obvious. The
Company’s production volume of apple juice concentrate is
subjected to the availability of raw apples. The supply of raw
fruits is affected by the general harvest from natural disasters
or by the growth reduction, as well as the impact of changes in
commodity apples and raw apples caused by market conditions
and natural growth conditions.

Risk of Tariff Increases in Major Importing Countries

In 2019, the major importing countries of the Company’s apple
juice concentrate, such as South Africa, Canada, Australia and
New Zealand, imposed zero tariffs on apple juice concentrate
exported from China. The U.S. imposed a zero tariff on apple juice
concentrate imported from China before 24 September 2018, but
started to impose a 10% tariff on apple juice concentrate imported
from China since 24 September 2018. Then from 10 May 2019
onward, a 25% tariff was imposed on apple juice concentrate
imported from China.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWR DM

In 2019, U.S. export business accounted for 9% of revenue of
the Company, substantially all of which was from apple juice
concentrate. Increasing tariffs on apple juice concentrate in
the U.S. would reduce the price advantage of the Company’s
apple juice concentrate compared to competitors in Europe and
elsewhere. In order to cope with the risk of increasing tariffs in
major importing countries, the Company actively explored new
sales channels, with sales volume increasing in both China and
other countries in Asia, Europe and Oceania, and South America
as compared to last year.

Business Review

Stabilising Market Coverage

During 2019, by adapting to the market demand and leveraging
on its advanced production technology, superb product quality
and comprehensive customer services, the Group maintained
steady growth in markets sales. With years of continuous efforts,
the Group has expanded its sales network to major countries and
regions in the world, including the US, Japan, Europe, Oceania,
Africa, South American and Chinese domestic market. Also, the
Company has devoted in the development of new products,
small type products markets, as well as the customer base. The
Group hopes to continue to expand its market places and boost
its market share.

Expanding Domestic Sales Market

The Group continued to maintain close and stable business
cooperation relationships with certain renowned beverage
processors and manufacturers in China and has developed new
quality customers with broadened sales channels. The Group
started sales activities with the objective to maintain and increase
market share, understood the need of the market and customers in
a timely manner, analyzed precisely and responded reasonably to
every price quote, and processed the customer needs and market
information instantly to get more customer orders.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Optimisation of Customer Base

While expanding its market places and enlarging its market shares,
the Group also leveraged on the prime quality of its products to
optimise its profile of customer base continuously. The Group
also explored actively for new customers. Through exhibitions,
customers’ visits and other channels, the Group sought to
increase its exposure to new customers and get more chances for
cooperation, maintain close relationship and communication with
customers and provide optimized service to customers. Currently,
the customer base of the Group mainly comprises renowned
beverage manufacturers of the world.

Research and Development

The Group had developed six types of 100% compound fruit
(vegetable) juice based on cloudy apple juice; completed the
research on key technologies for industrialization and initial
completion of transformation on color stability of clear apple
juice concentrate and reduce the content of insoluble matters;
continued key technology research on energy saving and emission
reduction in the processing of juice concentrate; participated in the
formulation of one industry standard; filed two enterprise standards;
and won the first prize of scientific research of Shennong China
Agricultural Science and Technology Award in 2018-2019 by the
Company’s project, “Key Technologies for Aseptic Storage, Filling
and Quality Improvement of Apple Juice Concentrate”.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Land Resumption in Longkou

Yantai Longkou Andre Juice Co., Ltd.* ({84 3EQ = F| 4R
BABRAR]) (“Longkou Andre Juice”), an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a land resumption
agreement with Longkou Natural Resources and Planning Bureau*
FEEOTBEREREMIEFE D) dated 6 November 2019, pursuant to
which, Longkou Natural Resources and Planning Bureau resumed
the land use rights of four parcels of land of Longkou Andre
Juice located in the West of Tonghai Road and the South of
Langyuan Road, Longkou City, with a total resumed land area
of approximately 106,964 square meters. The compensation
payable to Longkou Andre Juice for the resumption of the land
involved was approximately RMB84,155,000. The compensation
was comprised of: (i) compensation amount of approximately
RMB45,155,000 for the land and the buildings and fixtures erected
thereon contemplated under the land resumption agreement; and
(i) compensation amount of approximately RMB39,000,000 for
the construction of the new plant and other production facilities.
Longkou Andre Juice would be relocated to the nearby Shiliang
Town, Longkou City in the first half of 2020. In view of various
factors such as the planning of the People’s Government of
Longkou City and the concentrated supply of raw fruits in the
vicinity of Longkou Andre Juice, it is expected that the transaction
will bring better development results to the Group and better
returns to the Shareholders when it is completed.

*

For identification purpose only
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Future Prospects

Enlarging market and diversifying products

Currently, the Group has a relatively stable market shares and
customer base in the world’s major consumer areas of apple
juice concentrate, including the US, Europe, Oceania, African
countries, and Japan. In addition to consolidating the existing
market shares and customer base and resuming exports to US
customers in the new year, the Company will be committed to
developing multiple emerging markets with a view to making
breakthroughs in this aspect.

Due to the satisfactory development of the Company at the present
stage, the Company plans to expand its product range with apple
juice concentrate as the foundation, while investing in new projects
with the funds raised. That included increasing the production of
niche products, such as peach juice and strawberry juice, so as
to enrich its product line, expand its production capacity and meet
the demands of various customers.

Increasing Market Development Effort and Promoting
Customer Confidence

Under the premise of maintaining the overseas sales volume, the
Company will boost the domestic sales volume by integrating its
available resources and optimizing the sales channels, in order
to increase the ratio of the domestic sales. At the same time, the
Company will combine its products, brand and services using the
current sales channels, to provide quality services and satisfy the
customers’ needs. In connection with the niche product project,
it will provide a wide range of products to become a one-stop
product supplier. With its excellent product quality, premium
services and large variety of products, it will further enhance the
confidence of and deepen the cooperation with customers.

Expanding the Financing Channels to Promote Sustainable
Development

The Company has proposed to raise funds to invest in various
projects through the initial public offering (A shares) and listing,
so as to meet the diverse demands of customers. In respect of
future financing, the Company will raise funds in a timely manner
from various means, such as placing, additional issuance, issuance
of bonds, or bank borrowings according to its actual situation
and development needs, in order to promote the sustainable
development of the Company.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWRE DN

Research and Development

On research and development, in 2020, the Group will continue
to exploit fruit and vegetable beverage; conduct research on
key technologies of energy saving and emission reduction in the
process of processing on distinguishing fruits grown in the North
and fruit juice; and conduct the optimization of juice processing
technique.

Charge of Assets

The Group has no assets charged as at 31 December 2019.

Contingent Liabilities

The Group has no contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2019.

Foreign Exchange Exposure

The operating revenue of the Group is partly denominated in US
Dollars. It is the practice of the Group to convert its operating
revenue denominated in US Dollars to Renminbi to finance its
operating expenses and capital requirements. However, the results
of operations and the financial position of the Group may be
affected by any changes in the exchange rates.

On the other hand, the conversion of Renminbi denominated
balances into foreign currencies is subject to the rules and
regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated by the PRC
government.

Capital Commitment

For the capital commitment of the Group, please refer to Note
XI.1 to the Financial Statements.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Capital Structure

The H Shares were listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of the
Stock Exchange (the “GEM”) on 22 April 2003. On 19 January
2011, the H Shares were transferred and listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange (the “Main Board”) and de-listed from
GEM. The capital of the Company comprises only ordinary shares
(comprising domestic shares (the “Domestic Shares”), domestic
non-circulating foreign shares (the “Domestic Non-Circulating
Foreign Shares”) and H Shares). Details of the share capital of
the Company are set out in Note V.20 to the Financial Statements.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group generally financed its operations and investing activities
by internally generated financial resources and bank loans. As at
31 December 2019, the Group had no outstanding bank loans.
The Directors consider that the Group has sufficient financial
resources to meet its ongoing operation requirements.

Gearing Ratio

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had cash and cash equivalents
of approximately RMB274,050,000. The Group’s gearing ratio as
at 31 December 2019 was approximately 6% (2018: approximately
7%), which was calculated by dividing the Group’s total liabilities
of approximately RMB127,209,000 (2018: RMB142,455,000) by
the Group’s total assets of approximately RMB2,039,682,000
(2018: RMB1,921,459,000).

Environmental Policies

The details of environmental, social and governance policies
and performance of the Group will be disclosed in the 2019
Environmental Social and Governance Report to be issued by the
Company in accordance with Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules.
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management
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Directors

Executive Directors

Mr. Wang An (£%), aged 57, is the chairman of the Board and
an executive Director. Mr. Wang has been a Director since 26
June 2001. Mr. Wang is a well known private entrepreneur in the
PRC. Mr. Wang has received the following awards/recognitions:
one of the top ten Outstanding Youths Entrepreneurs in Shandong
Province, the medal of “Labor Model of the Nation”, an Advanced
Individual of the United Front (5t &% Z &5 E A), an Outstanding
Contributor to the Development of Socialism with Chinese
Characteristics in Shandong Province (ILEREAEFTELEHTE
FERFEERAE), a Top Ten Outstanding and Influential Individual
in the Agricultural Industry of Shandong Province (IIEREEX%E
¥ ZRAFENTRELAY), a Star of Hope in the 30 Years’ of
Reform and Opening in Yantai (&S ERM=TF [FLZE]),
an Influential and Outstanding Private Entrepreneur in Yantai to
Commemorate the 60th Anniversary of the Establishment of the
People’s Republic of China (425 B 60T E R ESRE
1%%), a Touching Character in Yantai in the 40 Years’ of Reform
and Opening in Yantai (A& T SE RO EF [RERAEAD]),
one of the Top Ten Influential Persons of the Time Among the Top
60 Advanced Individuals in the Development of Socialism in Yantai
of Shandong Province (LR (&) & FEER N THELEADZ
HEACERE AP, and is a representative of Shandong Province to
the 10th, 11th and 12th National People’s Congress (A AKX EK). Mr.
Wang graduated from the Institute of the PRC Central Communist
Party (FHARER KIFER) in June 1994. He was the general
manager of Yangma Resort (BB SE /&) for four years before
joining the Group. Mr. Wang has the following social services
appointments: member of China Business Advisory Council
(PR IEIEESIEE), member of the 1st Session of the Council
of Yantai Charity Federation (e AEHELE—ZIEELEE).
Mr. Wang An is a director of China Pingan Investment Holdings
Limited and Shandong Andre Group Co., Ltd.* (LB ZEF|EE
BBRAT]) (“Andre Group”), which are substantial shareholders of
the Company. He joined the Company in March 1996 and has
since been involved in the concentrated apple juice production
industry. Mr. Wang is responsible for the overall management of
the Group.

*

For identification purpose only
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

Mr. Zhang Hui (55##), aged 47, is an executive Director and chief
executive officer of the Company. Mr. Zhang has been a Director
since 26 June 2001. He was the deputy general manager of
Muping Foodstuff Industrial Company Limited (B2 FRRIEAS
fR/A7]) and Yantai Muping Xinping Land Development Material
Company Limited* (HamAEFEHF I HRAZEYWEFRAR)
before joining the Group. Mr. Zhang joined the Company in
December 1998 and has been involving in the concentrated juice
production industry since then. Mr. Zhang has been supervisor of
the production department, general manager of a subsidiary of
the Company and the executive president of the Company. Mr.
Zhang has received the following awards: Outstanding Member
of the Communist Party (B tLE#8) of Muping District, The
9th Session Top Ten Outstanding Youth Entrepreneurs of Yantai
city (BNEMAEM T AEHTFLER) and the “May 1st Labor
Award” of Yantai city. In March 2007, he was appointed as a
member of the standing committee of the fruit and vegetable
processing division (REIIN L5 ) of the Chinese Institute of Food
Science and Technology. During his tenure as general manager
of Baishui Andre Juice Co., Ltd* (AKZEMETAERAA), he
was appointed as a representative of the Communist Party in
Weinan city (FHEmMENEK) and was a standing member of
the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Committee of Baishui
County. Currently, Mr. Zhang assists Mr. Wang An in the overall
management of the Group. Mr. Zhang graduated from Shandong
Agriculture University with a bachelor’s degree in economics and
management (majoring in corporate management) in July 1997.
Mr. Zhang is an engineer.

Mr. Wang Yan Hui (E%#t3%), aged 43, is an executive Director
since 27 June 2012. Mr. Wang is a postgraduate and a certified
public accountant in the PRC. Mr. Wang formerly worked as an
accountant in Yantai Yangma North Hotel (& ZESSILHTAH
JE). Mr. Wang joined the Company in February 2001 and worked
as accountant, chief accountant, deputy manager, manager in
various subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Wang is also the financial
controller of the Group and the secretary to the Board.

*

For identification purpose only
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management
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Non-executive Director

Mr. Liu Tsung-Yi (BI5RH), aged 53, is a non-executive Director.
He has been a non-executive Director of the Company since 22
June 2009. Mr. Liu is the vice president of the business integration
division of Uni-President Enterprises Corp., a company listed on
the Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation. He joined Uni-President
Enterprises Corp. in July 1996, and was subsequently appointed
as the head of its investment analysis section. In 2000, he was
transferred to President International Development Corporation,
and was responsible for its investments. He has also been the
manager of the treasury division of Uni-President Enterprises
Corp. since 2004. Currently, Mr. Liu is also the president/director/
of certain member companies of Uni-President Enterprises Corp.,
amongst which President Securities Corp. is a company listed
on the Taiwan Stock Exchange; Tait Marketing and Distribution
Co., Ltd. is a company listed on the Taipei Exchange. Mr. Liu
has over 25 years of experience in banking, corporate finance,
M&A, private equity, and business strategy. Before joining Uni-
President Enterprises Corp., he was the head of the credit and
loan unit of the Taipei branch of Cosmos Commercial Bank. Mr. Liu
obtained a bachelor of laws degree (majoring in economics) from
National Chengchi University in 1989, and a master of business
administration degree from National Taiwan University in 1991.

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Jiang Hong Qi (ZE# %), aged 58, is an independent non-
executive Director since 25 May 2016. Mr. Jiang is a member of the
Communist Party of the PRC. Mr. Jiang obtained a master degree
in economics from Hangzhou Institution of Electronic Technology in
March 1997. He is a certified public accountant in the PRC. From
March 1997 to December 2002, Mr. Jiang served as a business
manager and a senior manager of Shandong International Trust
and Investment Corporation. Mr. Jiang joined the Company in 2003
and served as the chief financial officer of the Company from May
2003 to May 2010. From May 2007 to June 2010, he served as
an executive Director and from July 2010 to June 2012 he served
as a non-executive Director. Since May 2010, he serves as the
vice president of the Creat Group Co., Ltd..
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

Mr. Li Wei &J&), aged 65, is an independent non-executive
Director since 25 May 2016. Mr. Li has approximately 15 years of
working experience in corporate management. Mr. Li graduated
from Beijing Institute for Foreign Trade in July 1980. From July
1986 to October 1989, Mr. Li served as the general manager of
the import department at China North Industries Corporation.
From October 1989 to October 1995, he served as the managing
director of Silverkey Development Ltd. From October 1995 to
October 1999, he served as the managing director of Silvercity
International Development Ltd., and also served as a director of
Raymond Industrial Ltd., a company listed on the Stock Exchange.
Since February 2002, Mr. Li has successively been a commentator
or host at several broadcasting stations and television stations
in Hong Kong, Beijing and Shenzhen. Since August 2007, he
serves as an independent non-executive director of VST Holdings
Ltd., a company listed on the Stock Exchange. In addition, since
May 2016, he serves as an independent non-executive director
of Qianhai Health Holdings Ltd., a company listed on the Stock
Exchange. Last but not least, he serves as an independent non-
executive director of Transtech Optelecom Science Holdings
Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange, since July 2017.

Mr. Li Yao (ZZE), aged 57, is an independent non-executive
Director since 26 June 2019. Mr. Li obtained an MBA degree at the
Open University of Hong Kong in June 2005. Mr. Li worked at the
chief engineer office of Committee of Construction of Nanchang
City from July 1986 to August 1988; and at the project office
of World Bank Highway Loan Project in Jiangxi Province from
September 1989 to June 1993; from August 1995 to July 20083,
Mr. Li served as the deputy general manager of the Investment
Division of Creat Group Corporation; and from September 2003
to August 2013, he served as the executive director and vice
president of Creat Tiancheng Investment Holdings Company; Mr. Li
served as the chairman of Jiangxi Jiuhua Pharmaceutical Company
Limited from October 2014 to May 2017; and he served as the
executive director of Shanghai Ruisong Investment Company
Limited since November 2009; Since March 2015, he served
as the chairman of Ningbo TCM Material Company Limited. Mr.
Li served as the supervisor of Shanghai Raas Blood Products
Company Limited since June 2007. Since June 2013, he served
as the supervisor of Shanghai Pine Power Biotech Company
Limited. Since May 2019, he served as the director of Guangdong
JingYi Metal Co., Ltd..
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management
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Supervisors

Ms. Dai Liying (2% 3), aged 55, is a staff representative Supervisor
since 16 March 2016. She is a member of the Communist Party
of the PRC. She obtained a bachelor degree from Inner Mongolia
Normal University in July 1988, majoring in pre-school education.
From July 1988 to July 1997, she served as the principal of the
Third Kindergarten of Inner Mongolia First Machinery Manufacturing
Factory. From July 1997 to June 1998, she worked at Yantai
Commercial and Trading Company Limited. She joined the
Company in July 1998, and held various positions at the Company
successively, including the deputy supervisor of administration
department, the supervisor of administration department and
the supervisor of human resources department of the Company.
From 2014 to September 2019, she serves as the assistant to
the general manager of the Company and the supervisor of the
general management department of the Company.

Mr. Wang Zhiwu (), aged 49, is a Shareholder-approved
supervisor since 25 May 2016. He is a member of the Communist
Party of the PRC with a high school qualification. From May 1990
to June 1997, he worked at Muping District Aquatic Products
Supplying and Marketing Company. He joined the Company in
July 1997. From January 2002 to February 2012, he held various
positions at the Company successively, including the deputy
supervisor of the production department of the Company, the
supervisor of production department of the Company, the deputy
general manager of a subsidiary of the Company and the vice
president of the Company. From March 2012 to March 2017, he
was the general manager of Binzhou Andre. Since April 2017, he is
the general manager of Yongji Andre Juice Co., Ltd., a subsidiary
of the Company.
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

Mr. Wang Kun (E #), aged 39, is an independent representative in
the supervisory committee of the Company since 26 June 2018.
Mr. Wang is a member of the Communist Party of the People’s
Republic of China. Mr. Wang Kun held high school diploma. Mr.
Wang Kun joined the Company in August 2000. From July 2005 to
July 2015, Mr. Wang Kun served successively as the vice director
of the production department of a subsidiary of the Company, the
director of the production department, assistant to the chairman
of the Company and then as the vice general manager of a
subsidiary of the Company. From March 2015 to March 2017,
Mr. Wang Kun served as the general manager of Baishui Andre
Juice Co., Ltd* (AKLZEFRETHARAT), a subsidiary of the
Company. Since April 2017, he has been serving as the general
manager of Liquan Yitong Juice Co., Ltd* (2 RIERBFHABBEA
7)), a subsidiary of the Company.

Senior Management

Mr. Wang An (£%), aged 57, is the chairman of the Board and
an executive Director. Please refer to his biography under the
sub- section headed “Directors”.

Mr. Zhang Hui (55##), aged 47, is an executive Director and chief
executive officer of the Company. Please refer to his biography
under the sub-section headed “Directors”.

Mr. Wang Yan Hui (£ %:3%), aged 43, is an executive Director,
financial controller and secretary to the Board. Please refer to his
biography under the sub- section headed “Directors”.

Ms. Zhao Jing (&), aged 54, is a vice president of the Company.
Ms. Zhao graduated from Shandong Worker’s University of
International Business and Economics and obtained a bachelor’s
degree in foreign business management in July 1990. She worked
in the Foreign Trade Investment Center of the Foreign Economics
and Trade Commission of Muping from January 1992 to February
1992; Canadian Naisen (Tianjin) Steel Products Co., Ltd. from
1992 to 1997; and in the Company as a vice president responsible
for sales and market promotion from 1997 to August 2003; and
Shandong Freda Biopharm Co., Ltd. from September 2003 to
December 2010. Ms. Zhao rejoined the Company in January
2011 and is currently responsible for both domestic and overseas
sales of the Group.

*

For identification purpose only
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management
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Mr. Qu Kun Sheng (H1E4), aged 51, has a bachelor’s degree
and is a senior engineer. He is a vice president and the chief
engineer of the Company. Mr. Qu joined the Company in 1997
to engage in manufacturing technologies development, quality
control and on-going supervision of production activities. He
was the winner of the Second Class Award of National Science
Advancement (BIR EHE i & — % 88), the winner of Gold Award of
National Patent (B2% & 7| #¥), the winner of the First Class Award
of China National Agricultural Technology (/2 d 3 £ 2Rl H —
£ %) and the twice winner of the Third Class Award of Science
Advancement of Shandong Province (IUFRARE LS =) |
Currently, he is responsible for the technology and research and
development of the Group.

Company Secretary

Ms. Ng Man Yee (fh&18), aged 48, is the company secretary
of the Company. Ms. Ng graduated from the Chinese University
of Hong Kong and obtained her bachelor’s degree in business
administration in 1994. She is a fellow certified public accountant
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a fellow
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and
a Chartered Accountant of the Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England and Wales. Ms. Ng has over 20 years of experience
in the field of auditing and accounting.
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Corporate Governance Report

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance practices. Continuous efforts are made to
review and enhance the Group’s internal controls and procedures in
light of changes in regulations and developments in best practices.

Corporate Governance Code

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on the
principles and code provisions (the “Code Provisions”) set out in
the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”). During the year ended 31
December 2019, the Company complied with the Code Provisions
of the CG Code, except for the following deviation:

According to Code A.1.8 of the CG Code, the Company should
arrange appropriate insurance cover in respect of legal action
against its directors. The Board believes that with the current
risk management and internal control systems and the close
supervision of the management, the Directors’ risk of being sued
or getting involved in litigation in their capacity as Directors is
relatively low. Benefits to be derived from taking out insurance
may not outweigh the cost. As such, the Company currently does
not have insurance cover for legal action against its Directors.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for formulating the policy for the corporate
governance of the Company and performing the corporate
governance duties as below:

(i) To develop and review the Group’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations;

(i) To review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

(i) To review and monitor the Group’s policies and practices
on compliance with all legal and regulatory requirements
(where applicable);

(iv) To develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to the employees of
the Group and Directors; and
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TREL®RE

(v) To review the Group’s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure requirements in the corporate governance
report.

The Board

The Company is managed by its Board, which has the responsibility
for providing leadership and control of the Company. Through the
Board, the Directors are collectively responsible for promoting
the success of the Company by directing and supervising the
Company’s affairs.

The Directors

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprised a total
of seven Directors, including three executive Directors, namely,
Mr. Wang An (chairman), Mr. Zhang Hui (chief executive officer)
and Mr. Wang Yan Hui (financial controller); one non-executive
Director, namely, Mr. Liu Tsung-Yi; and three independent non-
executive Directors, namely, Mr. Jiang Hong Qi, Mr. Li Wei, Mr. Li
Yao (appointed on 26 June 2019) and Mr. Li Tong Ning (resigned
on 26 June 2019).

Each of the Directors has entered into a service contract with
the Company for a term of three years until the conclusion of the
Company’s annual general meeting to be held in the year of 2022.
All Directors are appointed by the Shareholders at the general
meeting with formal letters of appointment setting out the key
terms and conditions relating to their appointments.

None of the Directors or Supervisors had entered into any
service contract with the Company which is not terminable by
the Company within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors possesses a wide
range of skills and experience. They serve the important function
of providing adequate monitoring and balances for safeguarding
the interests of the Shareholders and the Company as a whole.
The Board considers that they can make independent judgment
effectively and fulfill the independence guidelines set out in Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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Corporate Governance Report

The biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 20
to 23 of this annual report.

Responsibilities of the Board
The Board reviews the performance of the operating divisions
with reference to their respective agreed budgets and business
objectives on a regular basis and also exercises a number of
reserved powers which include:

- convening general meetings and reporting on their work
at such meetings;

- implementing resolutions passed at general meetings;

- formulating the Company’s business plans and investment
proposals;

- preparing the Company’s annual financial budget and final
accounts;

- formulating proposals for profit distribution and for setting
off of accumulated losses of the Company;

- formulating proposals for increase or reduction in registered
capital and the issuance of debt securities of the Company;

- formulating proposals for merger, demerger or dissolution
of the Company;

S formulating the internal management structure of the
Company;

- appointing or dismissing the chief executive officer of
the Company, appointing or dismissing the deputy
general manager, chief financial officer and other senior
management at the recommendation of the chief executive
officer of the Company and determining matters relating to
their remuneration;

- formulating the basic management system of the Company;
S formulating proposals for amendments to the articles of

association of the Company (the “Articles of Association”);
and
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- carrying out other powers conferred by general meetings.

The Board is also responsible for the integrity of financial information
and the effectiveness of the Company’s systems of internal control
and risk management processes. The Board is also responsible
for preparing the financial accounts of the Company. The day-
to-day management of the Company’s business is delegated to
the chief executive officer and the management. The functions
of the Board and the powers delegated to the chief executive
officer are reviewed periodically by the Board to ensure that they
remain appropriate.

As at 31 December 2019, the Directors are not aware of any
material uncertainties relating to events or conditions which may
cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as
a going concern. Accordingly, the Directors have prepared the
financial statements of the Company on a going-concern basis.

To ensure a balance of power and authority, the role of the
chairman is separate from that of the chief executive officer.
The chairman of the Company is Mr. Wang An. The chairman
is responsible for convening and holding general meetings and
Board meetings, tracking the progress of implementation of the
resolutions passed by the Board, signing the securities issued
by the Company and carrying out other powers conferred by
the Board. Mr. Zhang Hui is the chief executive officer of the
Company. The chief executive officer and the management are
responsible for the production, operation and management of
the Company, implementation of the resolutions passed by the
Board, implementation of annual business plans and investment
proposals, formulation of the internal management structure, the
basic management system and the specific governance of the
Company. In particular the chief executive officer is responsible
for proposing to the Board for appointment or dismissal of vice
president, chief financial officer and other senior management of
the Company, appointment or dismissal of other management
staff whose appointment and dismissal does not require approval
from the Board and carrying out other powers conferred by the
Board and the Articles of Association.

Directors’ Induction and Continuous Professional Development
Upon appointment to the Board, each newly-appointed Director
receives a comprehensive induction package covering business
operations, policy and procedures of the Company as well as the
general, statutory and regulatory obligations of being a Director
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Corporate Governance Report

to ensure that he/she is sufficiently aware of his responsibilities
under the Listing Rules and other relevant regulatory requirements.

The Directors are regularly briefed on the amendments to or
updates on the relevant laws, rules and regulations. In addition,
the Company has been encouraging the Directors and senior
executives to enrol in a wide range of professional development
courses and seminars relating to the Listing Rules, the Companies
Ordinance or act and corporate governance practices organised
by professional bodies and independent auditors so that they can
continuously update and further improve their relevant knowledge
and skills.

From time to time, Directors are provided with written materials to
develop and refresh their professional skills; the company secretary
also organises and arranges seminars on the latest development
of applicable laws, rules and regulations for the Directors to assist
them in performing their duties. During the year under review, the
company secretary of the Company, Ms. Ng Man Yee Karen, has
completed over 15 hours professional training.

According to the records maintained by the Company, the
Directors received the following training with an emphasis on the
roles, functions and duties of a director of a listed company in
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Board Meetings

The chairman is responsible for the leadership of the Board,
ensuring the effectiveness of the Board in all aspects of its role,
setting agenda for Board meetings and taking into account any
matters proposed by other Directors for inclusion in the agenda.
Agenda and related Board papers are circulated at least 7 days
before the time of a Board or committee meeting where possible.
The chairman is also responsible for making sure all Directors
are properly briefed on issues arising at Board meetings. The
chairman also ensures that the Directors receive accurate, timely
and clear information. Directors are encouraged to update their
skills, knowledge and familiarity with the Company through their
initial induction, ongoing participation at Board and committee
meetings, and through meeting key people at head office and in
the divisions.

All Directors have access to the services of the company secretary
who regularly updates the Board on governance and regulatory
matters. Any Director, who wishes to do so in the furtherance
of his or her duties, may seek independent professional advice
through the chairman at the Company’s expense. The availability
of professional advice extends to the Audit and Review Committee,
Remuneration and Review Committee and other committees.

Minutes of Board meetings are taken by the company secretary
or the secretary of the Board and, together with any supporting
Board papers, are available to all Board members. Board meetings
are structured to encourage open and frank discussions to ensure
the non-executive Directors provide effective enquiries to each
executive Director. When necessary, the independent non-
executive Directors meet privately to discuss matters which are
relevant to their specific responsibilities.
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In furtherance of good corporate governance, the Board has
established three committees: Audit and Review Committee,
Nomination Committee and Remuneration and Review Committee.
All committees have its terms of reference which fulfill the principles
set out in the CG Code. The secretary of the Board takes minutes
of the meetings of these committees and the work of these
committees is reported to the Board.

The Board held 4 meetings during 2019. The chief financial officer
of the Company also attended all of the Board meetings to advise
on corporate governance, risk management, statutory compliance,
mergers and acquisitions and accounting and financial matters. The
attendance (other than attending by authorised representatives)
of individual Directors at the Board meetings, the meetings of
major committees and the general meetings in 2019 is set out in
the table below:

Board Meeting

Date (DD/MM/YY) Chair person

B¥ (BB ¥) x&§ WA ZH  WYH
22/03/2019 WA v v v
26/06/2019 WA v v v
22/08/2019 WA v v/ v
06/11/2019 WA v v/ v
Annual General Meeting

Date (DD/MM/YY) Chair person

BY (BB ®) 8§ WA ZH  WYH
26/06/2019 WA v v v

Audit and Review Committee Meeting

Date (DD/MM/YY) Chair person

A% (BB %) x&
19/03/2019 JHQ
22/05/2019 JHQ
21/08/2019 JHQ
12/11/2019 JHQ

TRELRE

RERRENERER  BFEEEKIU=
ENMEZE® - EHZEE  REZREE
EFMEkEZZES® - 8RB EHETE
CEEATAMBRANBEDE -EF
E$MEEL¢K§,\ETP?%QE§EEﬁ ES

EGMEETSERLE -
EEgRT-NFERTHAEE - &
NGIETE % '@Eﬁtﬂr—Tji\ HESge® I
HEFEER - RER  BEER - A6
kg afﬂ]%ﬂ‘%%ﬁkf ER - TRE
REEERZE—NFAHE (BREEEA
EERREE)ESTE  FEZESgH
RIRRKE 2515 -
ESgER
LTY LW JHQ LTN LY
v v v v N/A
v v v N/A v
v v v N/A v
v v v N/A v
BRBEXE
LTY LW JHQ LTN LY
v v v v v
FHEETER
JHQ LTN LW LY
v v v N/A
v v v N/A
v N/A v v
v N/A v v
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Nomination Committee Meeting REZEETR

Date (DD/MM/YY) Chair person

BY (B R %) X&§ WA JHQ  LTN LY
20/03/2019 JHQ v v v N/A
20/08/2019 JHQ v v N/A v
Remuneration and Review Committee Meeting FRERERETER

Date (DD/MM/YY) Chair person

Bl (BB ®) x& ZH JHQ  LTN LY
20/03/2019 JHQ v v v N/A
28/08/2019 JHQ v v N/A v
Note: 5

WA Wang An Tz

ZH Zhang Hui sRiE

WYH  Wang Yan Hui T g

LTY  Liu Tsung-Yi 2Ry

JHQ  Jiang Hong Qi =T

LW Li Wei =i

LTN  Li Tong Ning (resigned on 26 June 2019) FRE(FER=_Z—ILFAZ+<AH)

LY Li Yao (appointed on 26 June 2019) FRE(ZAERZZE—NFAAZ+"H)
Symbols: 5%

“/” means attended the meeting [VIRERHEFEEZ

“_” means not attended the meeting [-IRERFERE

“N/A” means not applicable INAIRFZAEA
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Directors’ Interest

All Directors disclosed to the Board on their first appointment
their interests as a Director or otherwise in other companies or
organisations and such declarations of interests are updated
annually. When the Board considers any proposal or transaction
in which a Director has a conflict of interest, the Director has
to declare his interest and is required to abstain from voting
and withdraw from the meetings as appropriate. The Company
seeks confirmation from the Directors annually in respect of any
transactions of the Company or its subsidiaries which are related
to Directors or their associates pursuant to the guideline.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company had adopted a code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions (the “Securities Code”) pursuant to Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the Securities Code is sent to
each Director upon his appointment and thereafter twice annually,
that is one month before the date of the Board meetings to approve
the Company’s interim results and two months before the date
of the Board meetings to approve the Company’s annual results,
with a reminder that the Director cannot deal in the securities
and derivatives of the Company until after such results have been
published.

Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, all Directors have
confirmed that they have complied with the required standard of
dealings and the requirements in the Securities Code during 2019.

Specific employees who are likely to be in possession of
unpublished price-sensitive information of the Company are also
subject to compliance with the Securities Code. No incident of
non-compliance was noted by the Company in 2019.
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TTEOERARBNRZS -

EFETZEGXS
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Supervisory Committee

The Supervisory Committee comprises three members of which
two are recommended by Shareholders and one is an employee
representative elected by the employees. The Supervisory
Committee is responsible for supervision of the Board, members
of the Board and senior management, to prevent authority abuse,
Shareholders’ interest infringement and to protect legitimate
interests of the Company and its employees. During 2019, the
Supervisory Committee held three meetings, during which the
members of the Supervisory Committee reviewed the Company’s
financial position, legal compliance of the Company’s operations
and diligence of the senior management.

Internal Control

Internal Control System

The Board has the overall responsibility for setting and reviewing
the Company’s internal control system. The Audit and Review
Committee will also review the effectiveness of such system
periodically. Procedures applied by the Audit and Review
Committee for reviewing the effectiveness of the Company’s
internal control system include: discussing with the management
on the risky areas arising from auditing and/or raised by the
management, reviewing the internal and external audit plan of the
Company, reviewing material issues arising from internal or external
audit report and reviewing material matters identified by internal
auditors and risk assessment manager of the Group. The internal
control system of the Company plays an important role in risk
management which is a key factor for ensuring the achievement
of operational goal. The establishment of internal control system
is for safeguarding assets against unauthorised use or disposition;
for maintaining proper accounting records; and for the reliability of
financial information used within the business or for publication.
However, the procedures are designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives and
can only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against
material misstatement errors, losses or fraud. Procedures for
the Company’s internal, control system have been designed in
accordance with the applicable laws, rules and regulations.
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Regarding to the procedures and internal control for the handling
and dissemination of inside information, the Company is aware of
its disclosure obligations under the Listing Rules and Part XIVA
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “Inside Information
Provisions”), and any information required to be disclosed under
Rule 13.09 of the Listing Rules or any inside information required
to be disclosed under the Inside Information Provisions should be
announced immediately.

A review of the Company’s internal control system covering
financial, operational, compliance and risk management is
conducted annually. In particular, the Board has considered the
adequacy of resources, qualification and experience of staff of
the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function, and
their training programmes and budget. The Board has conducted
a review of the effectiveness of the Group’s system of internal
control. The result has been reported to the Board.

The Board confirms that systems and procedures are in place to
identify, control and report on significant risks involved in achieving
the Company’s strategic objectives. Exposures to these risks are
monitored by the Board with the support of various committees
and senior management.

The Company’s risk management and internal control framework
is guided by the “three lines of defense” model described below.

The Board of Directors

EEERRE

FRERTE N B NFRH B 212 Fr M A AR EE 4R
FE c ARFEMBER LR BRI NE
# MEIBGRBIEXIVARR (T R IH B&3 )
AT WBEEE - MEMARE ETRA
SE13.00FRE T INEE 2 ERSEMAR
BARBEGXAETUREZAREER
FERNES R R ff o

ARBBFHHAMEIERRETRET
NBBREMY - & BTERALERE
BB EREERANERTARAES
AARMEERBETHNETINER &
BEREBEERH - ARBIAEINE
JRELEMBERERE - EEECY
SEMARBEITETTRG - BRAEREH
EEeRE -

SEERAALACAAHA - EERE
WEEHH KRR B AN EARR
ZERRER c EFRREERAR - 18
BEZEERRBEEEARNLS -

ZAN/NSI NN R e 2 S AV
M = BRI AR IR ERESI -

A
o EirLZEE
- Audit and Review Committee
A A A Q
a =
AREEE - D @
Corporate management o M
A & oy
A - o g =
wn
BB s
v on =B
£S5 00 S
R B N R EpE 26P

BBeRrP (FEATHEEHI)
First Defense Line

Funtional Departments
(Advance control)

MEBELERERFT (Frp )
Second Defense Line
Risk Management and
Internal Supervision Departments
(In-event control)

(=)
Third Defense Line
Internal Audit Department
(Subsequent control)
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The Company’s Internal Control Department is responsible for
coordinating the operation of the “three lines of defense”. The
Internal Control Department regularly organizes the functional
departments of the Company to conduct annual risk assessment
on a half-yearly basis, prepare risk assessment report and report
to the Audit and Review Committee. The functional departments
of the Company carry out material risk assessment and response
measures in accordance with their respective departmental duties,
and brief and report to the Internal Control Department of the
Company on a half-yearly basis. The assessment focuses on the
identification of the departmental risk points identified by each
functional department, the preparation of the Risk Assessment
Questionnaire, the assessment of the identified risk points and
the setting up of preventive measures, the formation of the
Risk List based on the Risk Assessment Questionnaire, and the
preparation of a risk assessment report examined and approved
by the chairman of the Audit and Review Committee;

The internal supervision departments of the Company shall
conduct risk and problem-oriented work, urge relevant functional
departments and subsidiaries to rectify the problems identified
during the inspection process, and regularly report to the Audit
and Review Committee and the management on the improvement
status, and report to the Board, the Audit and Review Committee,
the President and the Chief Financial Officer of the Company on
whether the internal control is adequate and effective.

The Internal Audit Department of the Company is responsible for
urging relevant functional departments and subsidiaries to rectify
the problems identified during the internal audit process. The
Internal Audit Department and Internal Control Department will
report to the Audit and Review Committee on a regular basis,
including the annual work plan, contents of audit work, major audit
reports, major risks and response situations, and the improvement
status of problems identified by the functional departments and
subsidiaries during the internal audit process. The annual work plan
of the Internal Audit Department and Internal Control Department
of the Company covers all major procedures of procurement,
production, sales, human resources, finance, asset management
and subsidiaries of the Company, and reports to the Board of
Directors and management of the Company on the audit results.

The management of each subsidiary is responsible for the design,
implementation and monitoring of risk management and internal
control systems with the assistance of the Internal Control
Department and the Internal Audit Department.
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For the year under review, the Board confirmed that the Company’s
internal control system was effective and adequate and the
Company had complied with the Code Provisions on internal
control under the CG Code.

Internal Audit

The Internal Audit Department of the Company provides an
independent review on the adequacy and effectiveness of the
internal control system. The department is headed by a manager
who is familiar with the Company’s operation. Its scope of work
mainly includes auditing of financial and operational systems,
reviewing the observance of relevant policies and regulations,
regular and special auditing, auditing of production effectiveness,
etc. The audit plan, which is prepared based on risk assessment
methodology, is discussed and agreed on every year by the Audit
and Review Committee. In addition to its agreed annual schedule
of work, the Internal Audit Department of the Company conducts
other special reviews as required.

The primary reporting procedure of the Internal Audit Department
of the Company is to report to the chairman of the Board but there
is also direct access to the Audit and Review Committee. Internal
audit reports are sent to the chief executive officer, the chief
financial officer, the external auditors and the relevant management
of the departments under audit. A summary of major audit findings
is reported to and discussed with the Audit and Review Committee.
The Board and the Audit and Review Committee actively monitor
the number and seriousness of findings raised by the Internal Audit
Department of the Company and also the corrective actions taken
by relevant departments.

Detailed control guidelines have been formulated and made
available to all employees of the Company regarding handling
and dissemination of corporate data which is price sensitive.

Risk Management

Risk management is concerned with the identification and effective
management of business risks, including safety and security, legal,
environmental and reputational risks.

The risk management of the Company is conducted by the
Audit and Review Committee and it assists the Board to fulfill its
oversight role over the Company and its subsidiaries in, among
others, the following areas:
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establishment of the risk approach and risk management
strategy of the Company to formulate its risk profile;

identification, assessment and management of the material
risks faced by the various business units of the Company;

reviewing and assessment of the adequacy of the
Company’s risk management process, system and internal
control; and

reviewing and monitoring the Company’s compliance with
the risk management process, system and internal control,
including whether the development of the Company’s
business is prudent and in compliance with the legal
requirements.
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The Company has a sound organisation system of internal control.
The Board is responsible for the establishment, improvement and
effective implementation of the risk management and internal
control systems. A semi-annual review of the effectiveness of the
Company’s and its subsidiaries’ risk managements and internal
control systems during the year has been conducted. Guided by
the Board and the Audit and Review Committee, the Internal Audit
Department carries out inspection, supervision and evaluation for
internal controls of the Company and its subsidiaries in respect
of important control functions such as financial control, operation
control, compliance control and risk management, supervises and
timely rectifies internal control deficiencies and effectively controls
operating risks.

The objectives of internal control of the Company include ensuring
a legal and compliance management, asset safety, accuracy and
completeness of financial reports and related information in a
reasonable manner, enhancing its operating efficiency and results,
and promoting the implementation of strategy development. Due to
the intrinsic limitations of internal control system, only reasonable
guarantees can be provided for the abovementioned objectives.
In addition, the effectiveness of its internal control is subject
to change according to the changes of internal and external
environment and operations. Inspection and supervision system
is established for the Company. In case of shortcomings found,
the Company will adopt rectification measures immediately.

Audit and Review Committee

The Audit and Review Committee is responsible for reviewing
the Group’s financial reporting, risk management, internal
controls and corporate governance issues and making relevant
recommendations to the Board. All of its members are independent
non-executive Directors (namely Mr. Jiang Hong Qi, Mr. Li Wei, Mr
Li Yao (appointed on 26 June 2019) and Mr. Li Tong Ning (resigned
on 26 June 2019)) and its current chairman is Mr. Jiang Hong Qi.
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The Audit and Review Committee has adopted revised set of terms
of reference effective from 22 March 2019, which is based on the
guidelines recommended by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. A copy of the revised terms of reference of
the Audit and Review Committee is available on the Company’s
website and the Stock Exchange’s website.

The Audit and Review Committee met four times in 2019. During
2019, it met to review the internal and external audit findings,
the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group,
internal control and Listing Rules and statutory compliance, and to
discuss auditing, internal controls, risk management and financial
reporting matters. The interim and annual accounts for 2019 were
recommended to the Board for approval after discussion of the
Audit and Review Committee.

External Auditors

In 2019, the total remuneration paid to the external auditors
amounted to approximately RMB1,480,000, which was all for the
audit services provided by the external auditors. The audit fee and
other service fees have been approved by the Audit and Review
Committee and endorsed by the Board.

The statement of the external auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements
is set out on pages 85 to 87 of this annual report.

The Audit and Review Committee has resolved the re-appointment
of KPMG Huazhen LLP for the audit work of the Company for
the financial year 2020. This resolution has been endorsed by the
Board and is subject to final approval and authorisation by the
Shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
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Remuneration and Review Committee

The Remuneration and Review Committee comprises Mr. Jiang
Hong Qi, Mr. Li Yao (appointed on 26 June 2019), Mr. Li Tong
Ning (resigned on 26 June 2019) and Mr. Zhang Hui as members
with Mr. Jiang Hong Qi as the current chairman. All of them
are independent non-executive Directors. The Committee’s
responsibilities are as follows:

- to make recommendations to the Board on the policy
and structure for all Directors’ and senior management,
remuneration and on the establishment of formal and
transparent procedures for developing remuneration policy;

- to be responsible for determining the specific remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management including benefits in kind, pension rights
and compensation payments (including any compensations
payable for loss or termination of their office or appointment),
and to make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration of non-executive Directors;

- to review and approve the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the corporate goals and
objectives made by the Board;

- to review and approve compensation payable to executive
Directors and senior management for any loss or termination
of office or appointment to ensure that it is consistent with
contractual terms and is otherwise reasonable and not
excessive;

- to review and approve compensation arrangements relating
to dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct to
ensure that they are consistent with contractual terms and
are otherwise reasonable and appropriate;

- to ensure that no Director or any of his associates is
involved in deciding his own remuneration; and

S to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and senior
management.
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Factors to be considered by the Remuneration and Review
Committee for formulation of remuneration package include the
remuneration paid by other similar companies, time devoted by
a Director, Director’s responsibilities, employment terms of other
positions in the Group, Director’s performance, etc.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration and Review Committee
which were revised on 30 August 2017 are available on the
Company’s website.

The Remuneration and Review Committee met twice in 2019
to review and approve the Directors’ and senior management’s
remuneration for 2019. At those meetings, the committee approved
the individual remuneration packages for Directors and senior
management to be paid for 2019.

Remuneration Policy for Directors

Remuneration of Directors is subject to annual assessment and
recommendation by the Remuneration and Review Committee to
the Board for further review and approval, which subsequently
requires approval by the Shareholders at annual general meeting.
The primary goal of the remuneration policy on remuneration
packages is to enable the Company to retain and motivate
executive Directors by linking their compensation with performance
as measured against corporate objectives. Under the policy, a
Director is not allowed to approve his own remuneration.

The elements of the Company’s remuneration package of Directors
include basic compensation (comprising of director’s fee) and
discretionary bonus without capping. In determining guidelines for
each compensating element, the Company refers to remuneration
surveys conducted by independent external consultants on
companies operating similar businesses.

According to Code B.1.5 of the CG Code, the annual remuneration
of the members of the senior management whose particulars
are contained in the section headed “Directors, Supervisors and
Senior Management” in this annual report for 2019 by band is
set out below:

Remuneration band (RMB)
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Number of individuals

THES UEEN2ESREREKE (TREREIE

ENEREEENE)
7 Directors, 3 Supervisors and 2 senior management
members excluding the Directors who also act as senior
management
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Basic Compensation

The Remuneration and Review Committee annually reviews and
approves the basic compensation of each Director in accordance
with the Company’s remuneration policy. In accordance with
the service contracts entered into by the Company and each of
the Directors, all Directors have the right to receive fixed basic
compensation.

Discretionary Bonus

Under the service contracts between the Company and each of
the Directors, the Directors are entitled to a discretionary bonus
based on the Company’s results and the degree of diligence of
each of the Directors. During the year ended 31 December 2019,
the Directors did not receive any discretionary bonus.

The amounts paid to each Director of the Company for 2018 and
2019 are disclosed in Note V.36 to the Financial Statements.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee is chaired by Mr. Jiang Hong Qi, an
independent non-executive Director, and comprises Mr. Wang An,
an executive Director, Mr. Li Yao, an independent non-executive
Director (appointed on 26 June 2019) and Mr. Li Tong Ning, an
independent non-executive Director (resigned on 26 June 2019), as
members. The role of the committee is to make recommendations
to the Board on the appointment of Directors, evaluation of Board
composition and the management of Board succession with
reference to certain guidelines as endorsed by the Nomination
Committee. These guidelines include appropriate professional
knowledge and industry experience, personal ethnics, integrity
and personal skills, time commitments of members, and the
independency of the nominees for the position of independent non-
executive directors of the Company. The Nomination Committee
carries out the process of selecting and recommending candidates
for directorship including the consideration of referrals and
engagement of external recruitment professional when necessary.
The Nomination Committee met twice in 2019 to discuss the Board
structure, size and composition and to evaluate the independence
status of the independent non-executive Directors.
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As at the date of this report, the Company had adopted a board
diversity policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”) which sets out its
approach to achieve and maintain diversity on the Board. The
Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of having a
diverse Board to enhance the quality of its performance. Below
is the summary of the Board Diversity Policy:

Selection of candidates for directorship will be based on a wide
range of factors, including but not limited to, gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional experience, skKills,
knowledge and service term. The Nomination Committee will review
the diversity of the Board and report to the Board the composition
of the Board members and monitor the implementation of the
Board Diversity Policy.

The Nomination Committee considers that the current Board
composition has provided the Company with a good balance
and diversity of skill and experience appropriate for the business
of the Company. The Nomination Committee will review the
implementation of the Board Diversity Policy from time to time to
ensure its effectiveness on determining the optimal composition
of the Board.

The latest version of the revised terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee with effect from 22 March 2019 has been posted on
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Investor Relations

To enhance the Company’s system of information disclosure,
and to ensure the accuracy, completeness and timeliness of the
Company’s public disclosures, an Information Disclosure Review
Committee, led by the chief financial officer of the Company,
was established. The Information Disclosure Review Committee
is responsible for the establishment of procedures to compile,
verify and report the Company’s financial and operational statistics
and other information as well as to supervise the drafting and
publication of periodic reports.
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The Company is committed to fair disclosure and comprehensive,
transparent reporting. The chairman of the Board is ultimately
responsible for ensuring that there is effective communication with
investors and that the Board understands the views of the major
Shareholders. The chairman therefore makes himself available to
meet with the Shareholders for this purpose. On a day-to-day
basis, the Board’s primary contact with the major Shareholders
is through the chief executive officer and the chief financial officer
of the Company.

Printed copies of the interim and annual reports are sent to
all Shareholders. The most recent annual general meeting of
the Company was held on 26 June 2019 at 2nd Floor, No. 18
Andre Avenue, Muping Economic Development Zone, Yantai City,
Shandong Province, the PRC. The meeting was opened to all
Shareholders and members of the press and was attended by all
substantial Shareholders personally present or by proxy.

As part of a regular programme of investor relations, senior
management holds briefings and attends conferences with
institutional investors and financial analysts to engage in a two-way
communication on the Company’s performance and objectives. A
wide range of information on the Group’s business activities is made
available to investors and the public through the website of the
Company and the website of the Stock Exchange. Announcements
of the interim and annual results are also available on the website
of the Company and the website of the Stock Exchange.

In 2019, the Company held 13 meetings and conference calls
with analysts and investors at its Yantai and Hong Kong offices.
These activities allowed them to have good opportunities to directly
communicate with and understand the senior management,
operating management and general staff of the Company, as well
as to visit different places of business and operations of the Group.

Enquiries to the Board may be made by contacting the company
secretary through the Shareholders’ hotline or email, or directly
by questions at an annual general meeting or a special general
meeting of the Company. Questions on the procedures for
convening of or putting forward proposals at an annual general
meeting or a special general meeting of the Company may also
be made to the Company by the same means.
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Dividend Distribution Policy

The Company uses cash, shares or both cash and shares as
means for profit appropriation. Except special circumstances, the
Company will distribute dividend by means of cash when there
is profit for the year and accumulated profit not yet distributed.
Profit distributed by means of cash per annum cannot be less
than 10% of the distributable profit of that year.

Shareholders’ Rights

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene a Special General
Meeting (“SGM”)

Shareholders requesting the convening of a SGM shall proceed
in accordance with the procedures set forth below:

The Shareholders individually or jointly holding over 10% of the
Company’s shares with the voting power at the proposed meeting
have the right to request the Board to hold the SGM or a class
meeting in writing. According to laws, administrative regulations
and the Articles of Association, the Board shall give written
feedback to agree or disagree to hold the SGM within 10 days
after receiving the request.

If the Board agrees to hold the SGM, a meeting notice shall be
given within 5 days after the Board makes such a resolution.
Changes to the original proposal in the notice shall be approved
by relevant Shareholders.

If the Board disagrees to hold the SGM or fails to give feedback
within 10 days after receiving the request, the Shareholders
individually or jointly holding over 10% of the Company’s shares
have the right to request the Supervisory Committee to hold the
SGM in writing.

If the Supervisory Committee agrees to hold the SGM, a meeting
notice shall be given within 5 days after receiving the request.
Changes to the original proposal in the notice shall be approved
by relevant Shareholders.
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If the Supervisory Committee fails to give the notice of the SGM
within the specified period, it shall be deemed that the Supervisory
Committee does not convene or preside over the general meeting.
The shareholders individually or jointly holding over 10% of the
Company’s shares for more than 90 consecutive days may
convene and preside over the SGM by themselves.

Necessary expenses of the general meeting held by the Supervisory
Committee or Shareholders by themselves shall be born by the
Company.

Procedures for Shareholders to Put Forward Proposals at a
General Meeting

When the Company holds a general meeting, the Board, the
Supervisory Committee and the Shareholders individually or jointly
holding over 3% of the shares of the Company have the right to
submit proposals to the Company. Shareholders individually or
jointly holding over 3% of the shares of the Company may put
forward interim proposal and submit to the convener in writing
10 days before the SGM.

Procedures for Shareholders to Propose a Person for Election
as a Director

With regard to the procedures for proposing a person for election
as a Director, please refer to the procedures posted on 2 April
2012 under the Investor Relation section of Company’s website
at www.andre.com.cn.

Procedures for Directing Shareholders’ Enquiries to the Board
Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns
to the Board in writing through the company secretary whose
contact details are as follows:

Room 26, 19/F, West Exchange Tower,
322 Des Voeux Road Central,

Sheung Wan, Hong Kong

Fax: (852) 2587 9166

Email: andrehk@northandre.com

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the
general meetings of the Company.
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The Directors are pleased to present and submit the annual report
together with the audited financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2019.

Principal Activities

The principal activities of the Group are manufacturing and sale
of apple juice concentrate, pear juice concentrate, bio-feedstuff
and related products. The principal activities of the Company’s
subsidiaries are set out in Note 6 to the Financial Statements.

Subsidiaries

Particulars of the subsidiaries of the Company as at 31 December
2019 are set out in Notes 6 to the Financial Statements respectively.

Results

The results and financial status of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2019 are set out in pages 88 to 256 of this annual
report.

Five-Year Financial Highlights

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on pages 4 to 5
of this annual report.

Risks and Uncertainties

Principal risks and uncertainties that the Company may face have
been disclosed in the section headed “Management Discussion
and Analysis” of this annual report. In addition, details of the
Group’s financial risk management are disclosed in note 7 to the
Financial Statements.
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Major Customers and Suppliers

In the reporting period, the Group mainly exported products to
the domestic market and non-PRC markets in Asia, Europe, North
America and Africa, and has gradually expanded into markets in
Oceania and South America. The sales attributable to the top
five customers of the Group accounted for about 34.61% of the
Group’s total turnover and sales to the largest customer included
therein amounted to about 10.32%.

Purchases from the Group’s top five largest suppliers accounted
for about 7.8% of total purchases for the year. The largest supplier
accounted for about 2.22% of the total purchases of the Group
for the year.

None of the Directors, supervisors, their respective associates or
any Shareholders which, to the knowledge of the Directors, own
more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital had any
interest in the top five largest suppliers or customers of the Group.

The Board believes that there was no reliance on major customers
and no material related risk was noted in the reporting period.

Dividend

On 6 March 2020, the Board considered and approved the
2019 annual profit distribution plan of the Company. As required
by Answers to Several Questions in Relation to Initial Public
Offerings promulgated by China Securities Regulatory Commission
(“CSRC”), listing applicants proposing a plan for distribution of cash
dividend upon their initial filing shall, in principle, have completed
the distribution and updated the application materials accordingly
before the commencement of Issuance Appraisal Committee’s
review proceedings of their listing application. In light of the
application progress of the proposed issuance of A shares and
to maximise the interests of the Company and its shareholders
as a whole, the Board does not recommend the payment of any
dividend for the financial year of 2019 in the forthcoming annual
general meeting. The aforesaid annual profit distribution plan is
subject to consideration and approval by the Shareholders at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.
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Based on the needs for business development, the Board also
proposed to amend the relevant provisions of the Articles of
Association in connection with the Company’s profit distribution
policy. The proposed amendments to the Articles of Association
are subject to consideration and approval by the Shareholders at
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

Tax and Tax Relief

Pursuant to the Corporate Income Tax Law of the PRC and its
implementing regulations (collectively referred to as the “Corporate
Income Tax Law”) which took effect on 1 January 2008, the tax
rate of the corporate income tax applicable to the income of non-
resident enterprise deriving from the PRC is 10%. Pursuant to
the Corporate Income Tax Law, any Chinese domestic enterprise
(including the Company) which pays dividend to a non-resident
enterprise shareholder shall withhold and remit corporate income
tax at 10% on behalf of such shareholder.

Pursuant to the Notice on Issues Concerning Individual Income
Tax Collection and Management after the Repeal of Guo Shui
Fa [1993] No. 45 (No. 348, Guo Shui Han [2011]), where the
nonresident individual shareholders obtain dividend and bonuses
from the shares issued in Hong Kong by non-foreign-invested
enterprise, individual income tax shall be withheld and remitted
by the withholding agent according to the domain of “interest,
dividends and bonuses”. The non-resident individual shareholders
of domestic non-foreign-invested enterprise which issued shares in
Hong Kong, shall enjoy the taxation preferences in accordance with
the agreements between countries of their origins and China and
the regulation on taxation arrangement between the Mainland and
Hong Kong (Macau). The related tax rate of dividend as provided
by taxation agreement is generally at a rate of 10%. In order to
simplify the collection and management of taxation, the individual
income tax with a rate of 10% in general will be withheld when
dividend is paid by the domestic non-foreigninvested enterprise
which issued shares in Hong Kong without making applications.
Where the dividend tax rate is not 10%, it will be handled according
to the following requirements: (1) for residents of countries which
have entered into an agreement with China in respect of a tax rate
lower than 10%, the withholding agent may apply for the relevant
entitlements hereunder on their behalf. Upon examination and
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approval by the competent tax authorities, the additional amount
of tax withheld will be refunded; (2) for residents of countries
which have entered into an agreement with China in respect of a
tax rate of 10% or more but less than 20%, the withholding agent
shall withhold individual income tax at the agreed tax rate when
distributing dividends or bonuses, and no application for approval
is needed; (3) for residents of a country or which has not entered
into any tax treaties with the PRC and in any other circumstances,
the withholding agent shall withhold individual income tax at the
tax rate of 20% when distributing dividends and bonuses.

Pursuant to the Notice of Withholding and Payment of Enterprise
Income Tax Regarding China Resident Enterprise Paying Dividend
to Non-Resident Enterprise Holders of Overseas H-Share (No.
897, Guo Shui Han [2008]) issued by the State Administration of
Taxation, any domestic enterprise of PRC which pays dividends
to non-resident enterprise shareholders (as defined in the Tax
Law) for the year of 2008 and subsequent years shall withhold
and remit enterprise income tax at the tax rate of 10%.

Shareholders are recommended to consult their taxation advisors
for advice on the tax effects of the PRC, Hong Kong and other
jurisdictions with respect to the holding and disposal of H Shares.

The Company will have no liability in respect of any claims arising
from any delay in, or inaccurate determination of the status of the
Shareholders or any disputes over the mechanism of withholding
and remitting.

Share Capital

The change(s) in share capital of the Company is set out in Note
V.20 to the Financial Statements.

Reserves

The change(s) in reserves of the Company during the reporting
period is set out in the statement of changes in Shareholders’
equity of the Group and the Company in the Financial Statements.

The distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 December
2019 amounted to approximately RMB458,836,000 (2018:
approximately RMB308,934,000).
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Property, Plant and Equipment

During the reporting period, the Group incurred approximately
RMB14,791,000 mainly for expanding the production line,
renovation of plant and acquisition of equipment.

The change(s) of property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the reporting period is set out in Note V.8 to the Financial
Statements.

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles
of Association or the PRC laws and regulations which oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing
Shareholders.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Shares

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed shares during the
year ended 31 December 2019.

Directors’ and Supervisors’ Rights to Acquire
Shares or Debentures

None of the Directors or Supervisors or their respective associates
was granted by the Company or its subsidiaries any right to
acquire shares or debentures of the Company or any other body
corporate, or had exercised any such right during the year ended
31 December 2019.

Material Acquisitions and Disposals During the
Year

No material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries, associated
companies or joint venture companies were made by the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2019.

Significant Investments

No significant investment was held by the Group as at 31
December 2019. The Group does not hold any significant securities
investments as part of its asset portfolio.
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Subsequent Event

The coronavirus outbreak since early 2020 has brought about
additional uncertainties in the Group’s operating environment.

The Group has been closely monitoring the impact of the
developments on the Group’s businesses and has implemented
contingency measures. These contingency measures include:
increasing the Group’s options for logistics movements; assessing
the Group’s raw materials suppliers’ readiness; negotiating with
customers on delivery schedules; and closely monitoring the
operations of domestic customers. The Group will keep our
contingency measures under review as the situation evolves.

As far as the Group’s businesses are concerned, the coronavirus
outbroke after the end of the Group’s seasonal production and did
not affect the Group’s production, but the outbreak may cause
the risk of delivery delays. The Group has initiated the above
contingency measures to respond. Based on the information
currently available, the management foresees that the coronavirus
outbreak would affect the repayment abilities of individual small and
medium-sized domestic customers, which will result in additional
impairment losses on balance of trade receivables after the balance
sheet date. These impacts have not been reflected in the financial
statements as of 31 December 2019. The actual impacts may
differ from these estimates as situation continues to evolve and
when further information is available.

Proposed Issuance of A Shares

To satisfy the production and operation need of the Company
and to strike for further development, the Company proposed to
fundraise in the domestic stock market in China.

At the Board meeting on 30 August 2017, the Company proposed
to apply to the relevant regulatory authorities in the PRC for the
allotment and issuance of not more than 20,000,000 A Shares with
a nominal value of RMB1.00 each to natural persons, legal persons
and other institutional investors, who maintain A share accounts
with the Shanghai Stock Exchange (except those prohibited by
the PRC laws and regulations and other regulatory requirements
that the Company is subject to), and apply to the Shanghai Stock
Exchange for the listing of, and permission to deal in, the A Shares.
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The special resolution for issuance of A shares was approved by the
Shareholders in the special general meeting and class meetings of
the Company held on 1 November 2017. The resolution to extend
such application period was approved by the Shareholders in the
annual general meeting and class meetings of the Company held
on 26 June 2018 and 26 June 2019, respectively. Such issuance
is subject to the approval by the China Securities Regulatory
Commission (“CSRC”).

Employment and Remuneration Policy

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group had an average
of 944 employees (2018: 907 employees). Staff costs including
directors’ remuneration for the years ended 31 December 2019
and 31 December 2018 were approximately RMB61,989,000
and approximately RMB56,215,000, respectively. Details of the
emoluments of the Directors and supervisors and the top five
highest paid individuals of the Group are set out in Notes V.36
and 37 to the Financial Statements. The Group’s employment and
remuneration policies remained unchanged from those described
in the prospectus of the Company dated 11 April 2003. The
salaries and benefits of employees of the Group are kept at a
competitive level and employees are rewarded on a performance
related basis within the general framework of the Group’s salary
and bonus system which is reviewed annually. A wide range of
benefits, including statutory compulsory welfare plans, are also
provided to the employees.

Retirement Fund Scheme

The retirement fund scheme is set out in Note V.17 to the Financial
Statements.

Directors and Supervisors

During the year 2019 and up to the date of this report, the Directors
and Supervisors were as follows:

Executive Directors: Wang An, Zhang Hui and Wang Yan Hui

Non-executive Liu Tsung-Yi
Director:

Independent Jiang Hong Qi, Li Wei, Li Yao (appointed on
non-executive 26 June 2019) and Li Tong Ning (resigned
Directors: on 26 June 2019)

Supervisors: Dai Li Ying, Wang Zhi Wu and Wang Kun
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Directors’ and Supervisors’ Service Contracts

Each of the Directors and Supervisors has entered into a service
contract with the Company. None of the Directors or Supervisors
has an unexpired service contract which is not terminable by the
Company or its subsidiaries within a year without payment of any
compensation (other than statutory compensation).

Independence of Independent Non-executive
Directors

The Company confirms that the Company has received written
independence status confirmation from all independent non-
executive Directors in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. All independent non-executive Directors are considered
as independent.

Change of Directors, Supervisors and Senior
Management

At 26 June 2019, Mr. Li Yao was appointed as independent non-
executive Director while Mr. Li Tong Ning resigned as independent
non-executive Director.

Saved as disclosed above, there were no material changes to the
Directors, Supervisors and senior management of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2019.

Management Contracts

No contract concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
was entered into or existed during the reporting period.

Permitted Indemnity Provision

At no time during the financial year, there was or is, any permitted
indemnity provision being in force for the benefit of any of the
directors of the Company (whether made by the Company or
otherwise) or an associated company (if made by the company).
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Connected Transactions

Continuing connected transactions under the Listing Rules

l.

CCT with Andre Pectin

On 29 September 2015, the Company entered into a
framework agreement with Yantai Andre Pectin Co., Ltd.
(“Andre Pectin”) for the sale of pomace and juice products
to Andre Pectin and determined the annual caps for the sale
of pomace and juice products for the three years ending 31
December 2018. The framework agreement took effect on
1 January 2016 and expired on 31 December 2018. On 19
January 2016, the Company entered into a supplemental
agreement (the “Supplemental Agreement”) with Andre
Pectin to revise the annual caps for 2016, 2017 and 2018
under the framework agreement.

As the framework agreement as amended by the
Supplemental Agreement expired on 31 December 2018,
the Company and Andre Pectin agreed to renew the
transaction terms, and entered into the product purchase
framework agreement on 13 December 2018 (the “Pectin
Renewal Agreement”), pursuant to which, Andre Pectin
agreed to purchase and the Company agreed to supply
the Company’s products (including but not limited to
pomace and juice products), and the entering into the
Pectin Renewal Agreement served to regulate such product
purchase between the Group and Andre Pectin for the
period commenced on 1 January 2019 and expiring on
31 December 2021.

Under the Pectin Renewal Agreement, the prices of products
to be supplied by the Company shall be determined
according to (i) the Market Price; and (i) the Historical
Price, whichever is higher.

The annual caps under the Pectin Renewal Agreement
were set based on the following factors: the estimated
amounts of transactions involved with reference to historical
transaction volume, the estimated potential growth of the
Group, the expected economic growth of the PRC and the
increase of the demand by Andre Pectin on the Company’s
products. For the three financial years ending 31 December
2021, the annual caps will be RMB30,000,000 per year.
The actual sale of pomace and other products by the Group
to Andre Pectin for the period from 1 January 2019 to 26
February 2019 was RMB4,528,584 and are subject to the
annual review requirements under the Listing Rules.
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1.

As of the date of signing the framework agreement,
Supplemental Agreement and Pectin Renewal Agreement,
Andre Pectin was an associate (as defined under the Listing
Rules) of Andre Group, which was a substantial Shareholder
and controlled 47.37% interest in Andre Pectin. Andre Pectin
was also an associate of Mr. Wang An, who is a Director
and indirectly controlled 47.37% interest in Andre Pectin
through his 90% interest in Andre Group. Therefore, Andre
Pectin was a connected person of the Company and the
sale of pomace and juice products by the Company to Andre
Pectin as contemplated under the framework agreement, the
Supplemental Agreement and Pectin Renewal Agreement
constituted continuing connected transactions under the
Listing Rules. As each of the applicable percentage ratios
was more than 0.1% but less than 5%, the transactions
contemplated under the framework agreement as amended
by the Supplemental Agreement and the Pectin Renewal
Agreement are only subject to the reporting, announcement
and annual review requirements but are exempt from the
independent Shareholders’ approval requirement under the
Listing Rules. The Company has complied with the applicable
disclosure requirements in accordance with the Listing Rules.

For further details regarding the Pectin Renewal Agreement,
please refer to the announcement of the Company dated
13 December 2018.

The Company was informed that Andre Group disposed of
part of its equity interest in Andre Pectin to an independent
third party on 27 February 2019 and owned 15.53% interest
in Andre Pectin immediately after the disposal. Therefore,
Andre Pectin ceased to be a connected person of the
Company on 27 February 2019 as defined by the Listing
Rules.

CCT with President

On 11 December 2017, the Company entered into a
product purchase framework agreement with President
Enterprises (China) Investment Co., Ltd. (“President”),
whereby President agreed to purchase and the Company
agreed to supply the Company’s products (including but
not limited to different kinds of juice concentrate) and
provide related warehousing service to President and
determined the annual cap for the financial year ended 31
December 2018.

1.
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As the previous product purchase framework agreement
dated 11 December 2017 expired on 31 December
2018, the Company and President agreed to renew the
transaction terms, and entered into a product purchase
framework agreement on 13 December 2018 (the “President
Renewal Agreement”), pursuant to which, President agreed
to purchase and the Company agreed to supply the
Company’s products (including but not limited to different
kinds of juice concentrate) and provide related warehousing
service, to regulate such product purchase between the
Group and President for the period commenced on 1
January 2019 and expiring on 31 December 2019.

Under the President Renewal Agreement, prices of products
to be supplied by the Company shall be determined
according to the bidding principle by reference to the
market price.

The annual cap under the President Renewal Agreement
was set based on the historical transaction amounts with
President and the expected stability of the prevailing market
prices for the sales of the Company’s products. For the
year ended 31 December 2019, the annual cap was
RMB21,000,000. The actual sale of products and provision
of warehousing services by the Group to President for
the year ended 31 December 2019 was RMB8,204,321
and was subject to annual review requirements under the
Listing Rules.

As at the date of signing the product purchase framework
agreement and the President Renewal Agreement,
President held 17.87% of the total issued share capital of
the Company. Under the Listing Rules, President was a
substantial Shareholder and thus was a connected person
of the Company. Therefore, the transactions contemplated
under the product purchase framework agreement and the
President Renewal Agreement between the Group and
President constituted continuing connected transactions of
the Company. As an applicable percentage ratio in respect
of the annual caps (other than the profit ratio) was more
than 0.1% but less than 5%, the transactions contemplated
under the product purchase framework agreement and
the President Renewal Agreement are only subject to
the requirements of reporting, announcement and annual
reviews but are exempt from the independent Shareholders’
approval requirement under the Listing Rules.
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For further details regarding the President Renewal
Agreement, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 13 December 2018.

As the President Renewal Agreement expired on 31
December 2019, the Company and President agreed to
further renew the transaction terms, and entered into the
product purchase framework agreement on 6 November
2019 (“New President Product Purchase Framework
Agreement”), whereby President agreed to purchase and
the Company agreed to supply the Company’s products
(including but not limited to different kinds of concentrated
juice) and provide the warehousing and other services
relating to purchase to subsidiaries of President, to regulate
such product purchase between the Group and President
for the period commencing on 1 January 2020 and expiring
on 31 December 2021.

Prices of products to be supplied by the Company shall be
determined according to the bidding principle by reference
to the market price.

The annual cap of the products sold to President for the
period commencing on 1 January 2020 and expiring on
31 December 2021 was set as RMB21,000,000, mainly
based on the following factors: (i) the historical transaction
amounts with President for the sales of products; and (ii)
the expectation that the prevailing market prices for the
sales of the Company’s products will remain stable.
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As at the date of signing the New President Product
Purchase Framework Agreement, President is a non-wholly
owned subsidiary of Uni-President Enterprises Corp., a
Shareholder of the Company. Uni-President Enterprises
Corp., through its two wholly-owned subsidiaries, Chengdu
President Enterprises Food Co., Ltd.* (X &4 — ¥ B &

FR /A 1) and Guangzhou President Enterprises Corp.* (M
L— 2B AR, holds 63,746,040 domestic shares of
the Company, representing approximately 17.81% of the
total issued share capital of the Company, and 237,000 H
shares of the Company, representing approximately 0.07%
of the total issued share capital of the Company. President
is a connected person of the Company under the Listing
Rules. Therefore, the transactions under the President
Product Purchase Framework Agreement between the
Group and President constitute continuing connected
transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. Since the highest applicable percentage ratio
(other than the profit ratio) for the proposed annual cap
under the New President Product Purchase Framework
Agreement is more than 0.1% but less than 5%, in
accordance with requirements of the Listing Rules, the
continuing connected transactions under the New President
Product Purchase Framework Agreement between the
Company and President are only subject to the reporting
and announcement requirements under the Listing Rules
and are exempted from the independent Shareholders’
approval requirement.

CCT with Yantai Hengtong

On 19 January 2016, the Company entered into a framework
agreement with Yantai Hengtong Thermoelectricity Co.,
Ltd.*({d & F @BEE B R A 7))(“Yantai Hengtong”), pursuant
to which the Group has agreed to purchase and Yantai
Hengtong has agreed to supply products (including but
not limited to electricity and steam) to regulate the product
purchase between the Group and Yantai Hengtong for the
three years ended 31 December 2018.

As the previous framework agreement dated 19 January
2016 expired on 31 December 2018, the Company and
Yantai Hengtong agreed to renew the transaction terms,
and entered into the framework agreement on 13 December
2018 (the “Hengtong Renewal Agreement”), whereby the
Group agreed to purchase and Yantai Hengtong agreed to
supply products (including but not limited to electricity and
steam), to regulate such purchase between the Group and

For identification purpose only
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Yantai Hengtong for the period commenced on 1 January
2019 and expiring on 31 December 2021.

Under the Hengtong Renewal Agreement, the prices
of products to be supplied by the Company shall be
determined according to the Market Price.

The annual cap of the transaction contemplated under
the Hengtong Renewal Agreement was set based on the
following factors: the estimated amounts of transactions
involved with reference to historical transaction volume and
the estimated demand by the Group on Yantai Hengtong’s
products with reference to the prospective consumption
of such products by the manufacturing workshops of the
Group at full production capacity. For the three financial
years ending 31 December 2021, the annual caps are
RMB25,000,000 per year. The actual purchase for the year
ended 31 December 2019 was RMB7,677,077 and was
subject to annual review requirements under the Listing
Rules.

As at the date of signing the framework agreement and
the Hengtong Renewal Agreement, Yantai Hengtong was
wholly-owned by Andre Group, a substantial Shareholder.
Yantai Hengtong was an associate (as defined under the
Listing Rules) of Andre Group and was also a connected
person of the Company under the Listing Rules. Therefore,
the transactions contemplated under the framework
agreement and Hengtong Renewal Agreement between
the Company and Yantai Hengtong constituted continuing
connected transactions of the Company under the Listing
Rules. Since the applicable percentage ratios (other than
the profit ratio) for the proposed annual caps for all relevant
years for the continuing connected transactions under the
framework agreement and Hengtong Renewal Agreement
are more than 0.1% but less than 5%, in accordance with
the Listing Rules, the transaction contemplated under the
framework agreement and Hengtong Renewal Agreement
are only subject to the reporting, announcement and annual
review requirements under the Listing Rules and are exempt
from the independent Shareholders’ approval requirement.
The Company has complied with the applicable disclosure
requirements in accordance with the Listing Rules.

For further details regarding the Hengtong Renewal
Agreement, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 13 December 2018.
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*

CCT with Ton Yi

On 11 December 2017, the Company entered into a
product purchase framework agreement with Ton Yi
(China) Investment Co., Ltd.*(% & (FE) HEFRAF)
(“Ton Yi”), pursuant to which Ton Yi agreed to purchase
and the Company agreed to supply the Company’s
products (including but not limited to different kinds of
juice concentrate) and provide the warehousing and other
services relating to purchase to subsidiaries of Ton Vi, to
regulate such product purchase between the Group and
Ton Yi for the period commenced on 1 January 2018 and
expired on 31 December 2018.

As the previous product purchase framework agreement
dated 11 December 2017 expired on 31 December 2018,
the Company and Ton Yi agreed to renew the transaction
terms, and entered into the product purchase framework
agreement on 13 December 2018 (the “Ton Yi Renewal
Agreement”), pursuant to which Ton Yi agreed to purchase
and the Company agreed to supply the Company’s
products (including but not limited to different kinds of
juice concentrate and provide the warehousing and other
services relating to purchase to subsidiaries of Ton Yi), to
regulate such product purchase between the Group and
Ton Yi for the year ending 31 December 2019.

Under the Ton Yi Renewal Agreement, the prices of products
to be supplied by the Company shall be determined
according to the bidding principle by reference to the
market price.

The annual cap under the Ton Yi Renewal Agreement was
set based on the following factors: the estimated amounts of
transactions involved with reference to historical transaction
volume, and the expected stability of the prevailing market
prices for the sales of the Company’s products. For
the year ended 31 December 2019, the annual cap is
RMB21,000,000. The actual sale of products and provision
of warehousing services by the Group to Ton Yi for the year
ended 31 December 2019 was RMB4,517,343 and was
subject to annual review requirements under the Listing
Rules.

For identification purpose only

64  Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd. & IHFZEFRARHERATE

v.

*

BHGECIFERERS
RIZE—+FE+=-A+—8 &R
AEAE(RR)EEBRAA S
BEDAVSEERFEBIERGZ -
BUSEREREAAQRIREMH
EARRNBNERBEETRREE
RHERT) RS EW B A et i
KEAENERERS - LEER
SESEGEC-HAE-_Z—N\F—A
—RAE_ZE—-/\F+=-A=+—H
LERE R -

HREIR - E—tF+-A+—
BRIV ERBER —T—\F+
—R=t+—HE® ARABERE
REEHMXBHER AR _F—
NFE+ZRA+=ZBiILERRBE
Ripm(MEEF R - BUR
ERERBAARARAEHERR
AMERBRENERSERER
) KA E M B 2~ AR B AR B AR
BAHERERY - AREAREESE
REZHRB-_FT-—NAF-—A—HZE
“E-NAF+ZA=+—HILFEE
HIE mERAE -

REKEEH = - AARHES
HEMWER - H2EMHE &%
IR ERAMEE -

RESREENHE  FEXFH LR
NEBTL2EZBRARIERARS S
MOERE  UWEREEARARTERD
ERTMHEEERBESREFETHE
E - HE2E_Z-hhF+_-_A=+—
AW BEEZFEERAAR
#21,000,0007T - HE-_Z— N
F+-_A=+—HUIMBREEZR
SEETHRECVERBEENEGE
BEHEAARKA4517,343 7T RIE
EWRA - MR GUEESRTE
@f] °

E RS



*

As at the date of signing the product purchase framework
agreement and Ton Yi Renewal Agreement, Ton Yi was a
non-wholly owned subsidiary of Uni-President Enterprises
Corp., a Shareholder of the Company. Uni-President
Enterprises Corp., through its two wholly owned subsidiaries,
Chengdu President Enterprises Food Co., Ltd.* (B #B&T—
PERMBAMR AT and Guangzhou President Enterprises
Corp.* (EMF— 1 FBR A A), held 63,746,040 domestic
shares of the Company, representing approximately 17.81%
of the total issued share capital of the Company, and 237,000
H shares of the Company, representing approximately
0.07% of the total issued share capital of the Company.
Ton Yi is a connected person of the Company under the
Listing Rules. Therefore, the transactions under the product
purchase framework agreement and Ton Yi Renewal
Agreement between the Group and Ton Yi constituted
continuing connected transactions of the Company. Since
the applicable percentage ratios (other than the profit ratio)
for the proposed annual cap for all relevant years are more
than 0.1% but less than 5%, pursuant to the Listing Rules,
the continuing connected transactions under the product
purchase framework agreement and Ton Yi Renewal
Agreement with Ton Yi are only subject to the reporting,
announcement and annual review requirements but are
exempt from the independent Shareholders’ approval
requirements under the Listing Rules.

For further details regarding the Ton Yi Renewal Agreement,
please refer to the announcement of the Company dated
13 December 2018.

As the Ton Yi Renewal Agreement expired on 31 December
2019, the Company and Ton Yi agreed to renew the
transaction terms, and entered into the New Ton Yi Product
Purchase Framework Agreement on 6 November 2019,
whereby Ton Yi agreed to purchase and the Company
agreed to supply the Company’s products (including
but not limited to different kinds of concentrated juice)
and provide the warehousing and other services relating
to purchase to subsidiaries of Ton Yi, to regulate such
product purchase between the Group and Ton Yi for the
period commencing on 1 January 2020 and expiring on
31 December 2021.
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Prices of the products to be supplied by the Company
shall be determined according to the bidding principle by
reference to the market price.

The annual cap of the products sold to Ton Yi for the
period commencing on 1 January 2020 and expiring on 31
December 2021 was set as RMB21,000,000, mainly based
on to the following factors: (i) the historical transaction
amounts with Ton Yi for the sales of products; and (ii) the
expectation that the prevailing market prices for the sales
of the Company’s products will remain stable.

As at the date of signing the New Ton Yi Product
Purchase Framework Agreement, Ton Yi is a non-wholly
owned subsidiary of Uni-President Enterprises Corp., a
Shareholder of the Company. Uni-President Enterprises
Corp., through its two wholly-owned subsidiaries, Chengdu
President Enterprises Food Co., Ltd.* (X &4 — ¥R &

fR /A 7)) and Guangzhou President Enterprises Corp.* (/!
H—EABMR AR, holds 63,746,040 domestic shares of
the Company, representing approximately 17.81% of the
total issued share capital of the Company, and 237,000 H
shares of the Company, representing approximately 0.07%
of the total issued share capital of the Company. Ton Yi
is a connected person of the Company under the Listing
Rules. Therefore, the transactions under the Ton Yi Product
Purchase Framework Agreement between the Group and
Ton Yi constitute continuing connected transactions of
the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
Since the highest applicable percentage ratio (other than
the profit ratio) for the proposed annual cap under the
New Ton Yi Product Purchase Framework Agreement is
more than 0.1% but less than 5%, in accordance with
requirements of the Listing Rules, the continuing connected
transactions under the New Ton Yi Product Purchase
Framework Agreement between the Company and Ton
Yi are only subject to the reporting and announcement
requirements under the Listing Rules and are exempted
from the independent Shareholders’ approval requirement.
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In respect of the above continuing connected transactions
of the Group, the Company’s internal audit has reviewed
the relevant transactions and ensured that internal control
procedures are effective and adequate, and provided
the findings to the independent non-executive Directors.
The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed
the related agreements and transactions contemplated
thereunder and confirmed that these transactions:

(i) were entered into in the ordinary and usual course
of business of the Group;

(i) were conducted on normal commercial terms or on
terms no less favourable to the Group than terms
available to or from independent third parties;

(ifi) were entered into in accordance with the terms
of the respective agreements and were fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the Company and
its shareholders as a whole;

(iv) of which the aggregate annual amount were within
the relevant annual caps (if any);

(v) have been conducted in accordance with the
pricing policies or mechanisms under the framework
agreement, including the pricing range, the process
for determining the prices; and

(vi) for which the Group’s internal control procedures are
adequate and effective to ensure that transactions
are so conducted.

KPMG Huazhen LLP, the Company’s auditors, were
engaged to report on the Group’s continuing connected
transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740
“Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. KPMG Huazhen LLP have
issued their unqualified letter containing their findings
and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transactions disclosed above by the Group in accordance
with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the
auditors’ letter has been provided by the Company to the
Stock Exchange.
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Connected transactions under the Rules Governing the Listing
of Stocks on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (the “Shanghai
Listing Rules”)

Connected transactions with Mitsui

As at 31 December 2019, Mitsui & Co., Ltd. (“Mitsui”) held 5.96%
interests of the Company, for which it did not constitute a connected
person of the Company under the Listing Rules. However, Mitsui
and its subsidiaries were connected persons of the Company
under the Shanghai Listing Rules, therefore, the Group’s sales to
Mitsui and its subsidiaries were deemed connected transactions
under the Shanghai Listing Rules.

The prices of the Group’s products supplied to Mitsui and its
subsidiaries shall be determined based on (i) the Market Price
(as defined below); and (ii) the Historical Price (as defined below),
whichever is higher. The “Market Price” shall be determined in the
following order: (1) the prices charged by an independent third
party for selling the products under ordinary course of business
at the place where the products are sold or the vicinity; or (2)
the prices charged by an independent third party for selling the
products under ordinary course of business in China.

The “Historical Price” shall be the average price for all the
transactions of similar products with independent third parties within
three consecutive months as set forth in the records supervised
and maintained by the sales department of the Company.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group’s actual sales
of juice products to Mitsui and its subsidiaries was approximately
RMB68,917,022.

At the Board meeting held on 13 December 2018, the Directors
considered and approved the annual caps for the Group’s
purchase from Mitsui and its subsidiaries for the next three years
to regulate the Group’s purchase from Mitsui and its subsidiaries
from 1 January 2019 and up to 31 December 2021.
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Connected transactions with Andre Pectin

As at 31 December 2019, a major shareholder of the Company,
Andre Group, held 15.53% interests in Andre Pectin, for which it
did not constitute a connected person of the Company under the
Listing Rules. However, Andre Pectin was constituted a connected
person of the Company under the Shanghai Listing Rules. Hence,
the Group’s sales of pomace and juice products under the Pectin
Renewal Agreement to Andre Pectin were deemed connected
transactions under the Shanghai Listing Rules.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group’s actual sales
of pomace and juice products to Andre Pectin was approximately
RMB35,469,247.

The Pectin Renewal Agreement entered into by the Company and
Andre Pectin on 13 December 2018 was still valid. A supplemental
agreement signed on 6 November 2019 was entered into to
regulate the product purchase between the Group and Andre
Pectin for the period commencing on 1 January 2019 and expiring
on 31 December 2021.

Related Party Transactions

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group entered
into transactions with related parties as set out in Note X to
the Financial Statements. Apart from the items disclosed in the
section “Connected Transactions”, all other material related party
transactions did not constitute non-exempt connected transactions
or continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.

Directors’ and Supervisors’ Interest in Contracts

Save as disclosed in this report, none of the Directors or the
Supervisors had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in
any contract of significance to the business of the Group to which
the Company was a party in 2019.
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Directors’, Supervisors’ and Chief Executive’s
Interests and Short Positions in the Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures of the
Company

As at 31 December 2019, the interests and short positions of the
Directors, Supervisors and chief executive of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of
Hong Kong) (the “SFO”)) which were (a) required to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions
which they are taken or deemed to have under such provisions of
the SFO); and (b) required to be recorded in the register kept by
the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
required standard of dealings by the directors of the Company as
referred to in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules were as follows:

Name of Class of Number of
Directors Shares Shares Held  Capacity
BEEfty Rip R FiiskiBE 56
Wang An Non-listed 46,351,961 (L) Interest of controlled
(Note 1) Foreign 46,351,961( &) corporation (Note 2)
FR (Wt 1) Shares R EEER
i (M2)
MER
Domestic 54,668,540 (L) Interest of controlled
Shares 54,668,540(%)  corporation (Note 2)
NER R ZE R
(M2)
Wang Yanhui Domestic 20,000,000 (L)  Interest of controlled
(Note 3) Shares 20,000,000( &) corporations (Note 4)
TEBE (IS NER AR (WiE4)
Zhang Hui Domestic 20,000,000 (L)  Interest of controlled
(Note 5) Shares 20,000,000( &) corporations (Note 6)
RiES 4 (fiE0) NERR R ABER (Wi6)
Liu Tsung-Yi H Shares 195,400 (L)  Beneficial owner
Ry Hitt 195400(R) EB&EBA
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Approximate

Percentage of Approximate

Non-circulating Percentage of

Shares/ Total Share

Type of H Shares Capital

Interest fikERER, ik akE

HRER HEEA L R4

Personal 18.50% (L)(&) 12.95% (L)(%)
fEA

Personal 21.82% ()(&) 15.27% ()(R)
fEA

Personal 7.98% ()(K) 5.50% ()(K)
fEA

Personal 7.98% ()(K) 5.59% ()(R)
fEA

Personal 0.18% (L)(K) 0.05% (L)(&)
fAA



Notes:

The letter “L” denotes a long position.

(1)

*

As at 31 December 2019, Mr. Wang An, a Director, controlled (a)
90% interest in China Pingan Investment Holdings Limited, which
held 46,351,961 Non-listed Foreign Shares, representing 12.95%
interest in the total issued share capital of the Company; (b) 90%
interest in Shandong Andre Group Co., Ltd.* (IIRZ{EHEEAE
fR7A/]) , which held 54,658,540 Domestic Shares, representing
15.27% interest in the total issued share capital of the Company.

Mr. Wang An was deemed to be interested in these Shares
through his interests in China Pingan Investment Holdings Limited
and Shandong Andre Group Co., Ltd.* (LR ZEFEBFRAF]) .

As at 31 December 2019, Mr. Wang Yanhui, a Director, held 20%
interest in Yantai Xingan Investment Centre (Limited Partnership)

(HEREZERERL (BRA#)), which held 20,000,000
Domestic Shares, representing 5.59% of the total issued share
capital of the Company.

Mr. Wang Yanhui was deemed to be interested in these Domestic
Shares through his interest in Yantai Xingan Investment Centre
(Limited Partnership) (A& B LR EHRL (BRER) ) .

As at 31 December 2019, Mr. Zhang Hui, a Director, held 20%
interest in Yantai Xingan Investment Centre (Limited Partnership)

(HEREZEREFL (BRA#)), which held 20,000,000
Domestic Shares, representing 5.59% of the total issued share
capital of the Company.

Mr. Zhang Hui was deemed to be interested in these Domestic
Shares through his interest in Yantai Xingan Investment Centre
(Limited Partnership) (A& B L& ERL (BRER) ) .
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Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’
Interests and Short Positions in the Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures of the
Company

As at 31 December 2019, so far as the Directors are aware, the
following persons (other than the Directors, Supervisors and chief
executive of the Company) had interests and short positions in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company which
were discloseable under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO
and recorded in the register kept by the Company pursuant to
section 336 of the SFO:

FERRRAMALIRELFK
7  BERMRAHEEPHER R
RE

BEEMHA  R-_T-NAF+-_A=1+—
B BRARBES - EERITHARES -
EARB 2B - EXRO REEZEPHE
BARBCEZ RMEHRPDFEXVEFE2 K3
DEZ MEMARE » RELAXRAR
EHFMAEGIDFEIBHRIRERFE
ZERMP s MAR 2 IRR R EMA

Name of Class of Number of
Shareholders Shares Shares Held  Capacity
BR#ER R FisROBE &
China Pingan Investment Non-listed 46,351,961 ()  Beneficial owner
Holdings Limited Foreign Shares Note 1)  EmBEBA
& EIANER 46,351,961(%)
Rz 1)
Shandong Andre Group Domestic Shares 54,658,540 ()  Beneficial owner
Co., L RER Note2) EXEEA
(WRLEHNEEERAR) 54,658,540(%)
(B3t 2)
Donghua Fruit Industry Non-listed 65,779,459 ()  Beneficial owner
Co., Ltd. Foreign Shares Note 3) E&mEBA
EFONER 65,779,459(K)
(Ft3E 9)
Uni-President Enterprises Domestic Shares 63,746,040 ()  Interests of controlled
Corp. AR (Note 4)  corporations
S-ERNERAT 63,746,040(%)  (Note 5)
(Ftsr4)  REHIEEER
(Fitsx 8)
H Shares 237,000 (L)  Beneficial owner
HiR 237,000(%)  (Note 6)
ERBAA
(Ftsx 6)

*
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TF

Approximate

Percentage of Approximate

Non-circulating Percentage of

Shares/ Total Share

Type of H Shares Capital

Interest otk ER iEkE

ERER HEESL ast

Corporate 18.50% (L)(K) 12.95% ()(K)
NG

Corporate 21.82% ()(K) 15.271% ()(&)
A

Corporate 26.26% ()(&) 18.37% (U(&)
NG

Corporate 25.44% (L)(K) 17.81% ()(R)
A

Corporate 0.22% ()(K) 0.07% )(R)
NG
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Report of Directors

EEEHRE

Approximate
Percentage of Approximate
Non-circulating Percentage of
Shares/ Total Share
Name of Number of Type of H Shares Capital
Shareholders Class of Shares Shares Held  Capacity Interest HlEERER/ bl lie S
BRiEE B R FRABE 56 BaEE HEEEA L aalt
Mitsui & Co., Ltd. H Shares 21,340,000 ()  Beneficial owner Corporate 19.86% (L)(%) 5.96% (L)(&)
“HyER g HER 21,340,000(k) E&n#EBA NG
Hongan International Non-listed 65,779,459 (L)  Interest of controlled ~ Corporate 26.26% (L)(%) 18.37% (L)(%)
Investment Co. Ltd. Foreign Shares 65,779,459( &) corporations R
LREBEREEB AT FLmIMER Rt ABER
H Shares 17,222,880 ()  Beneficial owner Corporate 16.03% ()(&) 4.81% (L)(&)
HER 17,222,880(%) E#BERA N
Zhang Shaoxia Non-listed 46351961 () Interest of spouse  Personal 18.50% (L)(&) 12.95% (L)(%)
RinE Foreign Shares 46,351,961(R) EBER fHA
FLEMNER (Mx7)
Domestic Shares 54,658,540 (L) Interest of spouse  Personal 21.82% ()(%) 16.27% (L)(%)
RER 54,668,540(%)  EiBfER fEA
(KE7)
Wang Meng Non-listed 65,779,459 (L)  Interest of controlled ~ Personal 26.26% (L)(%) 18.37% (L)(%)
T Foreign Shares 65,779,459(%)  corporations (N
FETNER (Note 8)
REHEEER
(hiiE8)
H Shares 17,222,880 (L) Interest of controlled ~ Personal 16.03% (U(&) 4.81% ()(K)
HiR 17,222,880(%)  corporations fEA
(Note 9)
RESEEER
GRS
Yantai Xingan Domestic 20,000,000 (L)  Beneficial Owner Corporate 7.98% (L)(K) 5.59% (L)(&)
Investment Centre Shares 20,000,000(%k) E&nEBA N
(Limited Partnership) AER
AaBLRERL(EREH)
Tiandi Win-Win Investment  H Shares 11,000,000 () Beneficial owner Corporate 10.24% (L)(K) 3.07% (L(K)
Management Co., Hi& (Note 10)  BZEHEA NG
Limited 11,000,000(%)
(Fta10)
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Name of
Shareholders Class of Shares
Bt Bin%ER

Shenzhen Tiandi Win-Win -~ H Shares
Investment Management  Hfi&

Co., Limited
AIMAERREER
BRAT]

Tiandi Yihao Beverage H Shares
Co., Limited HZ
RZERERERBRAF

Chen Sheng H Shares
BE HR
Ni Zhi Long H Shares
iy HiR
Ma Lin H Shares
S Hi

Number of
Shares Held
iR E

11,000,000 (1)
(Note 10)
11,000,000( &)
(HzE10)

11,000,000 (1)
(Note 10)
11,000,000( &)
(H#10)

11,000,000 (1)
(Note 10)
11,000,000( &)
(HzE10)

5,392,500 (L)
5,392,500(&)

5,392,500 (L)
(Note 11)
5,392,500(%)
(WzE11)

Capacity
EL]

Interest of controlled
corporations
REHEEER

Interest of controlled
corporations
R ZEER

Interest of controlled
corporations
RS EEER

Beneficial owner

BERBBA

Beneficial owner
ERBBA
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Type of
Interest

#RER

Corporate
An

Corporate
NS

Personal

fBA

Personal

fBA

Personal
fHA

Approximate
Percentage of
Non-circulating
Shares/

H Shares
HiEERER
HEESL

10.24% (L)(&)

10.24% (L)(&)

10.24% ()(&)

5.02% (L)(F)

5.02% ()(&)

Approximate
Percentage of
Total Share
Capital
wisRRF
asl

3.07% (U(R)

3.07% V(&)

3.07% ()(&)

151% ()(F)

1.51% ()(F)



Notes:

The letter “L” denotes a long position.

M

*

Mr. Wang An, a Director, was deemed to be interested in these
Non-listed Foreign Shares through his 90% interest in China Pingan
Investment Holdings Limited.

Mr. Wang An, a Director, was deemed to be interested in these
Domestic Shares through his 90% interest in Shandong Andre
Group Co., Ltd* (ILFRZEFEBHRAT]) .

The long position in 65,779,459 Non-listed Foreign Shares was
directly held by Donghua Fruit Industry Co., Ltd.. Based on the
information provided by Donghua Fruit Industry Co., Ltd., Hongan
International Investment Co, Ltd. and Ms. Wang Meng were
deemed to be interested in these 65,779,459 Non-listed Foreign
Shares.

The long position in 63,746,040 Domestic Shares was held by Uni-
President China Holdings Ltd., a non wholly-owned subsidiary
(Bm—EROHAERATD),
through its two wholly-owned subsidiaries, namely, Chengdu
President Enterprises Food Co., Ltd. (K& —DERRARAD
A]), which held 42,418,360 Domestic Shares, and Guangzhou
President Enterprises Co., Ltd. (BM&—%ABBRAF]), which
held 21,327,680 Domestic Shares.

of Uni-President Enterprises Corp.

Pursuant to Part XV of the SFO, Uni-President Enterprises
Corp. (Fi—1EEBRMHAERAT]) was deemed to be interested in
such 63,746,040 Domestic Shares. The 63,746,040 Domestic
Shares were held by a series of controlled corporations of Uni-
President Enterprises Corp. (#i— 1R HAEBR AT, of which
42,418,360 Domestic Shares, representing approximately
11.85% of the total issued share capital of the Company, were
held directly by Chengdu President Enterprises Food Co., Ltd.
(BREB G — ¥R RBMRAT) and 21,327,680 Domestic Shares,
representing approximately 5.96% of the total issued share
capital of the Company, were held directly by Guangzhou
President Enterprises Co., Ltd. (BM&—%ARAF)
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21,327,680l NE ) HE ©
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11.85% @ BESH—ERRBARA
BIEEREAR  WAN21,327,680AE
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HEMG—CEERAREERA -
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(6) These H Shares are beneficially held by Uni-President China
Holdings Ltd..

(7) 46,351,961 Non-listed Foreign Shares and 54,658,540 Domestic
Shares were held by Mr. Wang An, the husband of Ms. Zhang
Shaoxia, and therefore Ms. Zhang Shaoxia was deemed to be
interested in these shares.

(8) Ms. Wang Meng indirectly held 100% of the issued share capital
of Donghua Fruit Industry Co., Ltd., which in turn held 65,779,459
Non-listed Foreign Shares. Therefore Ms. Wang Meng was deemed
to be interested in these shares.

9) Ms. Wang Meng directly held the entire issued share capital of
Hongan International Investment Co., Ltd., which in turn held
17,222,880 H Shares. Therefore, Ms. Wang Meng was deemed
to be interested in these shares.

(10) The long position in 11,000,000 H Shares was held by Shenzhen
Tiandi Win-Win Investment Management Co., Limited (731171 X
HEREEE AR AT, awholly-owned subsidiary of Tiandi Yihao
Beverage Co., Limited (K= SRR (D B RAA]), through its
wholly-owned subsidiary Tiandi Win-Win Investment Management
Co., Limited. Mr. Chen Sheng was deemed to be interested in
these H Shares through his over 70% interest in Tiandi Yihao

Beverage Co., Limited (K= 5% RN A IR A 7).

(11) Mr. Ni Zhi Long, spouse of Ms Ma Lin, held 5,392,500 H Shares
and so Ms Ma Lin was deemed to be interested in these shares.

Competing Interests

None of the Directors, the controlling Shareholder or their respective
associates (as defined under the Listing Rules) had any interest in
a business which competes or may compete with the businesses
of the Group or has or may have any other conflicts of the interest
with the Group.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company maintained
the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules throughout the
year ended 31 December 2019.
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Practices and Procedures of the Board

The Company has adopted the required standard of dealings set
out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules (the “Required Standard”) as
the Company’s code of conduct regarding securities transactions
by its Directors. A copy of the Required Standard was sent to
each Director two months before the date of the Board meeting
to approve the Company’s 2019 annual results, with a reminder
that the Directors cannot deal in the securities and derivatives of
the Company until after such results have been published.

Under the Required Standard, the Directors are required to notify
the chairman of the Board and receive a dated acknowledgement
in writing before dealing in the securities and derivatives of the
Company and, in the case of the chairman of the Board himself,
he must notify the chairman of the Audit Committee and receive
a dated acknowledgement in writing before any dealing.

All Directors, upon specific enquiries, have confirmed that they had
complied with the Required Standard during the reporting period.

Specific employees who are likely to be in possession of
unpublished price-sensitive information of the Group are also
subject to compliance with the Required Standard. No incident of
non-compliance was noted by the Company for the year ended
31 December 2019.

Audit and Review Committee

The Company has established the Audit and Review Committee with
written terms of reference based on the guidelines recommended
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The
primary duties of the Audit and Review Committee are to review
and supervise the financial reporting process and internal control
of the Group, ensuring compliance with Rules 3.21 to 3.24 of
the Listing Rules. Currently the Audit and Review Committee
comprises three independent non-executive Directors, namely
Jiang Hong Qi, who is the chairman of the Audit and Review
Committee, Li Wei, Li Yao (appointed on 26 June 2019) and Li
Tong Ning (resigned on 26 June 2019).
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During the reporting period, the Audit and Review Committee
reviewed the accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group and discussed the internal controls and financial reporting
matters with the Directors, including a review of the annual results
for the year ended 31 December 2019. The Audit and Review
Committee held four meetings during the year with all the then
existing members present.

Compliance with Relevant Laws and
Regulations

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group complied
with all relevant laws and regulations which had a significant
impact on the businesses and operations of the Group in all
material aspects.

Auditor

KPMG Huazhen LLP shall retire and a resolution for its re-
appointment as auditor of the Company will be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

In the past three years, the Company’s auditor remained
unchanged.

By Order of the Board

Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd.*
Wang An

Chairman

6 March 2020
Yantai, the PRC

*
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Report of the Supervisory Committee

To the Shareholders:

The Supervisory Committee (the “Supervisory Committee”) of
Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd.*, in compliance with the
relevant laws and regulations and the Articles of Association, has
conducted its work in accordance with the fiduciary principle, and
has taken up an active role to work seriously and with diligence
to protect the interests of the Company and its Shareholders.

During the year, the Supervisory Committee reviewed cautiously
the operation and development plans of the Company and
provided reasonable suggestions and opinions to the Board. It also
strictly and effectively monitored and supervised the Company’s
management in making significant policies and decisions to ensure
that they were in compliance with the laws and regulations of the
PRC and the Articles of Association, and in the interests of its
Shareholders.

We have reviewed and agreed to the report of the Directors, audited
financial statements and the dividend to be proposed by the Board
for presentation at the forthcoming annual general meeting. We
are of the opinion that the Directors, the chief executive officer
and other senior management of the Company are able to strictly
observe their fiduciary duty, to act diligently, to exercise their
authority faithfully in the best interests of the Company and to
work in accordance with the Articles of Association. The operation
is becoming more regulated and the internal control is constantly
improved. The transactions between the Company and connected
parties are in the interests of the Shareholders as a whole and
under fair and reasonable price.

*
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Up till now, none of the Directors, chief executive officer and
senior management staff had been found to have abused their
authority, damaged the interests of the Company or infringed
upon the interests of its Shareholders and employees. None of
them was found to be in breach of any laws and regulations or
the Articles of Association.

The Supervisory Committee is satisfied with the achievement

and cost-effectiveness of the Company in 2019 and has great
confidence in the future prospect of the Company.

By Order of the Supervisory Committee
Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd.*
Dai Li Ying

6 March 2020

*  For identification purpose only
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KPMG Huazhen Shen Zi No. 2000706

Shareholders of Yantai North Andre Juice Company Limited:

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Yantai
North Andre Juice Company Limited (“Andre”), which comprise
the consolidated and company balance sheets as at 31 December
2019, the consolidated and company income statements, the
consolidated and company cash flow statements, the consolidated
and company statements of changes in shareholders’ equity for
the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present
fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated and company
financial position of Andre as at 31 December 2019, and the
consolidated and company financial performance and cash flows
of Andre for the year then ended in accordance with Accounting
Standards for Business Enterprises issued by the Ministry of
Finance of the People’s Republic of China.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with China Standards
on Auditing for Certified Public Accountants (“CSAs”). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of Andre in accordance
with the China Code of Ethics for Certified Public Accountants
(“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

Auditors’ Report
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Auditors’ Report
BirHE

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the financial
statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate

opinion on these matters.

Loss allowances for trade receivables

For the year ended 31 December 2019

Refer to Note V.2 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting
policies in Note IIl.8 to the significant accounting policies and accounting

estimates.

The Key Audit Matter

As at 31 December 2019, the Andre
and its subsidiaries’ (“Andre Group”)
gross trade receivables amounted to
RMB224,767,293, against which a
loss allowance of RMB8,455,124 was
recorded. The Andre Group’s trade
receivables mainly arose from sales
of condensed fruit juice and related
products.

Management measures the loss
allowance at an amount equal to
lifetime expected credit loss based
on estimated loss rates for the
receivables. The estimated loss rates
take into account the ageing of trade
receivable balances, the repayment
history of Andre Group’s customers,
current market conditions, customer-
specific conditions, and forward-
looking information. Such assessment
involves significant management
judgement and estimation.

Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd.

How the matter was addressed
in our audit

Our audit procedures to assess the
loss allowance for trade receivables
included the following:

¢ obtaining an understanding
of and assessing the design,
implementation and operating
effectiveness of key internal
controls relating to credit control,
debt collection and estimating the
credit loss allowance;

¢ evaluating the Andre Group’s
policy for estimating the credit
loss allowance with reference to
the requirements of the prevailing
accounting standards;

* assessing whether items were
correctly categorised in the trade
receivables ageing report by
comparing individual items therein
with sales invoices and other
relevant underlying documentation
(including the acknowledgement
of receipt of goods or bill of
lading), on a sample basis;
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Impairment of trade receivables (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2019

Refer to Note V.2 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting
policies in Note Ill.8 to the significant accounting policies and accounting

estimates.

The Key Audit Matter

We identified the loss allowance for
trade receivables as a key audit matter
because determining the level of the
loss allowance requires the exercise
of significant management judgement
which is inherently subjective.

How the matter was addressed
in our audit

obtaining an understanding of the
key parameters and assumptions
of the expected credit loss model
adopted by the management,
including the judgement of
segmentation of the accounts
receivable based on credit risk
characteristics of customers
and the historical default data in
management’s estimated loss
rates;

assessing the reasonableness of
management’s loss allowance
estimates by examining the
information used by management
to form such judgements,
including testing the accuracy
of the historical default data and
evaluating whether the historical
loss rates are appropriately
adjusted based on current
economic conditions and forward-
looking information;

inspecting the accuracy of the
calculation of the loss allowance
as at 31 December 2019 based
on the Andre Group’s credit loss
allowance policies; and

inspecting, on a sample basis,
cash receipts from debtors
subsequent to the reporting
date relating to trade receivable
balances as at 31 December
2019.

Auditors’ Report
B HE

P IR SRR AR 4 05 (1)
TSR : 201962

F2HMBREME =  ARNERGHER - &5t
1&H8%ﬂﬂ@ﬁﬂ%&%%ﬁ%%ﬁi apta
BHRAETRL-

RREHER EFHPNAEHEER

MRRRERNETY o BEREEEBRAR
REANEEEHE RBXEE G FE
BEFRBEARTHEE ANER2B LA
M - A B M AR TR %*@%%@E%
RERZR SRERET REFERRRE
e ﬁ%f%%ﬁ%é
T HIE
NREBERSHA
REHBIMERL
EOBES

f EEEER

i # B (2
BEMNAE
B X B R
- FEELED
ERNERLEE
REZAGLERR
&mﬁ&hwkﬁ
WE - FEEEE
QF? B
MR ;

@m%r”
- ﬁf‘

. ZEHNEEE
%E% 8 AT 1R
MNEHHRRER
201912 A31 HiE
REBTENER
i R

m Ol

o BREA RER
2019F 12310
YRR A K -

—Z-AFFH Annual Report 2019

83



Auditors’ Report
BirHE

Other Information

Andre’s management is responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all the information included in 2019
annual report of Andre, other than the financial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there
is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those
Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in accordance with the
Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises, and for the
design, implementation and maintenance of such internal control
necessary to enable that the financial statements are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible
for assessing Andre’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management
either intends to liquidate Andre or to cease operations, or has
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing
Andre’s financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with CSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with CSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Andre’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

Auditors’ Report
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Auditors’ Report
BirHE

e  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on Andre’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause Andre to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether
the financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within Andre Group to express an opinion on the financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence and, where applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current
year and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

KPMG Huazhen LLP Certified Public Accountants
Registered in the People’s Republic of China

Ye Qing (Engagement Partner)

Lau Kin Chun
Beijing, China

6 March 2020
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

EHEERER

As at 31 December 2019
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

201912 A31H
(2BEEN - ARKT)

31 December

31 December

2019 2018
20195 20184
Note BiaE 12A31R 128318
ASSETS gE
Current assets: MEEE
Cash at bank and on hand gkEe VA G 274,050,303 378,686,607
Bills receivable i EE V.2 h2 2,944,118 6,119,488
Accounts receivable FEU R X V.3 -3 216,312,169 170,512,897
Prepayments B FIE V.4 i4 4,676,890 2,756,252
Other receivables H ft e ik V.5 5 86,037,197 728,620
[nventories FE V.6 h+6 647,020,754 494,326,530
Other current assets HinnaEiE V.7 7 20,342,931 28,843,320
Total current assets MEEEART 1,251,384,362 1,081,973,714
Non-current assets: ERPEE
Fixed assets ETEE V.8 -8 687,534,842 738,005,022
Construction in progress EEIR V.9 19 2,442,322 6,263,653
Intangible assets B AE V1o & 10 92,733,394 89,629,235
Goodwill mE VAN R b 5,586,976 5,586,976
Total non-current assets ERBEER ___...188,297,534 839,484,886
Total assets BEA 2,039,681,896 1,921,458,600

The notes on pages 103 to 256 form part of these financial FHIF R E 103 B = F256 B B 53R =< M=t
statements. R R AVAERER D o
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LIABILITIES AND
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Short-term loans
Accounts payable
Contract liabilities
Employee benefits payable
Taxes payable
Other payables

Total current liabilities

Non-current liabilities:
Long-term payables
Deferred income

Total non-current liabilities

Total liabilities

The notes on pages 103 to 256 form

statements.

ARARERZ

nPAE
SEl-pN
FERHRAR
aRAE
FEAT B T 57 A
RRHE
H it

RBRBEA
FREALE :
REERT
BT g
FRBaES

REEs

Consolidated Balance Sheet

Note

V.14
V.15
V.16
VA7
V.18
V.19

V.29

part of these financial

HH B

14
15
16
17
18
19

+29

EHEERER

As at 31 December 2019
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)
2019412 A31H

(2FEE - ARKT)

31 December 31 December
2019 2018

20195 20184
12A31H 12H31H

- 50,000,000

50,333,299 38,189,494
1,068,781 3,916,109
15,698,188 20,939,844
2,667,443 9,772,668
16,807,137 17,949,193
86,574,848 140,767,308
1,634,491 1,687,458
39,000,000 -
... 40634491 1,687,458
127,209,339 142,454,766

TIEHNFE103E £ 5256 8 BB SR K M 5+
BRI IRER MR ER D o
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

EHEERER

As at 31 December 2019
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)
201912 A31H

(£FEE - AR T)

31 December 31 December
2019 2018
2019 2018
Note  fifzk 12A31H 12A31H
LIABILITIES AND REMERES (W)
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY (cont’d)
Shareholders’ equity: PR AR
Share capital A V20 & -20 358,000,000 358,000,000
Capital reserve BANIR ver & 21 17,291,715 17,291,715
Surplus reserve RBLNE V22 m 22 128,215,585 107,581,973
Retained earnings AP V23 & 23 1,408,965,257 1,296,130,146
Total shareholders’ equity kR#gzmA 1912472567 1,779,008,834
Total liabilities and BEABRR R B5t
shareholders’ equity 2,039,681,896 1,921,458,600
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 6 March 2020.
LB RREN2020F3 A6 B EEE S & -
Legal Representative: Wang An Chief Financial Officer: Wang Yan Hui
EEREKA : Tz FESTILEAERA T Sy
Chief Accountant: Li Lei (Company stamp)
SEHBARB A ¢ *% (REIEE)

The notes on pages 103 to 256 form part of these financial TSR E103B E 5256 B A 1SR &R M5
statements. R TR IR HVAERER D o
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ASSETS

Current assets:
Cash at bank and on hand
Bills receivable
Accounts receivable
Prepayments
Other receivables
Inventories
Other current assets

Total current assets

Non-current assets:
Long-term equity investments
Fixed assets
Intangible assets

Total non-current assets

Total assets

The notes on pages 103 to 256 form

statements.

HE
RYEE :
EREe

L €S
FERR
BNFR
Hit YR
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RBBEART
FRPEE :
REBERE
EEEE
BVEE
FRBEEAG

AR

Note

XIV.1
XIV.2

XIV.3

XIv.4

part of these financial

Company Balance Sheet

BAREEE/ERX
As at 31 December 2019
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)
2019412 A31H

(2FEE - ARKT)

31 December 31 December

2019 2018

20194 20184

Bzt 12A31R 128318
231,377,965 300,983,157

+1m 1 1,875,118 6,119,488
+p -2 139,618,261 150,898,112
368,111 28,477

+m -3 278,780,741 144,994,128
59,012,032 100,656,824

5,771,652 26,349,155

716,803,880 730,029,341

+m -4 429,794,824 430,594,744
142,078,302 146,023,213

29,285,600 30,279,883

.. 601,158,726 606,897,840
1,317,962,606 1,336,927,181

TIEHNFE103E 2 5256 8 KB SR K 5+
BRI IR MR ER D o
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Company Balance Sheet

BAREERERER

As at 31 December 2019
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)
201912 A31H

(£FEE - AR T)

LIABILITIES AND
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Short-term loans
Accounts payable
Contract liabilities
Employee benefits payable
Taxes payable
Other payables

Total current liabilities

Total liabilities

Note

ARNERRRZ

nEaE
SEGIEN
FEf R
ARARE
FEATBE T 57
ERHE
H i I

RBRBAT

A g5t

The notes on pages 103 to 256 form part of these financial

statements.
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31 December

31 December

2019 2018
20194 20184

Bzt 12A31R 128318
- 50,000,000

30,577,090 17,768,081

342,560 1,048,734

1,413,686 3,367,283

655,517 293,347

296,387,455 445,499,574

329,376,308 518,877,019

329,376,308 518,877,019

TIEHNFE103E 2 5256 8 BB ISR K M 5+
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Company Balance Sheet

BAREERER
As at 31 December 2019
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

201912 A31H

(2FHE - AR¥T)

31 December

31 December

2019 2018
20194 20184
Note Bzt 12A31H 128318
LIABILITIES AND EETBRRER(E)
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY (cont'd)
Shareholders’ equity: PR R
Share capital R V20  E 20 358,000,000 358,000,000
Capital reserve BARR 43,534,413 43,534,413
Surplus reserve YN 128,215,585 107,581,973
Retained earnings ADBEFIE 458,836,300 308,933,776
Total shareholders’ equity RRES AR 988,586,298 818,050,162
Total liabilities and BEMRRER B

shareholders’ equity

1,317,962,606

1,336,927,181

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 6 March 2020.
LB mRER2020F3 A6 B EEE S L -

Legal Representative: Wang An

EERRA Iz

Chief Accountant: Li Lei
LEHHEBEEEA : *%&

The notes on pages 103 to 256 form
statements.

Chief Financial Officer: Wang Yan Hui
FESHIEREA I e

(Company stamp)
(RRIEE)

part of these financial HIE R E103 B E 5256 B M BT SR KM=

R BREROEKED ©
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Consolidated Income Statement

B O RE R

For the year ended 31 December 2019
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

2019 %

(£FEE - AR T)

2019 2018
Note M 2019 20186
| Operating income — EEHRA V24  H 24 838,127,337  1,067,584,808
Il Less: Operating costs Z R BERK Vo4 R 24 573,842,673 776,593,703
Taxes and surcharges e K n V25 H 25 10,203,441 15,366,547
Selling and distribution expenses HEER V26 R 26 44,780,834 91,211,827
General and administrative expenses EEER V27 R 27 54,272,803 61,467,938
Research and development expenses WEER 2,416,545 2,153,292
Financial expenses HBER V28 F 28 (6,467,940) (15,638,419)
Including: Interest expenses H: FISEM 43,123 1,026,756
Interest income FSUA 4,529,494 162,730
Add:  Other income i Hibles V.29(2) &~ 2902) 2,455,442 2,313,133
Investment income REWE V.30 &30 10,063,052 7,384,819
Including: Income arising from Hep : SR AR 2
derecognition of financial NEREE
assets measured at &R
amortised cost 1,899,684 1,153,260
Credit losses ERREERX V3l & 31 (426,620) (2,962,242)
Impairment losses EERERX V32 32 387,519 (2,412,779)
Gains/(losses) from asset disposals EERERS 31,187 222,456
I Operating profit = BENE V39 R 39 169,537,938 140,975,307
Add: Non-operating income o EEINEA V33  h 33 4,529 7,888
Less: Non-operating expenses W EEITI V.34 34 2,056,152 3,509,795
IV Profit before taxation M- MEesE 169,537,938 137,473,400
Less: Income tax expenses S ER V3  H 35 269,215 137,554
V' Net profit for the year and net profit i FHEREBRERARE
attributable to shareholders of the e lbEd
Company 169,268,723 137,335,846
VI Other comprehensive income, net of tax 75 ~ EfisA IS mMFIAEE = =
VIl Total comprehensive income for the year ~— + ~ A KHEERZE
and total comprehensive income RELDBRRRNGA
attributable to shareholders of the Wishass
Company 169,268,723 137,335,846

The notes on pages 103 to 256 form part of these financial FHIF R E 103 B EF256 B MBI 53R &M=t
statements. R IR AR ER D o
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VIl Earnings per share: N8

(1) Basic earnings per share

(2) Diluted earnings per share

Consolidated Income Statement

(D)mEsR R

CRiRREE

For the year ended 31 December 2019
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

2019 %

(2FEE - ARKT)

2019 2018
Note BizE 20194 20184
V38 738 0.473 0.384
V38 & 38 0.473 0.384

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 6 March 2020.
L EHREREN2020F3 A6 HEES A o

Legal Representative: Wang An
EERERA Iz
Chief Accountant: Li Lei
BRMEBREA &

The notes on pages 103 to 256 form
statements.

Chief Financial Officer:
FERHIEAR

(Company stamp)

(RAIEE)

part of these financial

Wang Yan Hui
e

TIEHNFE103E £ 5256 8 BB SR K 5+
B IR MR ER D o
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Company Income Statement

(SENCIF]

PR

For the year ended 31 December 2019
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

20195 &

(2 #HE - AR¥T)

| Operating income
Il Less: Operating

costs —

Taxes and surcharges

Selling and distribution expenses
General and administrative expenses
Research and development expenses
Financial expenses

Including:

Interest expenses
Interest income

Add: Other income
Investment income

Including:

Income arising from
derecognition of financial
assets measured at
amortised cost

Credit losses
Impairment losses
Gains from asset disposal

ll" Operating profit

Add: Non-operating income
Less: Non-operating expenses

IV Profit before income tax LY
Less: Income tax expenses

V' Net profit for the year i F

VI Other comprehensive income, net of tax P

VIl Total comprehensive income for the year — + + 4%

CEZEIA
S BERA
B R
HEBA
EREMH
HEER
HBEHR
He o FBBA
FEHA
o Hfdas
B Yzs
Heb o UBBRAKAGE
MEREE
RIEER S

ERRERR
BERERR
BERE W

EXAE
e ERIMEA
B EEITH

- FlBeR
B EHRER

Note

XIV.5
XIV.5

XIV.6

2019 2018
BizE 20194 20184
+m -5 504,823,361 621,421,261
4005 421,486,374 555,872,508
2,502,077 3,540,473

22,252,244 45,471,919

18,056,961 20,253,528

2,416,545 2,153,292

(6,688,399) (9,317,666)

6,090 989,723

3,961,924 133,550

1,753,962 2,071,000

+m 6 156,849,834 7,318,644
1,899,684 1,087,260

3,545,408 (2,962,242)

(642,414) (5,066,052)

31,187 181,894

206,335,536 4,990,451

800 160

200 282 207

206,336,136 4,708,404
206,336,136 4,708,404
206,336,136 4,708,404

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 6 March 2020.
LR EREN2020F3 A6 HEEE A o

Legal Representative: Wang An
EERERA FZ
Chief Accountant: Li Lei
BEITHBEEA &

Chief Financial Officer:
TERHIEREA :

(Company stamp)

(RAIEE)

The notes on pages 103 to 256 form part of these financial

statements.
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Cash flows from operating activities:

Proceeds from sale of goods and
rendering of services

Refund of taxes

Proceeds from other operating activities

Sub-total of cash inflows

Payments for goods and services
Payments to and for employees
Payments of various taxes

Payments for other operating activities

Sub-total of cash outflows

Net cash inflow from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets
Investment returns received
Net proceeds from disposal of fixed
assets
Net proceeds from disposal of
equity interests of a subsidiary
Proceeds from other investing activities

Sub-total of cash inflows

Payments for acquisition of
financial Assets

Payments for acquisition of fixed assets,
construction in progress
and intangible assets

Sub-total of cash outflows

Net cash inflow from investing Activities

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
EHEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2019
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

EERBELNATRE
HERAM - RESHRINRS

BEIMHERE

KRR AL SR ARNRS

REEPREMANG
EEAM

XMEERE
X

REEGRS RN

REEDELNRTREFH

Z REBRPELNRAERE

hosREERINRS

REREREFREINRS
REETEEMBENRSFE

RETATBERIINRSFE

BEEMEREEDARNRAS

REEDREMANG

RESHAEINNAS

BREETEE ERIENEN

BEMXMNHRS

RARR SR/ NG

RERYELNREREFE

The notes on pages 103 to 256 form part of these financial
statements.

BREBXNRE
IRBTARABRI XA S

NEMREZEHERNRS

2019 &

(2FHE - AR¥T)

2019 2018
Note Bzt 20195 20184
862,791,515  1,201,175,061

54,535,514 91,155,828

v.40()  E - 40(1) 12,882,112 8,657,160
930,209,141 1,300,988,049

(758,033,890)  (628,331,886)

(67,240,238)  (56,551,050)

(28,254,016)  (43,565,824)

V40Q) R 40P (65,322,813)  (124,925,040)
_(918,850,957) _(853,423,800)

vald) & 41(1) 11,358,184 447,564,249
5,291,430,000  4,310,671,400

10,063,052 7,384,819

- 494,599

VAR R-410) - 40,280,000
V.40@)  E - 4009) 4,529,494 162,730
5,306,022,546  4,358,993,548

(5,291,430,000) (4,310,671,400)

(47,674,271)

(46,960,544)

(5,339,104,271)

(4,357,631,944)

(33,081,725)

1,361,604

TIEHNE103E = 5256 8 BT SR K 5

RAFEHRROERED D
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

EHRERER

For the year ended 31 December 2019
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)
2019 &

(2 #HE - AR¥T)

2019 2018
Note Mzt 2019% 2018
Il Cash flows from financing activities: = - EEEBELHBELRE
Proceeds from borrowings MEETWE MRS = 70,900,000
Proceeds from other financing activities WEEpREZEHERNRS 1,050,000 1,825,000
Sub-total of cash inflows ELFYRETANG 1,050,000 72,725,000
Repayments of borrowings BEERIAMNREE (50,090,000)  (190,090,159)
Payments for dividends AERFISZANREE (35,800,000)  (35,800,000)
Payments for interest EFF SRS (73,080) (1,916,518)
Sub-total of cash outflows ERFHRLTMNG .. (85,963,080 _ (227,806,677)
Net cash outflow from financing activities ~ Z&EHELNELREFE (84,913,080) (155,081,677
IV Effect of foreign currency exchange rate I - BEXREEHHR L RE L% EY
changes on cash and cash equivalents 02 2,000,317 5,443,957
V Net (decrease)/increase in cashand T~ HERBELSEMECRL),/
cash equivalents BN V41(1) & -41(1)  (104,636,304) 299,288,133
Add: Cash and cash equivalents n: ERE KR EEMHE
at the beginning of the year 378,686,607 79,398,474
VI Cash and cash equivalents at N ERBE RASFEMHE
the end of the year VAE)  E 413 274,050,308 378,686,607

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 6 March 2020.
I KR E R2020F3 A6 HBEE LA -

Legal Representative: Wang An Chief Financial Officer: Wang Yan Hui
EEREKA Tz FESHIEREA: e
Chief Accountant: Li Lei (Company stamp)

BAREBEEEA Ex (RRIEE)

The notes on pages 103 to 256 form part of these financial
statements.

R RR BB D
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Company Cash Flow Statement
BARBEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2019
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

2019 Z

(2FHE - AR¥T)

2019 2018
Note Mzt 2019% 2018
| Cash flows from operating activities: — REEPELENHENE
Proceeds from sale of goods HERRKENES 534,966,412 604,287,773
Refund of taxes YR ERE 40,459,999 64,780,225
Proceeds from other operating activities W EpELE RS ERNRS 11,286,986 12,022,574
Sub-total of cash inflows IREEST B A /\at 586,713,397 681,090,572
Payments for goods and services BERm  BEXEBINNRS (548,931,066)  (340,844,329)
Payments to and for employees THEBIUR BRI
0k (17,086,098) (15,623,795)
Payments of various taxes YRNRIEHE (2,193,997 (3,373,319)
Payments for other operating activities TRHEMELETHEBNRS (29,040,547) (63,454,461)
Sub-total of cash outflows RETHRETL NG __(697,251,708) (423,295,904
Net cash outflow from operating activities REEDELNREREFE (10,538,311) 257,794,668

Cash flows from investing activities:
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets

Z REFBELNRERE

KESHEEKREINRS

5,241,430,000

4,282,671,400

Investment retumns received BERENEmIEInAE 156,849,834 35,318,644
Net proceeds from disposal of fixed assets RERTEEMRERNRSFE 167,024 262,590
Net proceeds from disposal of equity RETARREKIIMRSFE
interests of a subsidiary - 19,080,000
Proceeds from other investing activities WE Ef ik RS EENE S 3,961,924 85,871,419
Sub-total of cash inflows RERERSTANG 5,402,408,782  4,423,204,053
Payments for acquisition of financial assets HESREELNNES (5,241,430,000)  (4,282,671,400)
Payments for acquisition of fixed assets BRETEEMI MRS (2,360,828) (2,486,266)
Payments for other investing activities SAMEMEREEDEEN
B (134,011,188) =
Sub-total of cash inflows REEHRSTL NG (6,377,802,016)  (4,285,157,666)
Net cash inflow from investing activities RERHEANRSNEFE 24,606,766 138,046,387

TIEHNFE103E 2 5256 8 BB ISR K M 5+

The notes on pages 103 to 256 form part of these financial
statements.

REABRROBKED °
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Company Cash Flow Statement
BARBAERER

For the year ended 31 December 2019
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

2019 %

(£FEE - AR T)

2019 2018
Note Mzt 2019% 2018
Il Cash flows from financing activities: = ERTHEANBELRE:
Proceeds from borrowings REERNENR S = 50,000,000
Proceeds from other financing activities YR EmEEE RN
B 1,050,000 1,825,000
Sub-total of cash inflows ERTHHEL TN 1,050,000 51,825,000
Repayments of borrowings BREFRIANRE (50,000,000)  (170,000,000)
Payments for dividends PERANZHHR S (35,800,000) (35,800,000)
Payments for interest ERFEZNRERS (73,080) (1,566,518)
Sub-total of cash inflows ZZRPRLM/ NG __(85,873,080)  (207,366,518)
Net cash outflow from financing activities EETHELENREREFE (84,823,080)  (155,541,518)
IV Effect of foreign currency exchange rate 1 ~ ERLEHE 4 RELEBYH
changes on cash and cash equivalents ¥E 1,149,433 | 3,150,397
V' Net (decrease)/increase in cash and - BeRBESENFRY) /#
cash equivalents e (69,605,192) 243,449,934
Add: Cash and cash equivalents at n: FREREEENHE
the beginning of the year 300,983,157 57,533,223
VI Cash and cash equivalents at N ERRERASEEMSE
the end of the year 231,377,965 300,983,157

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 6 March 2020.
ULBA ¥R B R20206F3 HE A BEE E g1 o

Legal Representative: Wang An Chief Financial Officer: Wang Yan Hui
EEREKA : ey TESHIEEEA I e
Chief Accountant: Li Lei (Company stamp)

BEHEBEEA - e (RARIEE)

The notes on pages 103 to 256 form part of these financial HIE R E 103 B E 5F256 B B 53R & M=t
statements. RN T R 2R M AR K EB
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity

ERRERSH X

For the year ended 31 December 2019
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan))
20194 [Z

(2FEE - ARKT)

Other
Share Capital  comprehensive Surplus Retained
capital reserve income reserve earnings Total
Note s k% LN 8 ERBOR  RAENR At
Balance at 1 January 2018 01851 A1REE 358,000,000 17,201,715 - 107,111,132 1,195,065,141 1,677,467,988
Changes in equity for the year FELHEHSE
1. Total comprehensive income 1580aeE - - - - 13733846 137,335,846
2, Appropriation of profts 2HEAE
- Appropriation for surplus resenve  ~REIEHAE V2 12 - - - 470841 (470,841) -
- Distributions to sharefolders -HRRHAR - - - - (35800000 (35,800,000)
Balance at 31 December 2018 N18E12A31A%E 368,000,000 17,291,715 - 107581978 1296,130,146 1,779,003,834
Balance at 1 January 2019 01951 A1REE 358,000,000 17,201,715 - 107,581,973 1,296,130,146 1,779,003,834
Changes in equity for the year AEEHETLE
1, Total comprehensive income 1550aeE - - - - 169,268,723 169,268,723
2. Appropriation of profts 2HENR
- Appropriation for surplus reserve  —RREBIEAATE V2 12 - - - 20633612 (20633612 -
- Distrioutions to shareholders -UREHIE - - - - (35,800,000) (35,800,000
Balance at 31 December 2019 019512A31A%E 358,000,000 17,201,715 - 128,215,585 1,408,965,257 1,912,472,557
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 6 March 2020.
LI RRER2020F3 A6 B EEE S & -
Legal Representative: Wang An Chief Financial Officer: Wang Yan Hui
EEREKA : Tz FESTILEAERA T Sy
Chief Accountant: Li Lei (Company stamp)
SEHBARB A ¢ *% (REIEE)

The notes on pages 103 to 256 form part of these financial FHIF N E 103 B = F256 B MBI SR =< M=t
statements. R R R AVAERER D o
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Company Statement of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity
BRATIRRERSE R

For the year ended 31 December 2019
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

2019 &

(£FEE - AR T)

Other
Share Capital  comprehensive Surplus Retained
capital reserve income reserve earnings Total
Note s k% LN 8 ERBOR  RAENR At
Balance at 1 January 2018 01851 A1REE 358,000,000 43,534,413 - 07,111,132 340496213 849,141,758
Changes in equity for the year FELHEHSE
1. Total comprehensive income 1580aeE - - - - 4708404 4708404
2. Appropriation of profits 2HEAE
- Appropriation for surplus reserve  —RREAIESRDTE V2 12 - - - 470841 (470,841) -
- Distributions to sharefolders -HRENAE - - - - (35800000 (35,800,000)
Balance at 31 December 2018 N18E12A31A%E 358,000,000 43534413 - 107581978 308933776 818,050,162
Balance at 1 January 2019 N19F1A1REE 358,000,000 43,534,413 - 107,581,973 308,933,776 818,050,162
Changes in equity for the year AEEHETLE
1, Total comprehensive income 1550aeE - - - - 206,336,136 206,336,136
2. Appropriation of profts 2HENE
- Appropriation for surplus resenve  ~REIEHAE V2 12 - - - 20633612 (20633612 -
- Distrloutions to shareholders ~UREHIE - - - - (35,800,000) (35,800,000
Balance at 31 December 2019 019512R31A%E 358,000,000 43,534,413 - 128215585 458,836,300 968,586,298
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 6 March 2020.
LI RRER2020F3 A6 B EEE S & -
Legal Representative: Wang An Chief Financial Officer: Wang Yan Hui
EEREKA : T FESTILEAERA T Sy

Chief Accountant: Li Lei
SEHHEEEA : *%&

(Company stamp)
(RRIEE)

The notes on pages 103 to 256 form part of these financial
statements.

REABRROEKEBD ©
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 75 Ak Y o

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

Company status

Yantai North Andre Juice Company Limited (the “Company”),
was named Yantai North Andre Juice Company Limited which
was established in Yantai on 30 March 1996. Headquarter
of the Company is located in Yantai, Shandong Province.

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) are in the manufacture and sale of condensed
juice, pulp, apple essence, pomace and related products.
For information about the subsidiaries of the Company, refer
to Note VII.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on the going
concern basis.

Significantaccounting policies and accounting
estimates

Accounting policies for the recognition and measurement of
provisions for receivables, recognition of cost of inventories,
depreciation of fixed assets, amortisation of intangible assets,
and revenue recognition and measurement of the Group
are adopted according to the specific characteristics of the
Company’s operations. Please refer to the relevant notes on
accounting policies.

1 Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with the requirements of Accounting Standards for
Business Enterprises issued by the Ministry of Finance
(MOF) of the People’s Republic of China (PRC) and present
truly and completely the consolidated financial position
and financial position of the Company as at 31 December
2019, and the consolidated and the Company’s financial
performance and the consolidated and the Company’s
cash flows for the year ended 31 December 2019.

(BRH 5T RS - 2RRE BARET)

ATEFWR

Welt A ZEBRRABRKDER RG]
(ATEREIAARRAREITE
EMEAERAA - RAREN1996
FIA0BEMEML + BIBLLAIL
HEMEN °

RRBRFRA(ATERIAEEH])
TERFLEEHESERIT R
fOBRER LUENREBRE
o ARAFRARMBEEER2RN
gt e

MERRNHRBER

ARRBIAFERLE SERRRU R
% o

AEEERHER - W

R £2 (B e W R TR PR E i B e SR AT
B BHEFENAE  BEEEEMNN
E - BREEMEHEARBARER
Mt EMER S BRERBEASKE
MEARGRERHHIEDN - ABRR
2 R ERAMEE -

1 -BRECESHTEANER
AHBHRERFEPEARLTEH
B 2B (AT RS 7 [ B 3D ) 284
MEESeFENNEXR  BE
SEEM R T AR A 20194F 12
A 318 KA G817 iR 0 A0 B 75 AR
S~ 2019F E R A GHAE & AR AN
KENRERAEHESREMR
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Notes to the financial statements

§t 35 ¥ AR B o

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BR1FFIE RSN - 2B E ML B ARKET)

lll. Significantaccounting policies and accounting AEEESEHEE - E5HEE
estimates (cont’d) (#)

2 Accounting period 2 - E5HIM

The accounting period is from 1 January to 31 December.

Functional currency

The Company’s functional currency is Renminbi and
these financial statements are presented in Renminbi.
Functional currency is determined by the Company and
its subsidiaries on the basis of the currency in which major
income and costs are denominated and settled. Some
of the Company’s subsidiaries have functional currencies
that are different from the Company’s functional currency.
Their financial statements have been translated based on
the accounting policy set out in Note IIl.7.

Accounting treatments for business combinations

involving entities under common control and not

under common control

(1) Business combinations involving entities under
common control
A business combination involving entities under
common control is a business combination in which
all of the combining entities are ultimately controlled
by the same party or parties both before and after
the business combination, and that control is not
transitory. The assets acquired and liabilities assumed
are measured based on their carrying amounts in
the consolidated financial statements of the ultimate
controlling party at the combination date. The
difference between the carrying amount of the net
assets acquired and the consideration paid for the
combination (or the total par value of shares issued) is
adjusted against share premium in the capital reserve,
with any excess adjusted against retained earnings.
Any costs directly attributable to the combination
are recognised in profit or loss when incurred. The
combination date is the date on which one combining
entity obtains control of other combining entities.

104  Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd. & LH ZEFNRARHERATE
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 75 Ak Y o

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FRIFFEAS) - 2 BB BARET)

lll. Significantaccounting policies and accounting
estimates (cont’d)

4 Accounting treatments for business combinations
involving entities under common control and not
under common control (cont’d)

(2) Business combinations involving entities not under
common control
A business combination involving entities not under
common control is a business combination in
which all of the combining entities are not ultimately
controlled by the same party or parties both before
and after the business combination. Where (1) the
aggregate of the acquisition-date fair value of assets
transferred (including the acquirer’s previously held
equity interest in the acquiree), liabilities incurred or
assumed, and equity securities issued by the acquirer,
in exchange for control of the acquiree, exceeds (2)
the acquirer’s interest in the acquisition-date fair
value of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets, the
difference is recognised as goodwill (see Note II.15).
If (1) is less than (2), the difference is recognised
in profit or loss for the current period. The costs
of issuing equity or debt securities as a part of the
consideration for the acquisition are included in the
carrying amounts of these equity or debt securities
upon initial recognition. Other acquisition-related costs
are expensed when incurred. Any difference between
the fair value and the carrying amount of the assets
transferred as consideration is recognised in profit or
loss. The acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities, if the recognition criteria are met,
are recognised by the Group at their acquisition-date
fair value. The acquisition date is the date on which
the acquirer obtains control of the acquiree.
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Notes to the financial statements

§t 35 ¥ AR B o

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BR1FFIE RSN - 2B E ML B ARKET)

Il. Significantaccounting policies and accounting
estimates (cont’d)

4 Accounting treatments for business combinations
involving entities under common control and not
under common control (cont’d)

(2) Business combinations involving entities not under
common control (cont’d)
For a business combination involving entities not
under common control and achieved in stages, the
Group remeasures its previously-held equity interest
in the acquiree to its acquisition-date fair value and
recognises any resulting difference between the
fair value and the carrying amount as investment
income or other comprehensive income for the
current period. In addition, any amount recognised
in other comprehensive income and other changes
in the owners’ equity under equity accounting in
prior reporting periods relating to the previously-
held equity interest that may be reclassified to profit
or loss are transferred to investment income at the
date of acquisition; Any previously-held equity interest
that is designated as equity investment at fair value
through other comprehensive income, the other
comprehensive income recognised in prior reporting
periods is transferred to retained earnings and surplus
reserve at the date of acquisition.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 75 Ak Y o

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FRIFFEAS) - 2 BB BARET)

lll. Significantaccounting policies and accounting AEEESEHEE - E5HEE
estimates (cont’d) (#)

5 At BRRNERS X

5 Consolidated financial statements

(1) General principles

The scope of consolidated financial statements is based
on control and the consolidated financial statements
comprise the Company and its subsidiaries. Control
exists when the investor has all of following: power
over the investee; exposure, or rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the investee and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over
the investee. When assessing whether the Group has
power, only substantive rights (held by the Group and
other parties) are considered. The financial position,
financial performance and cash flows of subsidiaries
are included in the consolidated financial statements
from the date that control commences until the date
that control ceases.

When the accounting period or accounting policies of
a subsidiary are different from those of the Company,
the Company makes necessary adjustments to the
financial statements of the subsidiary based on the
Company’s own accounting period or accounting
policies. Intra-group balances and transactions, and
any unrealised profit or loss arising from intra-group
transactions, are eliminated when preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in the same way as unrealised gains, unless they
represent impairment losses that are recognised in
the financial statements.

(1)

ABREIRA

B OB RER A G EE A E
BRERTURTE @ BREAR
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MWRRESMEA A & E R
W HBRENERHERETH
BAFEELIREHE - EHE
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BN HBENEEEREN(BRE
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Notes to the financial statements

§t 35 ¥ AR B o

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BR1FFIE RSN - 2B E ML B ARKET)

Il. Significantaccounting policies and accounting
estimates (cont’d)

5 Consolidated financial statements (cont’d)

(2) Subsidiaries acquired through a business combination
Where a subsidiary was acquired during the reporting
period, through a business combination involving
entities under common control, the financial statements
of the subsidiary are included in the consolidated
financial statements based on the carrying amounts
of the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary in the
financial statements of the ultimate controlling party
as if the combination had occurred at the date that
the ultimate controlling party first obtained control. The
opening balances and the comparative figures of the
consolidated financial statements are also restated.

Where a subsidiary was acquired during the reporting
period, through a business combination involving
entities not under common control, the identifiable
assets and liabilities of the acquired subsidiaries are
included in the scope of consolidation from the date
that control commences, based on the fair value of
those identifiable assets and liabilities at the acquisition
date.

(3) Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group loses control over a subsidiary, any
resulting disposal gains or losses are recognised
as investment income for the current period. The
remaining equity interests is re-measured at its fair
value at the date when control is lost. Any resulting
gains or losses are also recognised as investment
income for the current period.

6 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand,
deposits that can be readily withdraw on demand, and
short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and are subject
to an insignificant risk of change in value.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 75 Ak Y o

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FRIFFEAS) - 2 BB BARET)

ATEERHER « FH

lll. Significantaccounting policies and accounting

estimates (cont’d) (8)

7 Foreign currency transactions and translation of 7 S INEEIEFNINERRITE
foreign currency financial statements
When the Group receives capital in foreign currencies NEH B E E AINEIE AE
from investors, the capital is translated to Renminbi at AEEE HAHERTEAEAR
the spot exchange rate at the date of the receipt. Other WC H {th HNEE X 5 A A 0 R SR B
foreign currency transactions are, on initial recognition, BRZELEHNAEHERTS A
translated to Renminbi at the spot exchange rates on the AR o

dates of the transactions.

Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are REEBEERA @ INEEK IR
translated to Renminbi at the spot exchange rate at the BEEEZEBEEXRTE - &
balance sheet date. The resulting exchange differences HEZNTEERNLEHEERRM
are generally recognised in profit or loss, unless they Y E PR AN S A Al B BE 3 =
arise from the re-translation of the principal and interest B(R2EKsx=13)4  H b
of specific borrowings for the construction of qualifying PEH =5t AEHIEZS - LS
assets (see Note IIl.13). Non-monetary items that are KA EMINEIEEE AR -
measured at historical cost in foreign currencies are MEAR 5% 4 BB HAfE = 47
translated to Renminbi using the exchange rate at the o LR ABEFENINEIES
transaction date. Non-monetary items that are measured OETEH c B AR EEREER
at fair value in foreign currencies are translated using the MBNERIERTHE - AUt EAEME
exchange rate at the date the fair value is determined. HER BRUAREEFER
The resulting exchange differences are recognised in HEEE AEMES WA RER
profit or loss, except for the differences arising from the TEXRENZEZR st AHEMEZESE
re-translation of available-for-sale financial assets, which Wz s =R A BB o

are recognised in other comprehensive income.

7 Foreign currency transactions and translation of 7 INEEBRFIPMERRITE (F)

foreign currency financial statements (cont’d)

Assets and liabilities of foreign operation are translated HISINE BN SRR ETINE
to Renminbi at the spot exchange rate at the balance B EEABRTHNEEMNAERE
sheet date. Equity items, excluding “retained earnings”, HE - RAEEAEXAMANE
are translated to Renminbi at the spot exchange rates at FEXRFTE - [REERBEHRBRI A
the transaction dates. Income and expenses of foreign BEFE [ TEB AN - EfthIB B B 2
operation are translated to Renminbi at the spot exchange AR BNHALE RITE o F R AP
rates at the transaction dates. The resulting translation UK AMEBRIBER @ FLAX S
differences are recognised in other comprehensive income. ABRBIEAERITE o iR bt
The translation differences accumulated in shareholders’ MEELERNINEB BERRITE =
equity with respect to a foreign operation are transferred ¥ EHMGEASREFITR - &
to profit or loss in the period when the foreign operation BIEBINEER - HEE AN B 5
is disposed. WEANMEEZFEREERE AR

EEHES -
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BR1FFIE RSN - 2B E ML B ARKET)

lll. Significantaccounting policies and accounting
estimates (cont’d)

8 Financial instruments
Financial instruments include cash at bank and on
hand, investments in equity securities other than those
classified as long-term equity investment (see Note Ill.10),
receivables, payables, loans and borrowings and share
capital.

(1) Recognition and initial measurement of financial assets
and financial liabilities
A financial asset or financial liability is recognised in
the balance sheet when the Group becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument.

A financial assets (unless it is a trade receivable
without a significant financing component) and
financial liabilities is measured initially at fair value.
For financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss, any related directly attributable
transaction costs are charged to profit or loss; for other
categories of financial assets and financial liabilities,
any related directly attributable transaction costs are
included in their initial costs. A trade receivable without
a significant financing component is initially measured
at the transaction price according to Note II.19.

(2) Classification and subsequent measurement of

financial assets

(@) Classification of financial assets
The classification of financial assets is generally
based on the business model in which a financial
asset is managed and its contractual cash flow
characteristics. On initial recognition, a financial
asset is classified as measured at amortised cost,
at fair value through other comprehensive income
(“FVOCI”), or at fair value through profit or loss
(“FVTPL").
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

Il. Significantaccounting policies and accounting

estimates (cont’d)

8 Financial instruments (cont’d)
(2) Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (cont’d)
(a) Classification of financial assets (cont’d)

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to
their initial recognition unless the Group changes
its business model for managing financial assets
in which case all affected financial assets are
reclassified on the first day of the first reporting
period following the change in the business model.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost
if it meets both of the following conditions and is
not designated as at FVTPL:

— it is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold assets to collect contractual
cash flows; and

— its contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

(BRH 5T RS - 2RRE BARET)

A7§§ At - EataEt

8 £RIEA(E)
Q) e EEMNIEFEE =
(#)
@ ArAEBERMEENDHE

(%)

BRIEAREE L B IR S
BEMEBREN - EHB
BT X EMNEEH
CREETEBENEE
FEHEMNE ERSBHEN
F-—RETEDE - BA
‘fmﬁéﬁ?&%ﬂﬁf*ﬁ@wféT

EITEDEE ©

A SR 8 46 R T A T3
HFERBIEERARAE
ExteE A HESET AL
EBRNERmEE DBEE
DBSHEATENERE
E

- AEEEEZERMEE
HEBEXZARRE
ﬁiﬁzﬁ/llbitﬁ H TT ’

- REBMEENSRRMER
RE - ERFERHES
MEERE - BRYEA
EMURENRE SR
REROMEOAS -
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BR1FFIE RSN - 2B E ML B ARKET)

Il. Significantaccountingpoliciesandaccounting = AFEE®HBE - FiH Gt
estimates (cont’d) (#)
8 Financial instruments (cont’d) 8 &WMTA(HE)
(2) Classification and subsequent measurement of 2 ZFEERDIHMEET =
financial assets (cont'd) (%)
(a) Classification of financial assets (cont’d) @ AAEEcBMEEND
(&)
A debt investment is measured at FVOCI if it $’EI}HHBT?—‘E T 5 i
meets both of the following conditions and is not HEREEEAARARE
designated as at FVTPL: B2 BHEEFHT AEH

Tﬁmﬂﬁimﬂéiﬁ DA
NARBEFELEZS
-JrJ\Eﬁti? Iz M & Bl

— it is held within a business model whose - KREBEEBEZSMEE
objective is achieved by both collecting R ZE SR KB AWE S
contractual cash flows and selling financial FIRERELEZENIA
assets; and LEZEREEAE

12

— its contractual terms give rise on specified - ZEREEMNARIER
dates to cash flows that are solely payments BT ERFTHRHES
of principal and interest on the principal amount HIREME ' ERHEA
outstanding. SMURENETEEHE

REWOFER N °

On initial recognition of an equity investment that HRIER S = I,E\&

is not held for trading, the Group may irrevocably & ANEERENS

elect to present subsequent changes in the H% BE A IETE A

investment’s fair value in other comprehensive UAARBEFFZEEEE

income. This election is made on an investment- STAEMmGEREN SR
by-investment basis. BE - ZIBETHEEEESE

RERE EEH - BAABIKR
ENRBITENARETEE
=L AREE °
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FRIFFEAS) - 2 BB BARET)

Il. Significantaccountingpoliciesandaccounting = ‘AFEE@HBEK - it

estimates (cont’d) (48)

8 Financial instruments (cont’d) 8 &WMTA(HE)
(2) Classification and subsequent measurement of Q) R EEMDEMEEE
financial assets (cont'd) (%)
(a) Classification of financial assets (cont’d) @ AAEEcBMEEND

All financial assets not classified as measured
at amortised cost or FVOCI as described above
are measured at FVTPL. On initial recognition,
the Group may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that otherwise meets the requirements to
be measured at amortised cost or at FVOCI as
at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly
reduces an accounting mismatch that would
otherwise arise.

The business model refers to how the Group
manages its financial assets in order to generate
cash flows. That is, the Group’s business model
determines whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling financial
assets or both. The Group determines the business
model for managing the financial assets according
to the facts and based on the specific business
objective for managing the financial assets
determined by the Group’s key management
personnel.
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7N 52 [ A LA #5 7N E LA 8 o4
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BHEZFHTAEHIBEW
TRIEEE o

EBSREENEBRR
X BREAEEWMFME
BeRMEENELREN
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BRI A FH 2R
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BRENH SR EEETT
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
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ATEERHER « FH

lll. Significantaccounting policies and accounting

estimates (cont’d) (#)
8 Financial instruments (cont’d) 8 2RI A(E
(2) Classification and subsequent measurement of 2 LAEENDENEEE

financial assets (cont’d) (%)
(a) Classification of financial assets (cont’d) @ AEEEsREENDE

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows
are solely payments of principal and interest, the
Group considers the contractual terms of the
instrument. For the purposes of this assessment,
‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial
asset on initial recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined
as consideration for the time value of money and
for the credit risk associated with the principal
amount outstanding during a particular period of
time and for other basic lending risks and costs, as
well as a profit margin. The Group also assesses
whether the financial asset contains a contractual
term that could change the timing or amount of
contractual cash flows such that it would not meet
this condition.
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(B1FRIFFEAS) - 2 BB BARET)
Il. Significantaccounting policies and accounting = NFIEESHEK « E5HEE

estimates (cont’d) (48)

8 Financial instruments (cont’d) 8 &WMTA(HE)
(2) Classification and subsequent measurement of Q) R EEMDEMEEE
financial assets (cont’d) (&)
(o) Subsequent measurement of financial assets b) AEBEmEENREST

=
2

— Financial assets at FVTPL =

UAanBEERAEE
Bt AZHBERNE R

BE
These financial assets are subsequently IR TERE - BINZE
measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, ERMEENAAEEE

including any interest or dividend income, are
recognised in profit or loss unless the financial
assets are part of a hedging relationship.

TREFE - EEA
BxBR(BEFENEM
B MU A ) A E HIE
@ BRIFREREER
REHRERN—FED

Financial assets at amortised cost - UESKAGTERN S
BE
These assets are subsequently measured at YIIETEDR % - WRZE

amortised cost using the effective interest
method. A gain or loss on a financial asset that

TREERAERME
BN AGE -

is measured at amortised cost and is not part AR AT E AT B
of a hedging relationship shall be recognised IR E A EERA — 30
in profit or loss when the financial asset is THEREEMELR

derecognised, through the amortisation
process or in order to recognise impairment
gains or losses.

ﬂ SHIBK - R
C IRIRE RN L
ﬁﬁjzﬁﬁawmﬁﬂv N
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BR1FFIE RSN - 2B E ML B ARKET)

lll. Significantaccountingpoliciesandaccounting = ‘AFEE®HEE - St
estimates (cont’d) (#)

8 -&mIAH)
R EMEEN D BEMEESE

8 Financial instruments (cont’d)
(2) Classification and subsequent measurement of

financial assets (cont’d) (%)
(b) Subsequent measurement of financial assets b) AEBE S REEMNRET
(cont’d) =(8&)

— Debt investments at FVOCI - DAL BHEIESAEES
Bt AR S RaR

EERE

These assets are subsequently measured at
fair value. Interest income calculated using
the effective interest method, impairment
and foreign exchange gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss. Other net gains and
losses are recognised in other comprehensive
income. On derecognition, gains and losses
accumulated in other comprehensive income
are reclassified to profit or loss.

Equity investments at FVOCI

These assets are subsequently measured at
fair value. Dividends are recognised as income
in profit or loss. Other net gains and losses are
recognised in other comprehensive income. On
derecognition, gains and losses accumulated
in other comprehensive income are reclassified
to retained earnings.
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FRIFFEAS) - 2 BB BARET)

lll. Significantaccounting policies and accounting
estimates (cont’d)

8 Financial instruments (cont’d)
(3) Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are classified as measured at FVTPL
or amortised cost.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

A financial liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is
classified as held-for-trading (including derivative
financial liability) or it is designated as such on
initial recognition.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are subsequently
measured at fair value and net gains and losses,
including any interest expense, are recognised in
profit or loss, unless the financial liabilities are part
of a hedging relationship.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Other financial liabilities are subsequently

measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.
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lll. Significantaccounting policies and accounting

ATEERHER « FH

estimates (cont’d) (#)
8 Financial instruments (cont’d) 8 2RI A(E
(4) Offsetting (4) #

Financial assets and financial liabilities are generally SREENGHBEEEESR
presented separately in the balance sheet, and are BEBERAD VIR - B BEHEEIEK
not offset. However, a financial asset and a financial 34 o B2 - RIEmE NoELTE
liability are offset and the net amount is presented ) AAEEIRHE R SREESL
in the balance sheet when both of the following EBEXRANYR

conditions are satisfied:

— the Group currently has a legally enforceable right -
to set off the recognised amounts;

— the Group intends either to settle on a net basis, or —
to realise the financial asset and settle the financial
liability simultaneously.

AEEARBRHEDERS
BAVAERER - BREA
TERENMZE R A ITH ;

AEBFEOFRER -
HEFERZEREEM
BEZEBAE -

(5) Derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities (6) ZEEEMNZ B E ERALIETFE
s
Financial asset is derecognised when one of the MR TAEEz —  NEE
following conditions is met: RILHERZ S RBE -

— the Group’s contractual rights to the cash flows =
from the financial asset expire;

— the financial asset has been transferred and the -
Group transfers substantially all of the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset; or

— the financial asset has been transferred, although —
the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially
all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial asset, it does not retain control over the
transferred asset.
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FRIFFEAS) - 2 BB BARET)

lll. Significantaccounting policies and accounting
estimates (cont’d)

8 Financial instruments (cont’d)
(5) Derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities
(cont’d)
Where a transfer of a financial asset in its entirety
meets the criteria for derecognition, the difference
between the two amounts below is recognised in
profit or loss:

— the carrying amount of the financial asset
transferred measured at the date of derecognition;

— the sum of the consideration received from the
transfer and, when the transferred financial asset
is a debt investment at FVOCI, any cumulative gain
or loss that has been recognised directly in other
comprehensive income for the part derecognised.

The Group derecognises a financial liability (or part
of it) only when its contractual obligation (or part of
it) is extinguished.

ATEERHER « FH

(

&

)

8 -&mIAH)
(6) EHEENT BB EAKLTE

A7

THEEELERN TR
RIEIFR - REER THIRIA
SENERETAE YRS

=3
=

WEBCBEEER LE
RERAREEE

REBZeREEMWKI W
HE BRERGTAHMD
RAEWRENAAEEBEESD
R AP HEL LR
ITHEROFREBN SR
BERNRAEENER
HEPt AR MRS Wat
MERERE ) 2 -

SR BE(RE—#7)KRE
EHCEER - AEEKLE
ERZEMABE(HZBIE
BAE) -

—Z-AFFH Annual Report 2019

119



Notes to the financial statements

§t 35 ¥ AR B o

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
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lll. Significantaccounting policies and accounting AEEESEHEE - E5HEE
estimates (cont’d) (#)

8 Financial instruments (cont’d)
(6) Impairment

8 - &WMITAGE)
(6) JBiE

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected
credit loss (ECL) on:

— financial assets measured at amortised cost; and

— contract assets.

Financial assets measured at fair value, including debt
investments at FVPL, are not subject to the ECL
assessment.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses. Credit losses are measured as the present
value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between
the cash flows due to the entity in accordance with the
contract and the cash flows that the Group expects
to receive).

The maximum period considered when estimating
ECLs is the maximum contractual period (including
extension options) over which the group is exposed
to credit risk.

Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible
default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument.
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FRIFFEAS) - 2 BB BARET)

lll. Significantaccounting policies and accounting AEEESEHEE - E5HEE
estimates (cont’d) (#)

8 - &FMITA(E)
(6) JF1E (%)

8 Financial instruments (cont’d)
(6) Impairment (cont’d)

Measurement of ECLs (cont’d)

12-month ECLs are the portion of ECLs that result
from default events that are possible within the 12
months after the balance sheet date (or a shorter
period if the expected life of the instrument is less
than 12 months).

Loss allowances for trade receivables and contract
assets are always measured at an amount equal
to lifetime ECL. ECLs on these financial assets are
estimated using a provision matrix based on the
Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for factors that are specific to the debtors and an
assessment of both the current and forecast general
economic conditions at the balance sheet date.

Except for trade receivables and contract assets, the
Group measures loss allowance at an amount equal to
12-month ECL for the following financial instruments,
and at an amount equal to lifetime ECL for all other
financial instruments.

— If the financial instrument is determined to have
low credit risk at the balance sheet date;

— If the credit risk on a financial instrument has not
increased significantly since initial recognition.
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lll. Significantaccounting policies and accounting AEEESEHEE - E5HEE
estimates (cont’d) (#)

8 - &FMITA(E)
(6) JF1E (%)

8 Financial instruments (cont’d)
(6) Impairment (cont’d)

Financial instruments that have low credit risk

The credit risk on a financial instrument is considered
low if the financial instrument has a low risk of default,
the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term and
adverse changes in economic and business conditions
in the longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce
the ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash
flow obligations.

The credit risk on fixed deposit which deposit in
commercial bank with higher bank’s credit rating is
considered low.

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of default
occurring on the financial instrument assessed at the
balance sheet date with that assessed at the date of
initial recognition.

122  Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd. & LH ZEFNRARHERATE

BEAREMNERRR

MREMIEANEORRR
B ERAEEHRETES
FRERERGNENRE -
I B BME B RS B B2
MG ERREFE TN ELER
B—EREERABITEAR

ReRERBOLS  ZER
TERBARARENEAR
5 -

AEERSEEBRSEMT
BOBERTHNEHERER
BERER °

ERREREEZEE N
AEEBBLKEMTAESR
ERERBELEZONERR R
EVREABZRLEEONRA
B AHEEEBMITAENT
BHAZEROARNBY R
1t - UFHE SR TANERRE
ERERREECRER
pi



Notes to the Financial Statements

B 75 Ak Y o

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FRIFFEAS) - 2 BB BARET)

lll. Significantaccounting policies and accounting AEEESEHEE - E5HEE
estimates (cont’d) (#)

8 - &FMITA(E)
(6) JF1E (%)

8 Financial instruments (cont’d)
(6) Impairment (cont’d)

Significant increases in credit risk (cont’d)

When determining whether the credit risk of a
financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating ECL, the Group
considers reasonable and supportable information that
is relevant and available without undue cost or effort,
including forward-looking information. In particular, the
following information is taken into account:

failure to make payments of principal or interest
on their contractually due dates;

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in
a financial instrument’s external or internal credit
rating (if available);

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the debtor; and

— existing or forecast changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that have
a significant adverse effect on the debtor’s ability
to meet its obligation to the Group.

Depending on the nature of the financial instruments,
the assessment of a significant increase in credit
risk is performed on either an individual basis or a
collective basis. When the assessment is performed
on a collective basis, the financial instruments are
grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics,
such as past due status and credit risk ratings.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial
asset has increased significantly if it is more than 1
day past due.
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lll. Significantaccounting policies and accounting AEEESEHEE - E5HEE
estimates (cont’d) (#)

8 Financial instruments (cont’d)
(6) Impairment (cont’d)

8 - &FMITA(E)
(6) JF1E (%)

Significant increases in credit risk (cont’d)
The Group considers a financial asset to be in default
when:

— the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations
to the Group in full, without recourse by the Group
to actions such as realising security (if any is held);
or

— the financial asset is more than 60 days past due.

Credit-impaired financial assets

At each balance sheet date, the Group assesses
whether financial assets carried at amortised cost are
credit-impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’
when one or more events that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a
financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following
observable data:

— significant financial difficulty of the borrower or

issuer;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;
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(B1FRIFFEAS) - 2 BB BARET)

lll. Significantaccounting policies and accounting
estimates (cont’d)

8 Financial instruments (cont’d)
(6) Impairment (cont’d)
Credit-impaired financial assets (cont’d)

— for economic or contractual reasons relating to the
borrower’s financial difficulty, the Group having
granted to the borrower a concession that would
not otherwise consider;

— itis probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation; or

— the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

Presentation of allowance for ECL

ECLs are remeasured at each balance sheet date to
reflect changes in the financial instrument’s credit risk
since initial recognition. Any change in the ECL amount
is recognised as an impairment gain or loss in profit
or loss. The Group recognises an impairment gain or
loss for financial assets carried at amortised cost with
a corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount
through a loss allowance account.
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lll. Significantaccounting policies and accounting
estimates (cont’d)

8 Financial instruments (cont’d)

(6)

(7)

Impairment (cont’d)

Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is
written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that
there is no realistic prospect of recovery. A write-off
constitutes a derecognition event. This is generally
the case when the Group determines that the debtor
does not have assets or sources of income that
could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the
amounts subject to the write-off. However, financial
assets that are written off could still be subject to
enforcement activities in order to comply with the
Group’s procedures for recovery of amounts due.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was previously
written off are recognised as a reversal of impairment
in profit or loss in the period in which the recovery
OCCUrs.

Equity instrument

The consideration received from the issuance of equity
instruments net of transaction costs is recognised in
shareholders’ equity. Consideration and transaction
costs paid by the Company for repurchasing self-
issued equity instruments are deducted from
shareholders’ equity.

When the Company repurchases its own shares, those
shares are treated as treasury shares. All expenditure
relating to the repurchase is recorded in the cost of
the treasury shares, with the transaction recording in
the share register. Treasury shares are excluded from
profit distributions and are presented as a deduction
under shareholders’ equity in the balance sheet.
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lll. Significantaccounting policies and accounting AEEESEHEE - E5HEE
estimates (cont’d) (#)

8 -ERMIA(HE)
(7) = TAGE)

8 Financial instruments (cont’d)
(7) Equity instrument (cont’d)

When treasury shares are cancelled, the share capital
should be reduced to the extent of the total par value
of the treasury shares cancelled. Where the cost of the
treasury shares cancelled exceeds the total par value,
the excess is deducted from capital reserve (share
premium), surplus reserve and retained earnings
sequentially. If the cost of treasury shares cancelled is
less than the total par value, the difference is credited
to the capital reserve (share premium).

When treasury shares are disposed of, any excess of
proceeds above cost is recognised in capital reserve
(share premium); otherwise, the shortfall is deducted
against capital reserve (share premium), surplus
reserve and retained earnings sequentially.

Inventories
(1) Classification and cost

Inventories include raw materials, work in progress
and finished goods.

Inventories are initially measured at cost. Cost of
inventories comprises all costs of purchase, costs of
conversion and other expenditure incurred in bringing
the inventories to their present location and condition.
In addition to the purchase cost of raw materials, work
in progress and finished goods include direct labor
costs and an appropriate allocation of production
overheads.
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Il. Significantaccounting policies and accounting =
estimates (cont’d)

9 Inventories (cont’d)
(2) Measurement method of cost of inventories

Cost of inventories recognised is calculated using the BHIFERE R AR iR
weighted average method. R E o

Consumables including low-value consumables and KEZERRBDEYSFEHM
packaging materials are charged to profit or loss upon PHRA — R TS - 5T

ARBEENKALEE R

receipt. The amortisation charge is included in the cost
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of the related assets or recognised in profit or loss for = o
the current period.

(3) Basis for determining the net realisable value and (3) 17 & AJ B 3 jF (B 1) T E 1515 K
method for provision for obsolete inventories FEHEEGR IR L

At the balance sheet date, inventories are carried at
the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs
of completion and the estimated costs necessary to
make the sale and relevant taxes. The net realisable
value of materials held for use in the production is
measured based on the net realisable value of the
finished goods in which they will be incorporated.
The net realisable value of the inventory held to
satisfy sales or service contracts is measured based
on the contract price, to the extent of the quantities
specified in sales contracts, and the excess portion
of inventories is measured based on general selling
prices.

Any excess of the cost over the net realisable value of
each item of inventories is recognised as a provision
for obsolete inventories, and is recognised in profit
or loss.

(4) Inventory count system

The Group maintains a perpetual inventory system.
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FRIFFEAS) - 2 BB BARET)

lll. Significantaccounting policies and accounting
estimates (cont’d)

10 Long-term equity investments
(1) Investment cost of long-term equity investments
(@) Long-term equity investments acquired through a
business combination

The initial cost of a long-term equity investment
acquired through a business combination
involving entities under common control is
the Company’s share of the carrying amount
of the subsidiary’s equity in the consolidated
financial statements of the ultimate controlling
party at the combination date. The difference
between the initial investment cost and the
carrying amount of the consideration given is
adjusted to the share premium in the capital
reserve, with any excess adjusted to retained
earnings.

For a long-term equity investment obtained
through a business combination not involving
entities under common control, the initial cost
comprises the aggregate of the fair value
of assets transferred, liabilities incurred or
assumed, and equity securities issued by
the Company, in exchange for control of the
acquiree.
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lll. Significantaccounting policies and accounting AEEESEHEE - E5HEE
estimates (cont’d) (#)

10 Long-term equity investments (cont’d)
(1) Investment cost of long-term equity investments

10 RERERE (R
(1) REKEREREX L HEE

(cont’d)
(b) Long-term equity investments acquired other than
through a business combination
— A long-term equity investment acquired other
than through a business combination is initially
recognised at the amount of cash paid if the
Group acquires the investment by cash, or at
the fair value of the equity securities issued if
an investment is acquired by issuing equity
securities.

(2) Subsequent measurement of long-term equity

investment

In the Company’s separate financial statements,
long-term equity investments in subsidiaries are
accounted for using the cost method for subsequent
measurement. Except for cash dividends or profit
distributions declared but not yet distributed that have
been included in the price or consideration paid in
obtaining the investments, the Company recognises
its share of the cash dividends or profit distributions
declared by the investee as investment income for
the current period.

The investments in subsidiaries are stated in the
balance sheet at cost less accumulated impairment
losses.
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lll. Significantaccounting policies and accounting AEEESEHEE - E5HEE
estimates (cont’d) (#)

10 Long-term equity investments (cont’d)
(2) Subsequent measurement of long-term equity

10 RERERE (R
Q) RERIERE R EE KRB

investment (cont’d)
For the impairment of the investments in subsidiaries,
refer to Note Ill.16.

In the Group’s consolidated financial statements, long-
term equity investments in subsidiaries are accounted
for in accordance with the policies described in Note
.5.

11 Fixed assets
(1) Recognition of fixed assets

Fixed assets represent the tangible assets held by
the Group for use in production of goods, for rental
or for administrative purposes with useful lives over
one accounting year.

The cost of a purchased fixed asset comprises
the purchase price, related taxes, and any directly
attributable expenditure for bringing the asset to
working condition for its intended use. The cost of
self-constructed assets is measured in accordance
with the policy set out in Note Ill.12.

Where the parts of an item of fixed assets have
different useful lives or provide benefits to the Group
in a different pattern, thus necessitating use of different
depreciation rates or methods, each part is recognised
as a separate fixed asset.
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Il. Significantaccounting policies and accounting =
estimates (cont’d)

11 Fixed assets (cont’d)
(1) Recognition of fixed assets (cont’d)
Any subsequent costs including the cost of replacing

part of an item of fixed assets are recognised as
assets when it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the costs will flow to the Group, and the
carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.
The costs of the day-to-day maintenance of fixed
assets are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Fixed assets are stated in the balance sheet at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

(2) Depreciation of fixed assets

The cost of fixed asset, less its estimated residual value
and accumulated impairment losses, is depreciated
using the straight-line method over its estimated useful
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Il. Significantaccounting policies and accounting = NEEEREE « Fitst
estimates (cont’d) (¥8)
11 Fixed assets (cont’d) N BEEEE(HE)
(2) Depreciation of fixed assets (cont’d) ©) BEEEERITET L (&)
The estimated useful lives, residual value rates and SEETEENFERESD B
depreciation rates of each class of fixed assets are BENFETEXRS P A :
as follows:
Estimated Residual Depreciation
useful life value rate rate
(years) (%) (%)
EHSH SR{EE FHEE
Class ]| (%) (%) (%)
Plant and buildings BB KRS 35 — 40 years 10% 2.25-2.57%
35 - 40%F
Machinery and equipment Hees 20 years 10% 4.50%
20%F
Office and other equipment /A% s & E b 2245 5 years 10% 18.00%
5%
Motor vehicles BT A 5 years 10% 18.00%
5%
Plant and buildings leased  &&MHERLENEE 40 years 10% 2.25%
out under operating leases ~ NMEEEY) 40%F
Useful lives, estimated residual value and depreciation NEBZEVDEFGEEERT H
methods are reviewed at least at each year-end. BTEEENERSS - BOF

REMFTEEETER -
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lll. Significantaccounting policies and accounting AEEESEHEE - E5HEE
estimates (cont’d) (#)

11 Fixed assets (cont’d) N BEEEE(E)

(3) For the impairment of the fixed assets, refer to Note
. 16.

(4) Disposal of fixed assets
The carrying amount of a fixed asset is derecognised:

— when the fixed asset is holding for disposal; or

— when no future economic benefit is expected to
be generated from its use or disposal.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal
of an item of fixed asset are determined as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the item, and are recognised
in profit or loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

12 Construction in progress

The cost of self-constructed assets includes the cost of
materials, direct labour, capitalised borrowing costs (see
Note lll.13), and any other costs directly attributable to
bringing the asset to working condition for its intended
use.

A self-constructed asset is classified as construction in
progress and transferred to fixed asset when it is ready
for its intended use. No depreciation is provided against
construction in progress.

Construction in progress is stated in the balance sheet at
cost less accumulated impairment losses (see Note Ill.16).
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lll. Significantaccounting policies and accounting
estimates (cont’d)

13 Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs incurred directly attributable to the
acquisition and construction of a qualifying asset are
capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. Other borrowing
costs are recognised as financial expenses when incurred.

During the capitalisation period, the amount of interest
(including amortisation of any discount or premium on
borrowing) to be capitalised in each accounting period
is determined as follows:

Where funds are borrowed specifically for the
acquisition and construction of a qualifying asset,
the amount of interest to be capitalised is the interest
expense calculated using effective interest rates
during the period less any interest income earned
from depositing the borrowed funds or any investment
income on the temporary investment of those funds
before being used on the asset.

To the extent that the Group borrows funds generally
and uses them for the acquisition and construction
of a qualifying asset, the amount of borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation is determined by applying
a capitalisation rate to the weighted average of the
excess amounts of cumulative expenditure on the
asset over the above amounts of specific borrowings.
The capitalisation rate is the weighted average of
the interest rates applicable to the general-purpose
borrowings.
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ATEERHER « FH

lll. Significantaccounting policies and accounting

estimates (cont’d) (#)
13 Borrowing costs (cont’d) 13- EREH(E)

The effective interest rate is determined as the rate that REEEEERNERF X
exactly discounts estimated future cash flow through the = 1% 16 R AE T8 B 15 48 HA ) s i AR
expected life of the borrowing or, when appropriate, a MEEHBANRKESRE
shorter period to the initially recognised amount of the IR AZER VIR EREETEN
borrowings. ST ARAE -

During the capitalisation period, exchange differences EERNCEHRER  INEHEFER
related to the principal and interest on a specific-purpose AeREMEMERLEZR + T
borrowing denominated in foreign currency are capitalised BRI T AFEERNEIEHER
as part of the cost of the qualifying asset. The exchange BEBHBKAR o mMERINEEPIE K
differences related to the principal and interest on foreign ZINEY E A ANEE B SRR 4 N H A
currency borrowings other than a specific-purpose BAFEANER ZHIELEMGE
borrowing are recognised as a financial expense when A sTAEHEE -

incurred.

The capitalisation period is the period from the date of BEARLHREEAEBNERE
commencement of capitalisation of borrowing costs to the AR taE N2 R E & AN
date of cessation of capitalisation, excluding any period R EE - EREREEER
over which capitalisation is suspended. Capitalisation {ERERAREEAN - EEAY
of borrowing costs commences when expenditure for HMERBERELEERAFEE
the asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being EZEINEERFERREMMVERN
incurred and activities of acquisition and construction that BEIHOKHGBE  E2E&H
are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use FIRE RN - BEBEFTEERNL
are in progress, and ceases when the assets become IR E & EZEE| T8 E n Rk e
ready for their intended use. Capitalisation of borrowing B EREARAEILEERE - §R
costs is suspended when the acquisition and construction FEEBRNIGHENEELEEA
activities are interrupted abnormally for a period of more R AIEIEE R - B
than three months. MEERAESEAN « AEEEE

fERERNEARL -
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(B1FRIFFEAS) - 2 BB BARET)

lll. Significantaccounting policies and accounting AEEESEHEE - E5HEE
estimates (cont’d) (#)

14 Intangible assets 1 BREE

Intangible assets are stated in the balance sheet at cost
less accumulated amortisation (where the estimated
useful life is finite) and impairment losses (see Note 11.16).
For an intangible asset with finite useful life, its cost less
estimated residual value and accumulated impairment
losses is amortised using the straight-line method over
its estimated useful life, unless the intangible asset is
classified as held for sale.

B EEARANE R 5 H(ER
RERSHERNELEE) MR
BEEBZ2REME= - 16)REE
EBERAIT - HREAS®
BEROETLEE  AEEBER
BEMARAKRESFREMR
FUREEBRIREREETRRE
RASwHAEE  RIEZELE
ENEREFENGRNT

The amortisation period for intangible assets is as follows: B EENEEFERA
Item Amortisation period (years) IHH HEFER(E)
Land use right 35 - 50 years —+ 3h {3 A A 35 - 50F

An intangible asset is regarded as having an indefinite
useful life and is not amortised when there is no foreseeable
limit to the period over which the asset is expected to
generate economic benefits for the Group. At the balance
sheet date, the Group does not have any intangible assets
with indefinite useful life.

Expenditure on an internal research and development
project is classified into expenditure incurred during the
research phase and expenditure incurred during the
development phase.

Expenditure during the research phase is expensed when
incurred. Expenditure during the development phase is
capitalised if development costs can be measured reliably,
the product or process is technically and commercially
feasible, and the Group intends to and has sufficient
resources to complete the development. Capitalised
development costs are stated in the balance sheet at
cost less impairment losses (see Note Ill.16). Other
development expenditure is recognised as an expense
in the period in which it is incurred.

SR B S B OR TR B R SRR B 2
HRNEVEEGRERSH
MENETLEE  YHEREW
BETTHE BEEEABR
B AEEREEASZHTHEE
MELEE -

AEEABARFAEERE O H
7 A FT R BR S A A B B B ST
'I:H o]

MREROH - REERFTA
EHED - MEERNOE - m
RABERNEBERK LTS
ERMmMEmELAT  MAXE
B A 7t R 8 B IR A B A 52 AR B
THE - W ARMERE ST
SitE  AIRBEERAXEES
FTURERE - ERNMEAE B
PR EEE(2 AR E=
16)EEERERAIIR - HbF
HERAEEELNHB AR
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ATEERHER « FH

lll. Significantaccounting policies and accounting

estimates (cont’d) (#)

15 Goodwill 15 -8
The initial cost of goodwill represents the excess of cost of JER —EH TR ES FRKD
acquisition over the acquirer’s interest in the fair value of PR EYIAR AR A AR
the identifiable net assets of the acquiree under a business REFRRESNWEE 5 A ¥R
combination not involving entities under common control. FEEAABEMNBRAZE -
Goodwill is not amortised and is stated in the balance REBEHRHETEE - LARKAHR
sheet at cost less accumulated impairment losses (see 2 REEEGE(RRENE= - 16)
Note lll.16). On disposal of an asset group or a set of EEEBERANYR - BHEEH
asset groups, any attributable goodwill is written off and VHEAEEMASNEEHESZER
included in the calculation of the profit or loss on disposal. FLAEL - st AZHIERS -

16 Impairment of assets other than inventories and 16 REERSREENNEMEE
financial assets RAE
The carrying amounts of the following assets are reviewed REBHEEEBGBRAREANI
at each balance sheet date based on internal and external RINSBEEAEE NI EERR
sources of information to determine whether there is any FERBEMNTR » 81 :
indication of impairment:
- fixed assets - BEEE&EE
— construction in progress - FEEIR
— intangible assets - EBEEE
- long-term equity investments - RHERERE
- goodwill - B2
If any indication exists, the recoverable amount of the REBHFERETENEEHE
asset is estimated. In addition, the Group estimates TRERS @ HErEER T KE
the recoverable amounts of goodwill at each year- S5 o N ERESTERE
end, irrespective of whether there is any indication of R NEBREBFFERTEH
impairment. Goodwill is allocated to each asset group BEGEEAKE S - RNEH
or set of asset groups, which is expected to benefit KIBERBEEEHRKELEEHAAS
from the synergies of the combination for the purpose BE S 1 Z 5 O 1 153 [R) BUPE AR &Y
of impairment testing. XmERDEEERDER I

TEULERE FETEERENR -

The recoverable amount of an asset (or asset group, set A ESzERIEEE(HEEAR -
of asset groups) is the higher of its fair value (see Note BEHABAS  TRINAREE
11.117) less costs to sell and its present value of expected (Z2EMaF= 17)REREER
future cash flows. BRFREEEETHT AR KRR N

EMREMEZHARSE °
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estimates (cont’d)

16 Impairment of assets other than inventories and

Notes to the Financial Statements

B 75 Ak Y o

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FRIFFEAS) - 2 BB BARET)

LEEREATEE - FEHhst
(%)

B REEREREEINEMEE

financial assets (cont’d)

An asset group is composed of assets directly related
to cash-generation and is the smallest identifiable group
of assets that generates cash inflows that are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or
asset groups.

The present value of expected future cash flows of an
asset is determined by discounting the future cash flows,
estimated to be derived from continuing use of the asset
and from its ultimate disposal, to their present value using
an appropriate pre-tax discount rate.

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when
the recoverable amount of an asset is less than its
carrying amount. A provision for impairment of the asset
is recognised accordingly. Impairment losses related to
an asset group or a set of asset groups are allocated first
to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated
to the asset group or set of asset groups, and then to
reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in the
asset group or set of asset groups on a pro rata basis.
However, such allocation would not reduce the carrying
amount of an asset below the highest of its fair value less
costs to sell (if measurable), its present value of expected
future cash flows (if determinable) and zero.

Once an impairment loss is recognised, it is not reversed
in a subsequent period.

e ()
BEHABAERSRAMEBENE
EHEK - ERARENRNEE
He  HEAMBEESRAZEARELE
BYNHMEESEEEM -

BERARRASRENRE
RREEGRKECRABRESD MK
REBERAMEENTEF RAKRRE
ME - EERENHATIREY
HETIRROSEIAEE -

Al B EN[FERKA B
ER A E S EEREREEERE
B EENKREEBESRLER
WEEE - B EERSE
ERERKL  fTAEHED -
Brf RN EEREER - &
BEMANEREHAHBESBENR
BEEEL BRI BEZEEM
FEEEAEETEHENKREE
B BREEEMAxEEEMAE
ERREEZIINEMSHEEE
MREEEMGLE - RHEPIE
BEMSREENREEER B
HERENSEENRAEETR
BRZEENAABERERE
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F RREEBARRTT)

Il. Significantaccounting policies and accounting
estimates (cont’d)

17

18
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Fair value measurement
Unless otherwise specified, the Group measures fair value
as follows:

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date.

When measuring fair value, the Group takes into account
the characteristics of the particular asset or liability
(including the condition and location of the asset and
restrictions, if any, on the sale or use of the asset) that
market participants would consider when pricing the asset
or liability at the measurement date, and uses valuation
techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances
and for which sufficient data and other information are
available to measure fair value. Valuation techniques
mainly include the market approach, the income approach
and the cost approach.

Provisions

A provision is recognised for an obligation related to a
contingency if the Group has a present obligation that can
be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation.

REEFZEFRTROBRAF
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Il. Significantaccounting policies and accounting

estimates (cont’d)

18

19

Provisions (cont’d)

A provision is initially measured at the best estimate of
the expenditure required to settle the related present
obligation. Where the effect of the time value of money
is material, provisions are determined by discounting
the expected future cash flows. Factors pertaining to a
contingency such as the risks, uncertainties and time
value of money are taken into account as a whole in
reaching the best estimate. Where there is a continuous
range of possible outcomes for the expenditure required,
and each possible outcome in that range is as likely as
any other, the best estimate is the mid-point of that range.
In other cases, the best estimate is determined according
to the following circumstances:

— Where the contingency involves a single item, the best
estimate is the most likely outcome.

— Where the contingency involves a large population of
items, the best estimate is determined by weighting
all possible outcomes by their associated probabilities.

The Group reviews the carrying amount of a provision at
the balance sheet date and adjusts the carrying amount
to the current best estimate.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is the gross inflow of economic benefits arising
in the course of the Group’s ordinary activities when the
inflows result in increase in shareholders’ equity, other
than increase relating to contributions from shareholders.

(BRH 5T RS - 2RRE BARET)
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19 WA (&)

lll. Significantaccounting policies and accounting =
estimates (cont’d)

19 Revenue recognition (cont’d)

Revenue is recognised when the Group satisfies the
performance obligation in the contract by transferring the
control over relevant goods or services to the customers.

Where a contract has two or more performance
obligations, the Group determines the stand-alone
selling price at contract inception of the distinct good
or service underlying each performance obligation in the
contract and allocates the transaction price in proportion
to those stand-alone selling prices. The Group recognises
as revenue the amount of the transaction price that is
allocated to each performance obligation.

The transaction price is the amount of consideration to
which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for
transferring promised goods or services to a customer,
excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties.
The Group recognises the transaction price only to
the extent that it is highly probable that a significant
reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised
will not occur when the uncertainty associated with the
variable consideration is subsequently resolved. The
consideration which the Group expects to refund to the
customer is recognised as refund liabilities and excluded
from transaction price. Where the contract contains a
significant financing component, the Group recognises the
transaction price at an amount that reflects the price that
a customer would have paid for the promised goods or
services if the customer had paid cash for those goods or
services when (or as) they transfer to the customer. The
difference between the amount of promised consideration
and the cash selling price is amortised using an effective
interest method over the contract term. The Group does
not adjust the consideration for any effects of a significant
financing component if it expects, at contract inception,
that the period between when the Group transfers a
promised good or service to a customer and when the
customer pays for that good or service will be one year
or less.
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(B1FRIFFEAS) - 2 BB BARET)

ATEERHER « FH

lll. Significantaccounting policies and accounting

estimates (cont’d) (#)
19 Revenue recognition (cont’d) 19 WA (48)

The Group satisfies a performance obligation over time ME TGz —  KEEB

if one of the following criteria is met; or otherwise, a REE—ERABTBHNED -

performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time: GH  BREE " RBEEBEITEYD
=%

— the customer simultaneously receives and consumes - EPHEAREERELH R EEIVE
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance as B ERERE B B L T 2R A
the Group performs; BB

- the customer can control the asset created or - EPREMIEHIAEEELBE
enhanced during the Group’s performance; or FRIEZA R

— the Group’s performance does not create an asset - AEERAREFFELDHE
with an alternative use to it and the Group has mEETAERAS: - BARE
an enforceable right to payment for performance BEEEESRPEAGELZR
completed to date. FTES B TERAI B 4930 75 YER

FKIA ©

For performance obligation satisfied over time, the Group HNAEE—RBEANBITHEAER

recognises revenue over time by measuring the progress 7 REBGEZERBRNIZRBRE

towards complete satisfaction of that performance WEERRUWA - BHEE T

obligation. When the outcome of that performance EERER  AEBDLEAR

obligation cannot be measured reasonably, but the Group ANTEETRE SRS R MER - KRR
expects to recover the costs incurred in satisfying the BREEENKASEERKA -

performance obligation, the Group recognises revenue BIBAEERASIERE ML

only to the extent of the costs incurred until such time
that it can reasonably measure the outcome of the
performance obligation.

—Z—-hE&EE3K Annual Report 2019 143



Notes to the financial statements

§t 35 ¥ AR B o

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BR1FFIE RSN - 2B E ML B ARKET)

ATEERHER « FH

lll. Significantaccounting policies and accounting

estimates (cont’d) (#)
19 Revenue recognition (cont’d) 19 WA (48)

For performance obligation satisfied at a point in time, HREX - BIEBETHNBLOSE

the Group recognises revenue at the point in time at %o AEEERFIREGHEBERSR

which the customer obtains control of relevant goods or Sk ARSI SRR BRI A - £

services. To determine whether a customer has obtained HEEFE 2D D BEEm R

control of goods or services, the Group considers the R ANEE=EE N

following indicators: E

— the Group has a present right to payment for the - ANEERZERIBREEZER
goods or services; R U AE R

— the Group has transferred physical possession of the - AEEEEHEZBEROEDEE
goods to the customer; wEPE

- the Group has transferred the legal title of the goods - AEEERZEGNEENE
or the significant risks and rewards of ownership of el P A R ) B E e R
the goods to the customer; and e A =P

— the customer has accepted the goods or services. - HFEEXZERIRBE -

A contract asset is the Group’s right to consideration in AREBEREFPEZER MRS

exchange for goods or services that it has transferred to mAaREKERSENERNE %

a customer when that right is conditional on something T ES SR 1A B R 7 43 2 9N A9 EL At (&

other than the passage of time. The Group recognises loss Z)EAEREEYIR EREE

allowances for expected credit loss on contract assets LATEHA(E A8k A E TR R E

(see Note II.8(6)). Accounts receivable is the Group’s right (2R K= - 86)) - AEEHER

to consideration that is unconditional (only the passage )~ ERE(ERUA AR B i)

of time is required). A contract liability is the Group’s A = W BR (B /Y # Il /B A& e Ui

obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for IB R - ANEB S U sk ERE

which the Group has received consideration (or an amount FPHEMERZFEZER MR

of consideration is due) from the customer. BHEFIERERAESR -
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lll. Significantaccounting policies and accounting

estimates (cont’d) (#)

19 Revenue recognition (cont’d) 19 WA (48)
The following is the description of accounting policies EAREFREWANEEEEIE
regarding revenue from the Group’s principal activities: M EREest EREMET
Sales are recognised when control of the products has HE DN ITH EEE SR PR (A
transferred to the customers, being when the products EmXNRER) BXWEREIT
are delivered to the customers, and there is no unfulfilled METARREYERFERER
obligation that could affect the customers’ acceptance of B BlEemRREeE  c kEBERR
the product. Delivery occurs when the products have been REZHEARMBEENERR
shipped to the specific location (included shipping port, &R EncERETEheE(a
designated delivery point within or without China etc.), FERBEBAIEEMLE - BARINEE
the risk of obsolescence and loss have been transferred REHE)  EERREEBRRE
to the customer, and the customer has accepted the F BEREFEREHEEAREK
products in accordance with the sales contract. Em  BRAERM -
If the customers perform quality inspection when they BEHEARZATEREFPFEH
use the products and pay the consideration at that time, EnRFETESRW  WIRBEE
the products are delivered to the customers when the BERERBEETERIMTH
customers use the products. HEEL  ASBEREFPERE

mis - MR -

20 Contract costs 20 ARKA
Contract costs are either the incremental costs of obtaining SRIKABEAENESREZELRN
a contract with a customer or the costs to fulfil a contract WMEKANKRE RBAIKA o

with a customer.

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are those costs AR EAREBEAERIEESKANIIHE
that the Group incurs to obtain a contract with a customer REBTREERMITISEARN
that it would not have incurred if the contract had not KA(IEEREE) - ZKATE
been obtained e.g. an incremental sales commission. HgEMI O - REEBEFEAS
The Group recognises as an asset the incremental costs ERBEKAERE—HEE -
of obtaining a contract with a customer if it expects to ANEBABREAERZEAER - BIE
recover those costs. Other costs of obtaining a contract HA BE %9 Ui [B] /Y 3% 2 A AN 2 YNEY E
are expensed when incurred. iy RN AT A B HIBES ©
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lll. Significantaccountingpoliciesandaccounting = ‘AFEE®HEE - St
estimates (cont’d) (#)

20 SREKA(E)

20 Contract costs (cont’d)

If the costs to fulfil a contract with a customer are not
within the scope of inventories or other accounting
standards, the Group recognises an asset from the costs
incurred to fulfil a contract only if those costs meet all of
the following criteria:

— the costs relate directly to an existing contract or to a
specifically identifiable anticipated contract, including
direct labour, direct materials, allocations of overheads
(or similar costs), costs that are explicitly chargeable
to the customer and other costs that are incurred only
because the Group entered into the contract;

— the costs generate or enhance resources of the Group
that will be used in satisfying (or in continuing to satisfy)
performance obligations in the future; and

— the costs are expected to be recovered.

Assets recognised for the incremental costs of obtaining
a contract and assets recognised for the costs to fulfil
a contract (the “assets related to contract costs”) are
amortised on a systematic basis that is consistent with
the transfer to the customer of the goods or services to
which the assets relate and recognised in profit or loss for
the current period. The Group recognises the incremental
costs of obtaining a contract as an expense when incurred
if the amortisation period of the asset that the entity
otherwise would have recognised is one year or less.
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lll. Significantaccounting policies and accounting
estimates (cont’d)

20 Contract costs (cont’d)
The Group recognises an impairment loss in profit or loss
to the extent that the carrying amount of an asset related
to contract costs exceeds:

remaining amount of consideration that the Group
expects to receive in exchange for the goods or
services to which the asset relates; less

the costs that relate directly to providing those goods
or services that have not yet been recognised as
expenses.

21 Employee benefits
(1) Short-term employee benefits

Employee wages or salaries, bonuses, social security
contributions such as medical insurance, work injury
insurance, maternity insurance and housing fund,
measured at the amount incurred or occurred at the
applicable benchmarks and rates, are recognised as
a liability as the employee provides services, with a
corresponding charge to profit or loss or included in
the cost of assets where appropriate.

(2) Post-employment benefits — defined contribution plans

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations of the
People’s Republic of China, the Group participated
in a defined contribution basic pension insurance
plan in the social insurance system established and
managed by government organisations. The Group
makes contributions to basic pension insurance
plans based on the applicable benchmarks and rates
stipulated by the government. Basic pension insurance
contributions payable are recognised as a liability as
the employee provides services, with a corresponding
charge to profit or loss or included in the cost of assets
where appropriate.
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lll. Significantaccounting policies and accounting AEEESEHEE - E5HEE
estimates (cont’d) (#)

21 Employee benefits (cont’d)

(3) Termination benefits

When the Group terminates the employment with
employees before the employment contracts expire,
or provides compensation under an offer to encourage
employees to accept voluntary redundancy, a provision
is recognised with a corresponding expense in profit or
loss at the earlier of the following dates:

2 B TH B ()

(3) BERER
AEEERISHARZIMZ
RIfRRR B TS BRI - 3
RSB T B REE X ERM
REATHENEZ £
MENFR @ BRBEEBNE
EWAaE RBFTAEHE

Ny
Ay

fm -

— When the Group cannot unilaterally withdraw the offer - ANEETEEEHFEmELD
of termination remuneration because of an employee 7 [ 28 B B3 (R 51 21 5k 2R
termination plan or a curtailment proposal; B TIRH R ELEE TR

— When the Group has a formal detailed restructuring - AEBEFHMA - EXHS
plan involving the payment of termination benefits MY B REMOEA
and has raised a valid expectation in those affected gl WH - ZEHFEED
that it will carry out the restructuring by starting to FIAE N @ skEmMXEF
implement that plan or announcing its main features 2R HBE T ZEN
to those affected by it. FERD RMESFHF

KRTHASEKEBEH
K& ETEARR o
22 Government grants 22 BURF BN

Government grants are non-reciprocal transfers of
monetary or non-monetary assets from the government
to the Group except for capital contributions from the
government in the capacity as an investor in the Group.

A government grant is recognised when there is reasonable
assurance that the grant will be received and that the
Group will comply with the conditions attaching to the
grant.

If a government grant is in the form of a transfer of a
monetary asset, it is measured at the amount received or
receivable. If a government grant is in the form of a transfer
of a non-monetary asset, it is measured at fair value.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 75 Ak Y o

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

lll. Significantaccounting policies and accounting
estimates (cont’d)

22 Government grants (cont’d)

Government grants related to assets are grants whose
primary condition is that the Group qualifying for them
should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire long-
term assets. Government grants related to income are
grants other than those related to assets.

Grants related to assets shall be used to offset the
book value of relevant assets by the Group. A grant that
compensates the Group for expenses to be incurred in
the future is recognised initially as deferred income, and
released to the other income or non-operating income
in the periods in which the expenses are recognised. A
grant that compensates the Group for expenses already
incurred is recognised in profit or loss, or recorded in the
other income or non-operating income.

Where the Group obtains an interest subsidy for policy-
related preferential loans, the accounting treatment is
as follows:

— Where the government appropriates an interest
subsidy to the lending bank, allowing the latter to
provide loans to an enterprise at a preferential interest
rate, recognizing the loan amount received as the
book-entry value of such loans, and calculating the
relevant loan expenses according to the loan principal
and the preferential interest rate;

— Where the government directly appropriates an interest
subsidy to the Group, the Group shall use the interest
subsidy to offset relevant loan expenses.
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(BR1FFIE RSN - 2B E ML B ARKET)

ATEERHER « FH

lll. Significantaccounting policies and accounting

estimates (cont’d) (#)

23 Income tax 23 FTiSH
Current tax and deferred tax are recognised in profit or BARACESHFNEETAMEE
loss except to the extent that they relate to a business EE(BREEMGEERZ) RS
combination or items recognised directly in equity NEFEEALANAESHI  KNE
(including other comprehensive income). 1% & AT IS B AR E PR S B st

AEHiEL o

Current tax is the expected tax payable calculated at the EHEHRM R AFERTG
applicable tax rate on taxable income for the year, plus any ¥ BEBREREHNMERAESN
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years. TEHAE R FTISH: » I EAEFE

EN TSR AR -

At the balance sheet date, current tax assets and liabilities BEBEBERD WEAEEEAS
are offset only if the Group has a legally enforceable LURZEE SR AEREFMI A S
right to set them off and also intends either to settle on NFRmEEESRSEE - BlEA
a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability BEEFETE - ABEEERER
simultaneously. BEREHAEHAGENEIEE
HFEEDIR o
Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities arise from BEIEFSHREEREIEESTHA
deductible and taxable temporary differences respectively, B RIEE A H D e A M = 2
being the differences between the carrying amounts of JEMTHERMEEZERT - B
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and EEREHEEENAENERABA
their tax bases, which include the deductible losses EEAFREM B ERE - B2
and tax credits carried forward to subsequent periods. REMEE R FE M EIEE
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is MBE IR - BB RE EH
probable that future taxable profits will be available against T2 LA 1R AT A BR 15 B 2k 45 30 7 4K
which deductible temporary differences can be utilised. HERMEE=ENEANTRITEEA
R o

Deferred tax is not recognised for the temporary differences METBROCEEAHRSAERS
arising from the initial recognition of assets or liabilities BEERBRATESFNEDT
in a transaction that is not a business combination and FEEMB TSRS K E
that affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit (or B) BZEXSPEENERMY
deductible loss). Deferred tax is not recognised for taxable ZBRETASELRIEMEH - &
temporary differences arising from the initial recognition MR EAENNEREE=EWD
of goodwill. PEAEBRELERSE ©
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B 75 Ak Y o

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

lll. Significantaccounting policies and accounting
estimates (cont’d)

23 Income tax (cont’d)

At the balance sheet date, deferred tax is measured
based on the tax consequences that would follow from
the expected manner of recovery or settlement of the
carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax
rates enacted at the reporting date that are expected to
be applied in the period when the asset is recovered or
the liability is settled.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at each balance sheet date, and is reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefits
will be utilised. Such reduction is reversed to the extent
that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available.

At the balance sheet date, deferred tax assets and
deferred tax liabilities are offset if all of the following
conditions are met:

— the taxable entity has a legally enforceable right to
offset current tax liabilities and current tax assets;

— different taxable entities which intend either to settle
the current tax liabilities and current tax assets on
a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities
or deferred tax assets are expected to be settled or
recovered.
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BR1FFIE RSN - 2B E ML B ARKET)

lll. Significantaccounting policies and accounting
estimates (cont’d)

24 Operating leases and finance leases
The accounting policies of lease are different before and
after 1 January 2019. The details are as below:

Before 1 January 2019

A lease is classified as either a finance lease or an
operating lease. A finance lease is a lease that transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of a leased asset to the lessee, irrespective of
whether the legal title to the asset is eventually transferred.
An operating lease is a lease other than a finance lease.

(1) Operating lease charges
Rental payments under operating leases are
recognised as part of the cost of another related
asset or as expenses on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.

(2) Assets leased out under operating leases

Fixed assets leased out under operating leases,
are depreciated in accordance with the Group’s
depreciation policies described in Note IIl.11(2).
Impairment losses are recognised in accordance with
the accounting policy described in Note lll.16. Income
derived from operating leases is recognised in profit
or loss using the straight-line method over the lease
term. If initial direct costs incurred in respect of the
assets leased out are material, the costs are initially
capitalised and subsequently amortised in profit or
loss over the lease term on the same basis as the
lease income. Otherwise, the costs are charged to
profit or loss immediately.

Upon the adoption of CAS No.21 — Lease (the “new
lease standard”), the Group has applied the new lease
standard from 1 January 2019. The details are as
below. There are no significant cumulative effects of
initial application of new lease standard. As a result,
the Group has not recognised the adjustment to the
opening balance of retained earnings and the amount
of other relevant items in the financial statement at 1
January 2019, and comparative information has not
been restated.
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B 75 Ak Y o

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

lll. Significantaccounting policies and accounting
estimates (cont’d)

24 Operating leases and finance leases (cont’d)

After 1 January 2019

Lease is a contract that conveys the right to use an asset
for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

At inception of a contract, an entity shall assess whether
the contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time
in exchange for consideration.

To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control
the use of an identified asset for a period of time, an entity
shall assess whether:

— The use of an identified asset is involved in the contract.
An identified asset is explicitly specified or implicitly
specified at the time that the asset is made available
for use by the customer in a contract, when a capacity
or other portion of an asset is an identified asset if
it is physically distinct, otherwise the asset is not an
identified asset, unless it represents substantially all
of the capacity of the asset and thereby provides
the customer with the right to obtain substantially all
of the economic benefits from use of the asset. The
asset is not an identified asset if the supplier has the
substantive right to substitute the asset throughout
the period of use;
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BR1FFIE RSN - 2B E ML B ARKET)

lll. Significantaccounting policies and accounting AEEESEHEE - E5HEE
estimates (cont’d) (#)

24 FHE(])
2019418 1H G4 B i 69 # H

24 Operating leases and finance leases (cont’d)
After 1 January 2019 (cont’d)

The lessee has the right to obtain substantially all of
the economic benefits from use of the identified asset;

The lessee has the right to direct the use of the
identified asset.

The lessee and the lessor shall split the contract for
which contains multiple single lease, and determine
the accounting treatment to every single lease. The
lessee and the lessor shall split the lease component
and non-lease components when the contract
contains both of them. The lessee shall allocate the
consideration in the contract to each lease component
on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the
lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price
of the non-lease components. The lessor shall allocate
the consideration in accordance with the accounting
policy of transaction price allocation described in Note
[1.19.
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ATEERHER « FH

lll. Significantaccounting policies and accounting

estimates (cont’d) (#)
24 Operating leases and finance leases (cont’d) 24 FHE(E)
After 1 January 2019 (cont’d) H20194F 1 A1 H Fit6 B a9
EER(E)

(1) The Group as lessee

At the commencement date, a lessee shall recognise
a right-of-use asset and a lease liability. At the
commencement date, a lessee shall measure the right-
of-use asset at cost. The cost of the right-of-use asset
shall comprise the amount of the initial measurement
of the lease liability, any lease payments made at
or before the commencement date(less any lease
incentives received), any initial direct costs incurred by
the lessee and an estimate of costs to be incurred by
the lessee in dismantling and removing the underlying
asset, restoring the site on which it is located or
restoring the underlying asset to the condition required
by the terms and conditions of the lease.

The Group depreciates the right-of-use asset on a
straight-line basis. If the lease transfers ownership of
the underlying asset to the lessee by the end of the
lease term, the lessee shall depreciate the right-of-
use asset from the commencement date to the end
of the useful life of the underlying asset. Otherwise,
the Group shall depreciate the right-of-use asset from
the commencement date to the earlier of the end of
the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of
the lease term. Impairment losses are recognized in
accordance with the accounting policy described in
Note IIl.16.

At the commencement date, a lessee shall measure
the lease liability at the present value of the lease
payments that are not paid at that date. The lease
payments shall be discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, the Group shall use the incremental
borrowing rate.
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ATEERHER « FH

lll. Significantaccounting policies and accounting

estimates (cont’d) (#)
24 Operating leases and finance leases (cont’d) 24 FHE(E)
After 1 January 2019 (cont’d) H20194F 1.4 1H Fi6 B it 79 %7 1
EER(E)

(1) The Group as lessee (cont’d)

(1) AEBEERABRAE)

The Group shall recognize the interest based on a
constant periodic interest rate on the lease liability
in profit or loss or the cost of underlying assets in
each period during the lease term. The variable lease
payments not included in the measurement of the
lease liability shall be recognized in profit or loss or the
cost of underlying assets in the period when it occurs.

After the commencement date, the Group shall
apply the present value of revised lease payment to
remeasure the lease liability, for the following situations

AR ER B 4% BR B i A0 R B ) =R
AEHERGEEEENAEH
FHMEER - Wt AEHE
SHEBEERAN - KA
AR ENATEHEENRE
EERBERTAZHBEX
HEABERA -

HEMFER AR - BETIE
o AEBERREHREE
NREHREEHNIERER

occurs: & :

18 18 1R B4 (1 78 2t 0 1
SRBLS

— there is a change in the amounts expected to be -
payable under a residual value guarantee;

AR B 1 A 3R B0
Bkt R B ) ¢

— thereis a change in future lease payments resulting —
from a change in an index or a rate used to
determine those payments;

AEBEHBEEERE &
HEZEIRITHEREE
RRFEERELEZ(C
HEMEERIRULEE
EERNERTERB LR
REHEERN—2 -

— there is a change in the assessment of an option -
to purchase, extend or terminate the lease of
underlying asset, or the practical exercise of
an option to extend or terminated the lease is
inconsistent with the original assessment.
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FRIFFEAS) - 2 BB BARET)

lll. Significantaccounting policies and accounting
estimates (cont’d)

24 Operating leases and finance leases (cont’d)
After 1 January 2019 (cont’d)

(1) The Group as lessee (cont’d)

—

The Group shall recognize the amount of the
remeasurement of the lease liability as an adjustment
to the right-of-use asset. However, if the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset is reduced to zero
and there is a further reduction in the measurement
of the lease liability, the Group shall recognize any
remaining amount of the remeasurement in profit or
loss.

The Group as lessor

At the commencement date, the Group shall classify
each of its leases as either an operating lease or a
finance lease. A finance lease is a lease that transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of a leased asset to the lessee, irrespective
of whether the legal title to the asset is eventually
transferred. An operating lease is a lease other than
a finance lease.

At the commencement date, the Group shall
derecognise assets held under a finance lease and
present them as a receivable at an amount equal to the
net investment in the lease. Net investment in the lease
is the sum of any unguaranteed residual value accruing
to the lessor and the lease payments receivable by a
lessor under a finance lease discounted at the interest
rate implicit in the lease.
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ATEERHER « FH

lll. Significantaccounting policies and accounting

estimates (cont’d) (#)
24 Operating leases and finance leases (cont’d) 24 FHE(E)
After 1 January 2019 (cont’d) H20194F 1.4 1H Fi6 B it 79 %7 1
EER(E)

(2) The Group as lessor (cont’d)

(@ AEBEREEAGE)

The Group shall recognise finance income over
the lease term, based on constant periodic rate of
return. The Group shall apply the derecognition and
impairment requirements in accordance with the
accounting policy described in Note II1.8. The variable
lease payments not included in the measurement of
net investment in the lease shall be recognised in profit
or loss when it occurs.

The Group shall recognise lease payments from
operating leases as income on a straight-line basis.
The Group shall add initial direct costs incurred in
obtaining an operating lease to the carrying amount
of the underlying asset and recognise those costs as
an expense over the lease term on the same basis
as the lease income. The variable lease payments not
included in the measurement of lease payments shall
be recognised in profit or loss when it occurs.

Fixed assets leased out under operating leases,
are depreciated in accordance with the Group’s
depreciation policies described in Note Ill.11(2).
Impairment losses are recognised in accordance with
the accounting policy described in Note Il.16.
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

lll. Significantaccounting policies and accounting
estimates (cont’d)

25

26

27

Profit distributions

Dividends or profit distributions proposed in the profit
appropriation plan, which will be approved after the
balance sheet date, are not recognised as a liability at
the balance sheet date but are disclosed in the notes
separately.

Related parties

If a party has the power to control, jointly control or
exercise significant influence over another party, or
vice versa, or where two or more parties are subject to
common control or joint control from another party, they
are considered to be related parties. Related parties may
be individuals or enterprises. Enterprises with which the
Company is under common control only from the State
and that have no other related party relationships are not
regarded as related parties.

Segment reporting

Reportable segments are identified based on operating
segments which are determined based on the structure
of the Group’s internal organisation, management
requirements and internal reporting system after taking the
materiality principle into account. Two or more operating
segments may be aggregated into a single operating
segment if the segments have the similar economic
characteristics and are same or similar in respect of the
nature of each segment’s products and services, the
nature of production processes, the types or classes of
customers for the products and services, the methods
used to distribute the products or provide the services,
and the nature of the regulatory environment.

Inter-segment revenues are measured on the basis of the
actual transaction prices for such transactions for segment
reporting. Segment accounting policies are consistent
with those for the consolidated financial statements.
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lll. Significantaccounting policies and accounting AEEESEHEE - E5HEE
estimates (cont’d) (#)

28 Significant accounting estimates and judgments 28 EESEHEFT R M E

The preparation of the financial statements requires
management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of accounting policies and
the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
Estimates as well as underlying assumptions and
uncertainties involved are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the
period in which the estimate is revised and in any future
periods affected.

Note V.11 and Note VIII contain information about the
assumptions and their risk factors relating to impairment
of goodwill and fair value of financial instruments. Other
key sources of estimation uncertainty are as follows:

— Impairment of accounts receivable

The Group measures loss allowances for trade
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs,
which is calculated using a provision matrix. Expected
loss rates are based on actual loss experience over
the past 3 years. These rates are adjusted to reflect
differences between economic conditions during the
period over which the historic data has been collected,
current conditions and the Group’s view of economic
conditions over the expected lives of the receivables.
Therefore, where the expectations are different from
the original estimates, such differences will impact
the carrying value of receivables and loss for the
impairment of receivables recognised in the period in
which such estimates have been changed.
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Il. Significantaccounting policies and accounting

estimates (cont’d)

28 Significant accounting estimates and judgments
(cont’d)

Provision for impairment of inventories

As described in Note Ill.9, the net realisable value of
inventories is under management’s regular review,
and as a result, provision for impairment of inventories
is recognised for the excess of inventories’ carrying
amounts over their net realisable values. When
making estimates of net realisable value, the Group
takes into consideration the use of inventories and
other information available to form the underlying
assumptions, including the inventories’ market prices
and the Group’s historical operating costs. The actual
selling price, the costs of completion and the costs
necessary to make the sale and related taxes may vary
based on changes in market conditions and product
saleability, manufacturing technology and the actual
use of the inventories, resulting in changes in the
provision for impairment of inventories. The net profit
or loss may then be affected in the period when the
impairment of inventories is adjusted.

Impairment of assets other than inventories and
financial assets

As described in Note IIl.16, assets other than
inventories and financial assets are reviewed at
each balance sheet date to determine whether the
carrying amount exceeds the recoverable amount of
the assets. If any such indication exists, an impairment
loss is recognised.
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lll. Significantaccounting policies and accounting
estimates (cont’d)

28 Significant accounting estimates and judgments
(cont’d)

Impairment of assets other than inventories and
financial assets (cont’d)

The recoverable amount of an asset (or an asset
group) is the greater of its fair value less costs to
sell and its present value of expected future cash
flows. When a market price of the asset (or the asset
group) cannot be obtained reliably, the fair value of
the asset cannot be estimated reliably, the recoverable
amount is calculated based on the present value of
estimated future cash flows. In assessing the present
value of estimated future cash flows, significant
judgements are exercised to estimate the asset’s
production, selling price, related operating expenses
and discount rate to calculate the present value. All
relevant materials which can be obtained are used
for estimation of the recoverable amount, including
the estimation of the production, selling price and
related operating expenses based on reasonable and
supportable assumptions.

Depreciation and amortisation of assets such as fixed
assets and intangible assets

As described in Notes Ill. 11 and 14, assets such as
fixed assets and intangible assets are depreciated
and amortised over their useful lives after taking into
account residual value. The estimated useful lives of
the assets are regularly reviewed to determine the
depreciation and amortisation costs charged in each
reporting period. The useful lives of the assets are
determined based on historical experience of similar
assets and estimated technical changes. If there
have been significant changes in the factors used to
determine the depreciation or amortisation, the rate of
depreciation or amortisation is revised prospectively.
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lll. Significantaccounting policies and accounting
estimates (cont’d)

28 Significant accounting estimates and judgments
(cont’d)

Income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous
jurisdictions. There are many transactions and events
for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. Significant
judgment is required from the Group in determining
the provision for income taxes in each of these
jurisdictions. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the income tax
and deferred tax provisions in the period in which such
determination is made.

29 Changes in significant accounting policies
Description of and reasons for changes in accounting
policies

The Group has applied the recently revised accounting
standards and interpretations in 2019:

CAS No.21 - Leases (Revised) (“New leases standard”)

Notice on Revision of the 2019 lllustrative Financial
Statements (Caikuai [2019] No.6)

Notice on Revision of the 2019 Consolidation Financial
Statements (Caikuai [2019] No.16)

CAS No.7 - Exchange of Non-monetary Assets
(Revised) (“CAS 7 (2019)")

CAS No.12 — Debt Restructuring (Revised) (“CAS 12
(2019)”)
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lll. Significantaccounting policies and accounting
estimates (cont’d)

29 Changes in significant accounting policies (cont’d)
Description of and reasons for changes in accounting
policies (cont’d)

(1) New lease standard
The new lease standard replaces CAS No.21 — Lease
issued by the MOF in 2006 (the “old lease standard”).
The Group has applied the new lease standard from
1 January 2019 and adjusted the related accounting
policies.

The new lease standard rectifies the definition of lease.
The group makes assessment of whether a contract
is, or contains, a lease, under the new lease standard.

e The Group as lessee
Under the old lease standard, a lease is classified
as finance lease or operating lease by whether all
the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of
an underlying asset to the Group.

Under new lease standards, the Group recognizes
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for all leases
(except for short-term leases or leases of low-value
assets with simplified measurement), irrespective
of finance lease or operating lease.

A lessee shall allocate the consideration in the
contract to each lease component on the basis
of the relative stand-alone price of the lease
component and the aggregate stand-alone price
of the non-lease components.
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lll. Significantaccounting policies and accounting AEEESEHEE - E5HEE
estimates (cont’d) (#)

29 TR HRSE (H)
BEHREE AR LKIRE (&)

29 Changes in significant accounting policies (cont’d)
Description of and reasons for changes in accounting
policies (cont’d)

(1) New lease standard (cont’d) (1) FHEEER(E)
e The Group as lessor o AEEERHMEA

No adjustment of the opening balance of retained
earnings and the amount of other relevant items
in the financial statement at 1 January 2019 is
required. The Group has applied the new lease
standard from the first adopt date.

The effect of application of new lease standard to
the financial statement at 1 January 2019

There are no significant cumulative effects of initial
application of new lease standard. As a result,
the Group has not recognised the adjustment to
the opening balance of retained earnings and the
amount of other relevant items in the financial
statement at 1 January 2019, and comparative
information has not been restated.
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Il. Significantaccountingpoliciesandaccounting = ‘AFEE@HBEK - it
estimates (cont’d) (#)

29 Changes in significant accounting policies (cont’d) 2 FTEEFHBREE (&)
Description of and reasons for changes in accounting LR E AR EE ()
policies (cont’d)

(2) Presentation of financial statements 2) BRI SR
The Group has prepared financial statements for the AEERET=[2019] 655
year 2019 in accordance with the presentation format B = [2019] 165 R & &Y BF 155
of the financial statements specified in Caikuai [2019] MARBEAHFBR2019F ﬁ?ﬁ“‘%&
No.6 and Caikuai [2019] No.16. The Group has applied = WRABWPRAELE
the new presentation requirements retrospectively. B TS REKTFR -
The following table provide the effect of adjustments: MBS | AR ENT -
Affected assets and liabilities items in the consolidated 2018F 12 AB1HZFEMNA
balance sheet and company balance sheet as at 31 HEEBEBERNESARIEES
December 2018: ERER :
The Group
201812 831H x5H
Before After
adjustments  Adjustments adjustments
HE AER HEE
Bills receivable JEW 15 - 6,119,488 6,119,488
Accounts receivable FEUBR K - 170,512,897 170,512,897
Bills and JEM =15 &2
accounts receivable JFE U R K 176,632,385  (176,632,385) -

Total &5 -
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lll. Significantaccounting policies and accounting
estimates (cont’d)

29 Changes in significant accounting policies (cont’d)
Description of and reasons for changes in accounting
policies (cont’d)

(2) Presentation of financial statements (cont’d)

=

(BRH 5T RS - 2RRE BARET)

= AEHEERHEE « FiHEH

(

)

29 TR HRSE (H)

BEHREE AR LKIRE (&)
(@) B @R HR(E)

The Company

2018412 A31H b A |
Before After
adjustments  Adjustments adjustments
AR AR AR
Bills receivable A ESi - 6,119,488 6,119,488
Accounts receivable FEUER TR = 150,898,112 150,898,112
Bills and PR &
accounts receivable JE LBR FR 157,017,600  (157,017,600) =
Total =i -

CAS 7 (2019)

CAS 7 (2019) further clarifies the scope of the
standard, specifies the timing for recognition of assets
received and derecognition of assets given up, and
the accounting treatment for cases in which the timing
of recognition and derecognition are inconsistent. The
standard modifies the principle of measurement for
multiple assets received or given up simultaneously
in exchanges of non-monetary assets measured at
fair value. It also requires the disclosure of whether
exchanges of non-monetary assets have commercial
substance and the reasons why they do or do not
have commercial substance.

(3) 2#BI75%(2019)
AERI75%(2019) 481 T IEE 1%
BEXBREANERSE - 87
T 7B E R IR 2 Flig
HEENR I EREITRTE
T RERET— RN SR
BE BRI TUAAREEBAE
ARTENEEBHEERIHR
AR R A BRI H 2 18 B E R
TR - BEINETIE T HIE
EMEERHRELEAEESR
EREFRAMFEEER o
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lll. Significantaccounting policies and accounting

estimates (cont’d) (#)

29 Changes in significant accounting policies (cont’d) 2 FTEEFHBREE (&)
Description of and reasons for changes in accounting LR E AR EE ()
policies (cont’d)

(3) CAS 7 (2019) (cont’d) (3) ERI75%(2019) (%)
The effective date of CAS 7 (2019) is 10 June 2019. #7597 (2019) B 201946 A
Exchanges of non-monetary assets that occurred 10B B HE1T - ¥720194F1 A 1
between 1 January 2019 and the effective date shall H=%8|i1TH 2 ML
be adjusted according to CAS 7 (2019). Retrospective EMEEESIRIBIEZ AR
adjustment is not required for exchanges of non- FEHEITHE » H2019F1 A 1
monetary assets prior to 1 January 2019. The adoption HZREEREESKEEER
of CAS 7 (2019) has no material effect on the financial o NEHETEWHAE - A
position and financial performance of the Group. 5% 2 Bl R R £ B BY B RS AR OR

MEERRELEEATE -

(4) CAS 12 (2019) (4) 2ERI125%7(2019)

CAS 12 (2019) modifies the definition of debt AERII125% (201982 T B E
restructuring to specify the scope of this standard, as HHER - BT ZERRE
well as the application of relevant financial instruments REE - WREEHEALAP D
standards with respect to the recognition, measurement TSR T EMNER  sT=H
and presentation of financial instruments involved in bl ¥R A4 R T B iRRER|H
debt restructuring. For debt restructuring in which HE - HRUNBESEESH
a debt is settled by the transfer of assets, CAS 12 RETEHEHER - 28|12
(2019) modifies the principle of measurement for initial FREO1ER T EEAREIE
recognition of non-financial assets received by the SREEVRERAFNGTER
creditor, and gains or losses of the debtor from debt Al - WHNEBAEBEER
restructuring are recognised without distinguishing FEANFSMEBATHRES
whether they are gains or losses from asset transfer BEEZEEGMESEAER
or debt restructuring. For debt restructuring in which IEE R ETTIIR - HREE
a debt is settled by the issuance of equity instruments e e T B ETERS
to the creditor, CAS 12 (2019) revises the principle S/ - EA1257(2019)E 2k
of measurement for initial recognition of its share of TEEAVBERZA/RMDE
equity by the creditor, and provides more guidance FFERA - WEHRERAH
on the principle of measurement for initial recognition R T ANt R A M
of equity instruments by the debtor. THES| -
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lll. Significantaccounting policies and accounting
estimates (cont’d)

29 Changes in significant accounting policies (cont’d)
Description of and reasons for changes in accounting
policies (cont’d)

(4) CAS 12 (2019) (cont’d)

The effective date of CAS 12 (2019) is 17 June 2019.
Debt restructuring that occurred between 1 January
2019 and the effective date shall be adjusted according
to CAS 12 (2019). Retrospective adjustment is not
required for debt restructuring prior to 1 January 2019.
The adoption of CAS 12 (2019) has no material effect
on the financial position and financial performance of
the Group.

ATEERHER « FH
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IV. Taxation

1 Main types of taxes and corresponding tax rates

I RN

1 EEBBERBE

Tax type Tax basis Tax rate
neE AHR &R nE
Value-added tax (VAT) Output VAT is calculated on product sales and taxable 9%, 10%,

services revenue, based on tax laws. The remaining 11%, 13%,

balance of output VAT, after subtracting the deductible 16%, 17%
input VAT of the period, is VAT payable

BEN BREVEREAENHEEMNERSHBARERTE 9% ~ 10% -
HIENRR - EHIRE AR EETRE - 58 1% ~ 13% -

#BD BRESIEER

16% ~ 17%

Property tax Price based tax: 1.2% of the residual value after
deducting 30% from the original value of the
property; rental income based tax: 12% of the rental

income
FBEM REFHER : REERE —IRBR30% & HRER1.2%5T

{IF : REAEETAERY : 1RESUARI12%ET1F
City maintenance and Based on VAT paid 1%, 5%, 7%

construction tax

YR TR AR ER A RIE I E N EHIE 1% 5% * 7%
Education surcharges Based on VAT paid 3%
B B 1R ESIRE R FHIE 3%
Local education surcharges Based on VAT paid 2%
5B B RIESIEERFHIE 2%
Enterprise income tax Based on taxable profits 15%, 25%
REFTISH 1R IE TR PTIS RRETHE 15% ~ 25%

Note: According to the Notice of the Ministry of Finance and
the State Administration of Taxation on the Adjustment
of the VAT Rate (Cai Shui [2018] No.32), the taxable
business with VAT rates of 17% and 11% were changed
to 16% and 10% respectively from 1 May 2018.
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IV. Taxation (cont’d)

1

Main types of taxes and corresponding tax rates
(cont’d)

According to the Announcement on Policies for Deepening
the VAT Reform of the Ministry of Finance, the State
Taxation Administration and the General Administration
of Customs (Cai Shui [2019] No0.39), the taxable business
with VAT rates of 16% and 10% were changed to 13%
and 9% respectively from 1 April 2019.

According to the Announcement of the State Administration
of Taxation of Shaanxi Province and the Department of
Finance of Shaanxi Province on the Trial Implementation
of the Verification and Deduction Method of Input VAT
of Agricultural Products for the Concentrated Fruit Juice
Industry, the Notice of the Department of Finance of
Shanxi Province and the State Administration of Taxation
of Shanxi Province on the Inclusion of Fruit & Vegetable
Juice Business and Fruit &Vegetable Beverage Business
into the Pilot Scheme for the Verification and Deduction of
Input VAT, as well as the Notice of the State Administration
of Taxation of Dalian and the Finance Bureau of Dalian on
Expanding the Verification and Deduction of Input VAT
on Agricultural Products, the verification and deduction of
input VAT for agricultural products has become applicable
to Baishui Andre Juice Co. Ltd. and Liquan Yitong Juice
Co., Ltd. since January 2014, has become applicable to
Yongji Andre Juice Co., Ltd. since December 2014 and
has become applicable to Dalian Andre Juice Co., Ltd.
since April 2018. When purchasing agricultural products,
the book value of raw materials shall be recognised
according to the VAT inclusive purchase price. When
selling finished goods, the approved deduction of input
VAT shall offset against the operating costs in current
period. Accordingly, the balance of deductible input VAT
at the end of the year does not include the input VAT for
agricultural products if associated finished goods have
not been sold out.

(BRH 5T RS - 2RRE BARET)
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BECHEE BREFER 8
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F16%A10% %5 5% &13%
9% °
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RERBETENALBETEIR
Tt B % TE 0 BR 7 B A 38 A D) A &
(REMBERBMBE R - KREMH
BEEREREEREBEREE
HEZEhASEHEEENA
&) REBZ T RARAKZEF
REUTAER QR FIE R BB R
TAAEBR AT BE2014FE1 A ~ K
ELEMNREATERARE2014
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IV. Taxation (cont’d)

2 Tax preferential benefit
The Company and other domestic subsidiaries are subject
to income tax rate 25% in 2019 (2018: 25%) except for
the following subsidiaries and the overseas subsidiaries
of the Company which were taxed at the local applicable
income tax rates.

(@) According to implementing the Western Development
Program about taxation preferential policy issued by
Ministry of Finance, State Administration of Taxation,
General Administration of Customs (Cai Shui
No0.202[2001]), notice of the State Administration of
Taxation on specific opinions for implementing taxation
policies for the Great Development of the Western
Regions (Guo Shui Fa No.47[2002]), notice of State
Council on implementation of transitional enterprise
income tax incentives (Guo Fa No0.39[2007]), the
Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT
Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law,
notice of Ministry of Finance, State Administration
of Taxation, General Administration of Customs on
implementation of Western Development Program
about taxation policy (Cai Shui No.58[2011]), the
income tax rate is 15% for Baishui Andre Juice Co.,
Ltd. from 2011 to 2020 and 15% for Anyue Andre
Lemon Industry Technology Co., Ltd. from 2017 to
2020.
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IV. Taxation (cont’d)

JRIA(KR)

2 B EE(E)
(o) RIFMEE - BERBRBEERI

2 Tax preferential benefit (cont’d)
(b) According to the announcement of the Ministry of

Finance and the State Administration of Taxation on
the issuance of the scope of primary processing of
agricultural products (for trial Implementation) enjoying
preferential policies of enterprise income tax (Cai Shui
[2008] No. 149), during 2018 and 2019, the produce
and sale of fruit juice by Yantai North Andre Juice
Co., Ltd. and the produce and sale of fruit juice and
bio-stuff by Baishui Andre Juice Co., Ltd., Xuzhou
Andre Juice Co., Ltd., Yantai Longkou Andre Juice
Co., Ltd., Dalian Andre Juice Co., Ltd., Yongji Andre
Juice Co., Ltd., Liquan Yitong Juice Co., Ltd., and
Anyue Andre Lemon Industry Technology Co., Ltd.
are exempt from the PRC income tax.

F[2008] 1495 BN B =5
TEMERERERRNEESR
MmTEE(HIT)RBE)
2018 [E M2019FE @ &
b L EFRET D BER A A
FERBENRERT - F
REEKRELZEFREAERA
A - RINLEFREAERA
7 A REDZEFR R gk
BRAF - RELZEFRET
BRATF ~ KEZEFRET
BRAR BREBREHTE
RAR » TELEMNEIEEZE
REARAREEREENR
B+ RE - EXRAFME
TABEEBUR o
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V. Notes to the consolidated financial statements

1 Cash at bank and on hand

ltem EH
Cash on hand EFRE
Deposits with banks |ITEK
Total =X

As at 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018, there
are no bank deposits with restrictions placed on the
Group’s ownership.

2 Bills receivable

ltem ER
Bank acceptance bills RITRGESR

All of the above bills receivable were due within one year,
and were not pledged.

The carrying amount of undue bills receivable that have
been endorsed and derecognized are RMB1,100,000.
As at 31 December 2019, the remaining maturities of the
derecognized bills ranged from 1 to 5 months.
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I SEHMBERRAEER
1 -E¥ES

2019 2018
2019 20184
78,549 102,994

273,971,754 378,583,613

274,050,303 378,686,607

2019512 A31H Kk20184F12H
318 @ NEEEFEEX DR G
RIERTTIE K ©

2 -FEWERE
2019 2018
2019 20184
2,944,118 6,119,488

tREEEEOS—FAEH
BREE o

MR2019%12A31H » AEEE S
EE K IERER A KRB H Uk =
ErRE S A ARK1,100,000
JC ° 201912 318 - & L7
REEFGHRA1E5EA -
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I EHMBERRAEZERGE)

V. Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(cont’d)

2 Bills receivable (cont’d)
The carrying amount of undue bills receivable that have
been endorsed and derecognized are RMB4,328,596.
As at 31 December 2018, the remaining maturities of the
derecognized bills ranged from 1 to 4 months.

2 - EWNERE(E)
MR2018%F12H31H » "EBE D &
EWE & IEFER A R B H e =
ERERASRE S ARK4,328596
JC ° 2018F 12 31 H - &R |L#E
REBEFGERB124EA -

According to the Bill Law of the People’s Republic of
China, if the acceptance banks of bills receivable that
are discounted or endorsed by the Group refuse to pay A S IRITIEB N R ﬁ%‘;}\‘%ﬁ$
the bills, the bills holders has recourse to the Group. SEEFERE -EZEERA

The Board of Directors believe that there is no significant EEEZER AN IRT TTE%
default risk of the acceptance banks which the bills were RIBITEORR - HRKIEFER
endorsed to and the Group had substantially transferred MEBERE  ASBEEEL L

REPEARKMBEREZE - W0
AEBURREENREREN

almost all the risks and rewards of those bills which have BT ZSEERL&TRAERNER
been endorsed and derecognized. Therefore, the Group A iﬁ@ﬂ\ Aty > NEBEE2FELK L
derecognized these bills in full. HRELERE -
3 Accounts receivable 3~ EWERRR
(1) Accounts receivable by customer type are as follows: (1) JE U B 55 # & 5 28 5l 75 7 %0
T
2019 2018
Customer type XFEER 20195 20184
Third Parties E=5 211,754,002 170,568,056
Related Parties E2):opa) 13,013,291 7,973,345
Sub-total /Nt 224,767,293 178,541,401
Less: Provision for bad and B IR
doubtful debts 8,455,124 8,028,504
Total S8r 216,312,169 170,512,897

—Z-AFFH Annual Report 2019
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V. Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(cont’d)

3 Accounts receivable (cont’d)
(2) The ageing analysis of accounts receivable is as

follows:
Ageing
Within 6 months (inclusive) 618 ALAA(E61EA )
Over 6 months but within 6MAZE1F(E14)

1 year (inclusive)
Over 1 year but within 2 years 1FEZE245 (524 )
(inclusive)

Sub-total N

Less: Provision for bad and B RERAEE
doubtful debts

Total A&t

The ageing is counted starting from the date when
accounts receivable are recognised.
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I EHMBERRAEZERGE)

3~ FEURBRFR (48)
2) FEWIRF LRI DT T -

2019 2018
20195 2018%F

223,227,441 133,249,902

1,531,278 45,288,886

8,574 2,613

224,767,293 178,541,401

8,455,124 8,028,504

216,312,169 170,512,897
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I EHMBERRAEZERGE)

V. Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(cont’d)

3 Accounts receivable (cont’d)
(3) Provision for bad and doubtful debts for accounts

3 EUWR ()
(3) JEMW IR B AR (AT HE )%

receivable is as follows:

The group measures loss allowances for trade
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs,
which is calculated using a provision matrix. As the
group’s historical credit loss experience does not
indicate significantly different loss patterns for different
customer segments, the loss allowance based on past
due status is not further distinguished between the
group’s different customer bases.

The following table provides information about the
group’s exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade
receivables as at 31 Dec 2019 and 31 Dec 2018:

WEWT -
AEERRZBEENEEST
BHINTEHRERBRN SR
ERWARFKHBEER - LA
BHRBEZOBRRHRK
REMFTEEFAREAERX -
REAEENELZR - T
Mo BEPRBEARANENR
BREREER  AaERER
HESAEREERR RE—
FEN NREFEHEE -

T&RHRTHE2019F12 A 31
H&2018412 8318 » K&
B e U BR SR A (5 B R st O &z

BHERIBRNBERESR

Year-end

gross
Expected carrying Year-end loss
loss rate amount allowance
31 Dec 2019 #E2019%F12A31H EWREE SXRERE FREEER
Current (not past due) R H 3% 215,494,975 6,464,849
1 - 30 days past due BHIB0KA 20% 8,964,328 1,792,866
31 - 60 days past due aHs15le0k 40% 184,302 73,721
More than 61 days past due bl PN 100% 123,688 123,688

Total =X 224,767,293 8,455,124
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(B 5IRE s - 2 RREBARRTT)

V. Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(cont’d)

3 Accounts receivable (cont’d)

(3) Provision for bad and doubtful debts for accounts

receivable is as follows: (cont’d)

31 Dec 2018 EE2018%F12A31H
Current (not past due) R Hg

1 - 30 days past due BHS0RA

31 - 60 days past due A1 F60K

More than 61 days past due b PN

Total At

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss
experience. These rates are adjusted to reflect
differences between economic conditions during the
period over which the historic data has been collected,
current conditions and the group’s view of economic
conditions over the expected lives of the receivables.

(4) Movement in the provision for bad and doubtful debts:

Balance under the original [R& @l T EXERI A EREE
financial instruments standards

Impact on initial application of
the new financial instrument

standard

HEEHE

BXRATH SR T AERIR

I EHMBERRAEZERGE)

3 EUWR ()
(3) JEMW R e AR (AT HE 7 )%
BELT - (B)

Year-end

gross
Expected carrying Year-end loss
loss rate amount allowance
ENREAE S£XEESE FEXRARESER
0.81% 144,034,492 1,162,479
6% 21,427,783 1,285,667
26% 10,133,469 2,634,702
100% 2,945,657 2,945,656
178,541,401 8,028,504

BHBRREENBENERE
RBXAERAE  AREBEESR
SRS RN EELR - B
A ) A8 T A 0 L 7 £ B8 P 58
IR FERAANLER R =
EZENERETHE -

(4) ZRREERIZENEN

31 December 31 December

Balance at the beginning of the F#I#4A%E FAEE M FHIsAEE

year /Adjusted balance at the
beginning of the year

Reversals during the year AR [0
Additions during the year REETIR
Balance at the end of the year &%t
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I EHMBERRAEZERGE)

V. Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(cont’d)

3~ IARRR ()
() BEEFOEBER  (2)

3 Accounts receivable (cont’d)
(4) Movement in the provision for bad and doubtful debts:

(cont’d)

The following significant changes in the book value of
accounts receivable resulted in changes in bad debt
provisions for accounts receivable:

As at 31 December 2019, the increase of book value
of unexpired accounts receivable by RMB71,460,483
result in the increase of the provision for bad and
doubtful debts by RMB5,302,370 while the decrease
of book value of overdue accounts receivable by
RMB25,234,591 results in a decrease of provision
for bad and doubtful debts by RMB4,857,750.

As at 31 December 2018, the increase of the default
loss rate in connection with the unexpired accounts
receivable results in the increase of provision for bad
and doubtful debts by RMB1,145,250 even though the
book value of unexpired accounts receivable decreased
by RMB28,254,711. The provision for bad and doubtful
debts increase in further by RMB1,816,992 due to the
increase of book value of overdue accounts receivable
increased by RMB9,175,594.

HE)BHUEWRFERERH

A
=

MR2019F 12 A31H » X @&
HA /9 FE U AR 5% BR T B4 BE 3 0
71,460,483 7T © B £ K
X {5 1% 4N 5,302,370 7T ¢ &
HA #9 FE U BR SR BR T &R B R
25,234,591 + BEURR%ER
4,857, 7507T °

7R2018F 12 A31H + K@
HA #Y FE R BR SR BR &R R R
28,254,711 70 * R E LB
RERIL N - BEURRERIT
hn1,145,2507T 5 0 5 /9 B U
B8R S AR T BR BE I AN 9,175,594
JC o B OB OBR O {12 0
1,816,9927T °
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V. Notes to the consolidated financial statements h SR EEERREEE(E)
(cont’d)

3 Accounts receivable (cont’d)
(5) Five largest accounts receivable by debtor at the end

3 EUWR ()
(5) BRI EZ Sy & I &5 F

of the year

As at 31 December 2019, the subtotal of five largest
accounts receivable of the Group is RMB102,561,300,
representing 46% of the total accounts receivable,
and the provisions of bad and doubtful debts is
RMB3,776,117.

As at 31 December 2018, the subtotal of five largest
accounts receivable of the Group is RMB101,017,128,
representing 57% of the total accounts receivable,
and the provisions of bad and doubtful debts is
RMB4,734,992.

TRERBEHT 5 B FEN BR800
R2019F 128318 « A&EE
FRBEABNEWRERS
51102,561,3007T - 1h FE U BR
RERBREEFTEH46% - 1H
JERHRMIBIREEFERBES
513,776,1177T °

MR2018F12A31H » A&EH
FRBBEABNEWRERS
5+101,017,1287T - 15 FEULBR
RERBREEFTEHS7% - 1H
ERHRMBIREEFRBES
514,734,9927T ©

4 Prepayments 4 - FARFRIE
(1) Prepayments by type are as follows: (1) FETEZLE RIS R0 T

2019 2018
Type sl 20195 20184
Third Parties F=7 4,676,890 2,756,252
Less: Provision for bad and R SEEREE

doubtful debts - -
Total A&t 4,676,890 2,756,252
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V. Notes to the consolidated financial statements h SR EEERREEE(E)
(cont’d)

4 Prepayments (cont’d) 4 ~ FENFIE (&)
(2) The ageing analysis of prepayments is as follows: (2) FEFIEZ BRSO T -
2019 2018
Ageing ARER 20194 20184
Percentage Percentage
Amount (%) Amount (%)
&8 (%) B LEB1l(%)
Within 1 year (inclusive) 15 LAR (1) 4,676,890 100% 2,756,252 100%
The ageing is counted starting from the date when R ETEN X IERR EEEE
prepayments are recognised. N
5 Other receivables 5 - E fih E U X
Notes 2019 2018
ltem B A s 20195 20184
Others HAt (1) 86,037,197 728,620
(1) Others (1) Hh
(@) Other receivables by client are as follows: (@) BESHERASWWT :
2019 2018
Type LWl 20195 2018%F
Third parties E= 86,037,197 728,620

Less: Provision for bad and B EERAEE
doubtful debts = _

Total = 86,037,197 728,620
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V. Notes to the consolidated financial statements h SR EEERREEE(E)

(cont’d)
5 Other receivables (cont’d) 5 HfbpEU R (4E)
(1) Others (cont’d) (1) B (&)

(@) Other receivables by client are as follows: (cont’d)

(@) MEPERIANIT (&)

As at 31 December 2019, the balance of other
receivables of the Group mainly include a
compensation receivable of RMB84,154,999. In
November 2019, a land resumption agreement
was signed by Longkou Natural Resources and
Planning Bureau and Longkou Andre Juice Co.,
Ltd. (“Longkou Andre”) for compensating the
resumption of the land use right of Longkou Andre.
The compensation comprises: (1) BMB45,154,999
for the relocation of land, buildings and other
facilities; (2) RMB39,000,000 for the construction
of new plants and other production facilities.
According to the land resumption agreement,
Longkou Andre transferred the land use right
(with a net book value of RMB13,240,080) and
the buildings and other facilities (with a net book
value of RMB30,880,821) to Longkou Natural
Resources and Planning Bureau before the end
of 2019, and has recognised the corresponding
government compensation of RMB45,154,999.
The compensation of RMB39,000,000 that
related to the construction of new plant and
other production facilities has been accounted
as deferred income. The Group received the
compensation of RMB84,154,999 in January 2020.
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TR B EIE T i
bl ==y DS
B 1 (8 745,154,999 7T
K (2)FE R E M AEER
e 32 7% 47 /€ 7X39,000,000
T ° R ¥R _E it 1 3 [ W 173
& BEAZREFNER2019
FRATE & Ll (BRE
% {6 13,240,080 7T ) & it
EREY R HEY(REF
830,880,821 7T ) & T &
FmEABERMKRER
I % 3R K8 FE R T 4 (8 3K
45,154,999 7T bA % 37 & (&
32 3% 48 8 481 {2 39,000,000
T ABRLE W - Eilla
5T (8 584,154,999 7T 2
R2020%F1 SUE -



Notes to the Financial Statements

B 75 Ak Y o
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C B BARKET)

V. Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(cont’d)

5 Other receivables (cont’d)
(1) Others (cont’d)

(b) The ageing analysis of other receivables is as
follows:

Ageing BREQ

Within 1 year (inclusive)

(inclusive)

Over 2 year but within 3 years 29 ZE3% (534 )
(inclusive)

Sub-total NE

Less: Provision for bad and L AR
doubtful debts

Total A&f

The ageing is counted starting from the date when
other receivables are recognised.

(B 15 BlERE )

1ERAR(E1E)
Over 1 year but within 2 years 1FEZE245 (524 )

5 ~ AWK (F)
(1) Zfb (%)

I EHMBERRAEZERGE)

(o) R AT -

2019 2018
20195 20184
86,015,279 706,252
2,100 22,368
19,818 -
86,037,197 728,620
86,037,197 728,620

ARl B H b FE WK EER A

HEFAETE
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V. Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(cont’d)

6 Inventories

(1) Inventories by category are as follows:

tem

Raw materials
and packaging
materials

Finished goods

Total

As at 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018, no
inventories were pledged as securities by the Group.

I EHMBERRAEZERGE)

6 17K
(1) FESE
2019 2018
20195 20185
Provision for Provision for
impairment of Carrying impairment of Carrying
Book value inventories amount Book value inventories amount
FEER g3 BRER FERE REHE BEERE FRER
R R E%E
33,988,932 - 33,988,932 28,754,267 - 28,754,267
Efm 614,873,140 (1,841,318) 613,031,822 470,537,493 (4,965,230) 465,572,263
= 648,862,072 (1,841,318) 647,020,754 499,291,760 (4,965,230) 494,326,530
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I EHMBERRAEZERGE)

V. Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(cont’d)

6 Inventories (cont’d)
(2) An analysis of the movements of inventories for the
year is as follows:

6 - FE(#H)
Q) FEXRFZHFERITUT -

2019 20195

Balance at the Balance at

beginning Additions Reductions the end

of the year during the year during the year of the year

ltem FHER ENBE FERME FEROE FRBE

Raw materials and RHH R ek

packaging materials 28,754,267 633,484,650 628,249,985 33,988,932

Finished goods Bk 470,537,493 749,001,652 604,666,005 614,873,140

Sub-total et 499,291,760  1,382,486,302  1,232,915,990 648,862,072
Less: Provision for impairment ~ Jl : FEHKE%RE

of inventories 4,965,230 11,770 3,135,682 1,841,318

Total a5 494,326,530 1,382,474,532  1,229,780,307 647,020,754

2018 2018%F

Balance at the Balance at

beginning Additions Reductions the end

of the year  during the year  during the year of the year

Item FaRE EAEE REEINE RERIE FREAE

Raw materials and RIRRB%

packaging materials 32,033,062 450,791,359 454,070,154 28,754,267

Finished goods ERm 742,649,394 537,835,617 809,947,518 470,537,493

Sub-total &t 774,682,456 988,626,976  1,264,017,672 499,291,760
Less: Provision for impairment ~ Jl : FEKE%RE

of inventories 3,672,616 2,505,468 1,212,854 4,965,230

Total At 771,009,840 986,121,508  1,262,804,818 494,326,530
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(cont’d)

6

Inventories (cont’d)
(3) Provision for impairment of inventories

I EHMBERRAEZERGE)

6 -FE(HE)
B) FEE(BER

2019 20195
Balance Additions Balance
at the beginning During at the end of
of the year the year Written back during the year the year
ltem FRER ENBE KEEm EERD N FFBE
Provision Reversals Written-off
B [LE]
Finished goods  EMfm 4,965,230 11,770 (399,289) (2,736,393) 1,841,318
2018 20184
Balance Additions Balance
at the beginning During at the end of the
of the year the year Written back during the year year
ltem FRER EIE RER KERDLE ERBE
Provision Reversals Written-off
&[ a%
Finished goods ~ Efkm 3,672,616 2,505,468 (92,689) (1,120,165) 4,965,230

The Group recognized provision for impairment of
inventories after determination of the net realisable
value of its finished goods with reference to the current
market price and the actual sales of its finished goods.

The estimated selling price used to determine the
net realisable value of inventories varies depending
on whether a sales contract has been concluded.
Where a contract has been concluded, the estimated
selling price of inventories is recognised based on the
contract amount, otherwise, it is determined based
on the average contract price of recently concluded
contracts and the market selling price of similar
products.
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V. Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(cont’d)

I EHMBERRAEZERGE)

7 Other current assets

7 -EfttRBEE

2019 2018
ltem e 2019% 20184
Input VAT recoverable RIS EREIE 20,339,680 28,741,897
Prepaid income tax TR ST 3,251 101,423
Total A&t 20,342,931 28,843,320
8 Fixed assets 8 BEEEE
(1) Fixed assets (1) BT EERBL
Plant&  Machinery &  Office & other
buildings equipment equipment  Motor vehicles Total
EER BORG
fiem il BEY RERGE REMRG 01 it
Cost R
At 1 January 2018 201851718 539,839,107 896,401,476 22,316,364 9,068,448  1,467,615,3%
Additions during the year REA
- Purchases -BE 16,788,067 6,031,579 2,119,988 1,406,449 25,346,083
- Transfers from construction in progress ~FETREA 2,660,881 28,105,590 572,486 191,551 31,530,508
Reductions during the year KERD
- Disposals or retirement ~RELHE (85,285) (4,931,098 (548,359 (1,046,700) (6,611,392)
- Transfers to construction In progress ~E\ERIR - (B0216979) (42,299) - (50,259.261)
- Offset government grants against ~BFERRRE
the book value - (600,000) - - (600,000)
- Other deductions ~Efbs - (196,749) (58,875 - (255,594)
At 31 December 2018 201812731 558202820 874,593,855 24,359,316 9,609,748 1,466,765,739
At 1 January 2019 19117 558,202,820 874,503,855 24,359,316 9,609,748 1,466,765,739
Addtions during the year BEEN
- Purchases -BE 6,093,654 5,902,878 503,296 2,201,093 14,790,921
- Transfers from construction in progress ~FRIREA 6,471,381 6,251,261 - - 12,722,642
Reductions during the year KERYD
- Disposals or retiement A EE (43,494,785)  (16,886,229) (648,536) (379,074 (61,609,524)
- Transfers to construction In progress -ENEEIR (293,000) - - - (293,000
- Offset government grants against ~BARE
the book value - (3,829,200) - - (3,829,200)
At 31 December 2019 20198127318 526,980,070 866,032,565 24,104,076 11,430,867  1,428,547,578
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V. Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(cont’d)

8 Fixed assets (cont’d)
(1) Fixed assets (cont’d)

Item

Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2018
Charge for the year
Reductions during the year
- Disposals or retirement
- Transfers to construction in progress
- Other deductions

At 31 December 2018

At 1 January 2019
Charge for the year
Reductions during the year
- Disposals or retirement
- Transfers to construction in progress

At 31 December 2019

Provision for impairment
At 1 January 2018
Charge for the year

At 31 December 2018

At 1 January 2019
Charge for the year

At 31 December 2019

Carrying amounts
At 31 December 2019

At 31 December 2018

Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd.

AH

ithE
201851418
REHR
~REUEE
-8\RRIE
-Ef

20185127318
201951A1H
R
FERD
-REYHER
-BAERIE
2019512A318
BBER
201811
iR
2018512A318

201961 A1R
FE3HR

2019512318

RERE
2019512318

0185124318

REEFZEFRTROBRAF

I EHMBERRAEZERGE)

8 -EIEEE (M)
(1) BIEEERER ()

Plant&  Machinery &  Office & other
buildings equipment equipment  Motor vehicles Total

RER WORG
BEY BERG REMRG EBIA ait
(145995,781)  (525,665,918) (17,716,329) (7,395,823 (696,773,801)
(10,242,675) (29,198,381) (1,261,732) (350,546 (41,043,334)
76,712 2,342,393 477,280 935,465 3,831,850
- 37,489,353 30,148 - 37,519,501
- 97,627 26,521 - 124,154
(el kbt el b (sien) e i
(156,161,694)  (514,934,026)  (18,434,106) (6,810,904)  (696,341,630)
(10,303,186)  (28,747,503) (1,110,335) (842,265 (41,003,289)
17,125,651 10,543,331 638,483 341,917 28,649,442
101,828 - - - 101,828
(149,237401)  (533,139,098)  (18,905,958) (1,311,192)  (708,593,649)
(16,731,276) (15,687,811) - - (32,419,087)
Mg e S -
(16,731,276)  (15,687,811) - - (32,419,087)
(16,731,276)  (15,687,811) - - (32,419,087)
361,011,393 317,206,656 5,198,118 4,119,675 687,534,842
385,309,850 343,971,118 5,926,210 2,198,844 738,005,022
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
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V. Notes to the consolidated financial statements h SR EEERREEE(E)
(cont’d)

8 Fixed assets (cont’d) 8 BEIEEE(HE)
(1) Fixed assets (cont'd) (1) ElEZER (&)

=

As at 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018,
there are no fixed assets with restrictions placed on
the Group’s ownership.

As at 31 December 2019, the carrying amount of the
Group’s fixed assets includes the property and land
ownership which were purchased in USA in 2019.

In December 2019, Longkou Andre disposed of
its buildings and other facilities due to the land
resumption. The original value of these fixed assets
and the related accumulated depreciation amounted
to RMB55,350,974 and RMB24,470,153, respectively.
See note V.5(1)(a) for details.

Temporarily idle fixed assets
As at 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018, the
Group’s temporarily idle fixed assets are as follows:

7R2019F12 A31H K& 20184
128318 @ NEBEERTARE
ZRRENEEEE °

MR2019F12A31H * EEE
ERAEBEETESAEER
0190F EHEEBEBEENEEK
HApTaHE o

2019127 * EOLZEFE
= H U [0 45 L b 32 SR ) K B
EVMZREEERE  WRE
TE & EJRE55,350,974 T A K
278 24,470,153 © 152
BM&ER ~ 5(1)@) °

(2) EHFEERETEEEIBL
7K 20194F12 H31H & 20184
12A318 - Z"&EENUTEE
BEEERREE -

31 December 2019 2019%F12H31H
Accumulated  Provision for Carrying
Cost  depreciation impairment amount
Item ER FERE RitE WEER FEEE
Preserved fruit production line REER 1,249,834 (644,064) (480,787) 124,983
Total ait 1,249,834 (644,064) (480,787) 124,983
31 December 2018 2018%F 12 A31H
Accumulated Provision for Carrying
Cost  depreciation impairment amount
ltem ER REARE ZitheE REER REEE
Lemon processing line, BENTLER  WBRE
accessory equipment and building kBE 114,750,644 (25,617,306)  (31,938,300) 57,295,038
Preserved fruit production line REER 1,249,834 (644,064) (480,787) 124,983
Total = 116,000478  (26,161,370)  (32,419,087) 57,420,021
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BR1FFIE RSN - 2B E ML B ARKET)

V. Notes to the consolidated financial statements h SR EEERREEE(E)
(cont’d)

8 Fixed assets (cont’d) 8 EEEE(H)
(2) Temporarily idle fixed assets (cont’d) 2) BEHEHERETEEESL (&)

As at 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018, the
Group assessed that the lemon production machinery
and equipment of Anyue Andre Lemon Industry
Technology Co., Ltd. (“Anyue Andre”) and found
indications of impairment. For the asset groups with
identified indications of impairment, the management
compares the carrying amount of each asset group
with its recoverable amount to determine the amount
of the impairment. The recoverable amount of an asset
group is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell
and its present value of expected future cash flows.
At 31 December 2018, the Group determined the
recoverable amount of the asset group in accordance
with its fair value less costs to sell due to the reason
that the Group can not reliably estimate the present
value of expected future cash flow of relevant asset
group. In December 2019, Anyue Andre resumed
production, and the Group determined the recoverable
amount of the asset group as at 31 December 2019
in accordance with the present value of expected
future cash flow.

As at 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018,
the Group evaluated the recoverable amount of the
asset group and reduced the carrying amount to its
recoverable amount. No impairment loss of asset is
recognised in 2019 and 2018. As at 31 December
2018, the recoverable amount is determined by the
amount of fair value less costs to sell of the asset
group. The fair value is calculated using the cost
method with reference to the full cost to re-establish
the same or similar assets at the current price valuation
date, after deducting the physical devaluation,
functional devaluation and economic devaluation. As
at 31 December 2019, the estimated recoverable
amount is based on the discounted expected future
cash flow.

190  Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd. & LH ZEFNRARHERATE

7K20194F12 A31H & 20184
12A31H  AEEFTEZE
ZEAEREXRHEBR AR
([ZEREFR ] AEZE T A
ERRENBERE BMEFE
BERR - WRE#EBITFER
ERSNEEHR  TERESS
EEEANRmEEREELAIK
Ol eFEITL R - WEERE
EFEST - ool EE R ERA
BEMAMTEGTARKRSREN
RESREEANA A EERE
BEEEAKINFEMRE ZER
BEETE ° H2018412 A 31
H @ BRASEEEE S
HEEEAMNTBA RAKREESR
EMHE - NEEZLRET N
BEANARBEREEEE
BERFEAEAINE S5 -
2019F 12 8 - ZELEH Ik
BHEE 2019512 A 31
B AEBEREUNEEHANTE
SFARKRE S RERESE AU
El&%E -

72019412 A31 H & 20184
12A318  A"EEHELE
EE AR A A U 0] & BA 1 H T I
BB EERGELEERD
FEHEERLSZAETNE S
B - 20184 E K2019F €
EEETIREERBEERLX - ©
2018412 A31H » st Al Uk
Bl eEEERNBELEEEMEAND
AEEREEEERMEN -
ZAREBEENAKAZE 2
BAFEEEHNREERE
AR SAUEEN 2
AR E RS E - e
B K& IEEE - 22019
F12H31H @ HErAJ K E
HEENETAKRRESREN
WA °



Notes to the Financial Statements
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FRIFFEAS) - 2 BB BARET)

V. Notes to the consolidated financial statements h SR EEERREEE(E)
(cont’d)

8 Fixed assets (cont’d) 8 -EEEE(E)
(3) Fixed assets acquired under finance leases (8) BAMEHEHRANETEEE
&%
As at 31 December 2018, no fixed assets were 7R2018F12H31H * A& H
acquired under finance leases. EREHERANBEEEE °
(4) Fixed assets leased out under operating leases (4) BBACETHEF M A EE & E
As at 31 December 2019, the carrying value of the MR2019F 12 A31 8 + A&
fixed assets leased out by the Group under operating BEKREHERALN
leases was RMB20,656,850 (2018: RMB20,017,501), TEEREABEEAARK
which include two office buildings, several commercial 20,656,8507C( 20184 : AR
stores and an apartment building located in Muping #20,017,5017L) * T E =N
Economic Development Zone, Yantai. IR & T & T 4875 7 35 [ /O AR
ERAE  BETEHFEARNR
—BEAEE o
In 2019, the details of fixed assets leased out by the 2019F € ' AEEKEHE
group under operating lease are as follows: HHMEEEEFABUOT ¢

Plant &buildings

ltem IHE BEEREEY
Cost JR1E
At 1 January 2019 20191 A1H 27,307,760
Additions during the year AREEN =
— Transfers —E A 1,394,726
At 31 December 2019 2019512 A31H _2_8_,_7_(_)_2,48_6_
Accumulated amortization 2EHE
At 1 January 2019 20191 A1H (7,290,259)
Charge for the year REFHE (647,528)
Transfer during the year ARFE A (107,849)
At 31 December 2019 2019412 A31H (8,045,636)
Carrying amounts REEE
At 31 December 2019 2019412 A31H 20,656,850

At 1 January 2019 201941 A1H 20,017,501
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BR1FFIE RSN - 2B E ML B ARKET)

V. Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(cont’d)

8 Fixed assets (cont’d)
(5) Fixed assets pending certificates of ownership

As at 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018,
the Group’s fixed assets with pending certificates of
ownership is as follows:

31 December 2019

I EHMBERRAEZERGE)

8 -EEEE(E)
(5) K EEEZNETEEEG
P
MR2019F12 A31 H k20184
12H818 * XEEBE U TETE
BERNZEMETRE

31 December 2018  Raason why
2018F12A31H  certificates of

2019%12H31H
Item Carrying amount
HH EERE
Buildings of Liquan Yitong Juice Co., 48,795,455

Ltd.”
BREBRITARARNERE"

Fruit warehouse of Anyue Andre Lemon -
Industry
Technology Co., Ltd.**

ZERBNEREZFHRARAF
HREE"

Liguan Yitong Juice Co., Ltd. obtained the property
right certificate of its buildings on 20 January 2020.

*k

Anyue Andre Lemon Industry Technology Co., Ltd.
obtained the property right certificate of its fruit
warehouse on 17 April 2019.

192  Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd. & H ZEFNRARHERATE

Carrying amount ownership are pending

BERE XHWzENEERE

50,062,960 The certificates have not
been dealt with due to
historical reasons

ELERRR - HAME

5,114,980 The certificates have
not been dealt with
due to the acceptance
standard have not been

met
REDBRAKEE 4
RiE

* BREBREBETERAA
2= R B 202061 A
0HHIRERETE -

o ZETEREEEER
ERARHEERAED R
201954 17 B IR EE

EE o
iZ B/
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FRIFFEAS) - 2 BB BARET)

I EHMBERRAEZERGE)

V. Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(cont’d)

9 EEIR
(1) EZIIEL

9 Construction in progress
(1) Construction in progress

2019 2018
2019% 2018%
Provision for Carrying Provision for Carrying
Book value impairment amount  Bookvalue  impairment amount
Project J5H L] WEER REEE REAE HIEER REEE
New plant construction ~ EAFHRERER
foundation project of ERTRE
Longkou 1,285,314 - 1,285,314 = = =
Production line supporting B A EREE
project of Liquan Ti2 792,146 - 792,146 - - =
Plant renovation of Yongji ki T FittiE T12 - - - 5,403,653 - 5,403,653
Production line renovation HK TEAER
of Baishui WETHE = = - 700,000 - 700,000
Boiler installation ENTHiAENE
of Longkou I = = = 160,000 = 160,000
Others it 364,862 - 364,862 - - -
Total = 2,442,322 - 2,442,322 6,263,653 - 6,263,653

As at 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018,
no interest was capitalized in construction in progress
of the Group.

MR2019F12 A31 H k20184
128318 - AEEWMEZET
REFNEERL o
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(cont’d)

9 Construction in progress (cont’d)

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(2) Movements of major construction projects in progress

during the year

2019

Project

Plant renovation of Yongi

Production ling renovation
of Baishui

Natural gas boer project of
Yong

New plant consruction
foundation project of
Longkou

Total

KETHMELR

BAIREEGHETE

KENBRARRELR

ENFRRRRERTR

I EHMBERRAEZERGE)

9 -HEIRH)

(2) BEAEETEIRH #8150

20195

At Percentage

At Transfers  Additions H ofactual

1January  fromfixed duringthe Transfersto December  costto

Budget 219 assets year fixed assets 2019 budget (%)

TE%i

W9E B EEN 0108 RALRR

BSM  1R1R WEEN  xEEM BERE  12A%B AW

8,355,302 5,403,653 - 1,139,142 (6,542,795 - 100%

3996,000 700,000 - 0943263 (3,643,269 - 100%

1,972,000 - - 1833199 (1,883,199) - 100%

1,285,314 - - 1,285314 - 1285314 100%
15,608,616 6,103,653 - 7200018 (12019257 1,285,314
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Project
process

IEER

100%

100%

100%

100%

Sources of
funds

ReAE

Self-funded
BHRE
Self-funded
BRkE
Self-funded
BHEE
Self-funded
BHEE
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V. Notes to the consolidated financial statements h SR EEERREEE(E)

(cont’d)

9 Construction in progress (cont’d)
(2) Movements of major construction projects in progress

during the year (cont’d)

2018

Project

Plant renovation of Yongj

Boller installation of Liguan

Total

ik

KEIHMETR

ERIRBELRTR

9 -HEEIRE(E)
Q) EXHEZTIEERZE G R

(&)
20184
A Trensfers  Addtions At Percentage of
TJanuary ~ fromfiked  duringthe  Transfers to 31 December actual cost to Project  Sources of
Budget 218 assets year  fixed assets 2018 budget (%) process funds
IRZt
2018% BE REEL  08E RALEE
BEE MR AEEA  APEM EERE B HA)  IRER EeRR
37,455,332 - 12739760 21542319 (28878420) 5,403,663 92% 92%  Sef-funded
ERES
220,690 - - 220690 (22206%) - 100% 100%  Self-tunded
EREE
39,676,022 - 12739760 23763009 (31099116) 5403653
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(B 5IRE s - 2 RREBARRTT)

V. Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(cont’d)

10 Intangible assets

[tem

Cost
At 1 January 2018
Additions during the year
— Purchases

At 31 December 2018

At 1 January 2019

Additions during the year
— Purchases

Reductions during the year
— Disposals

At 31 December 2019

Accumulated amortization
At 1 January 2018
Charge for the year

At 31 December 2018

At 1 January 2019

Charge for the year

Reductions during the year
— Disposals

At 31 December 2019

Carrying amounts
At 31 December 2019

At 31 December 2018

B H

fRER{E

20181 R1H
AL
—BE

2018412 A31H

20191 H1H

LN
—BE

KERFD
—RE

2019412 H31H

RETHsH

201851 A1H
REEHE

2018%12H31H

20191 A1 8

AR

AL
~RE

201912 A31H

FRE(EE
2019%F12A31H

2018412 A31H
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I EHMBERRAEZERGE)

10 - B EE
Land use right
= ith {35 F 4
118,636,944

2,901,039

116,537,983

116,537,983
19,115,111

(15,310,024)

120,343,070

(24,408,553)
(2,500,195)

(26,908,748)

(26,908,748)
(2,770,872)

2,069,944

(27,609,676)

92,733,394

89,629,235
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V. Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(cont’d)

I EHMBERRAEZERGE)

10 Intangible assets (cont’d) 10 -\|EEE (&)

As at 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018, all of
the Group’s land use rights are on medium-term lease.

As at 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018, no
interest was capitalized in intangible assets of the Group.

As at 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018, the
Group has no intangible assets used as mortgage for
bank loans.

As at 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018,
the Group did not have land use rights which pending
certificates of ownership.

In December 2019, Longkou Andre disposed its land use
right due to the land resumption, involving intangible assets
with the cost of RMB15,310,024 and the accumulated
amortization of RMB2,069,944. See note V.5(1)(a) for
details.

2019512 A31H Kk20184F12H
318 ' A"EEMBLIERES
FREAFA A o

MR2019%12 A31H k20185124
318 ' AEEEFEEREEE
R B ANME R EFRF 8 o

R2019F12 431 A K%20185F 12
318 - AEEEAFNELEE -

M2019412 A31H k20184124
318 ' A"EBERNLEREEE
ML RERER ©

2019127 @ EEO L @A A L
WEBETHERBERE @ &
EmEEERMBIRE5,310,0247T
VAR Rt $45E2,069,9447C © &F
B2RMFER ~ 5(1)@) °
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V. Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(cont’d)

11 Goodwill
(1) Changes in goodwill

Name of investee WA B AT
Book value BERE
Anyue Andre Lemon Industry ~ ZEZEFIEEEERHE
Technology Co., Ltd. BRAR
Yongji Andre Juice Co., Ltd. ﬂ</;:| BERENRETER
NG|
Yantai Longkou Andre Juice AEAREMRTRE
Co., Ltd. BRAH
Sub-total et
Provision for impairment BEEE
Anyue Andre Lemon Industry ~ ZEZEREEEER K
Technology Co., Ltd. BRATF
Sub-total et
Carrying amount KEEER

198  Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd. & H ZEFNRARHERATE

I EHMBERRAEZERGE)

RS S

Balance at Balance at

1 January Additions 31 December
2019 during the year 2019
20191H18 FE/IN 2019%F12A31H
3,066,599 - 3,066,599
4,566,293 - 4,566,293
1,020,683 - 1,020,683
8,653,575 - 8,653,575
(3,066,599) - (3,066,599)
(3,066,599) - (3,066,599)
5,586,976 - 5,586,976
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(B1FRIFFEAS) - 2 BB BARET)

V. Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(cont’d)

11 Goodwill (cont’d)
(1) Changes in goodwill (cont’d)

Note
Name of investee BREBNEHE it
Book value RERE
Anyue Andre Lemon Industry CERETEGERRRER ()
Technology Co., Ltd. NG
Yongji Andre Juice Co., Ltd. KEREHRETERAR (b)
Yantai Longkou Andre Juice Co., RERZEFNFTHNER (0
Ltd. A7)
Sub-total Gt
Provision for impairment FEER
Anyue Andre Lemon Industry ZEREHEEEEREAR
Technology Co., Ltd. A
Sub-total gt
Carrying amount REEBE

(@) The Group acquired the equity interest of Anyue
Andre Lemon Industry Technology Co., Ltd. at an
aggregated cash consideration of RMB52,120,000
in 2014. The goodwill represents the excess of the
cost of the acquisition over the Group’s interests in
the fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
of Anyue Andre Lemon Industry Technology Co.,
Ltd.

I EHMBERRAEZERGE)

1 RE(E)

Balance at Balance at
1 January Additions 31 December
2018 during the year 2018
20181 A1H REEN 20185127318
3,066,599 = 3,066,599
4,566,293 - 4,566,293
1,020,683 - 1,020,683
8,653,575 - 8,653,575
(8,066,599 - (3,066,599
(3,066,599 - (3,066,599
5,586,976 - 5,586,976

(a) M2014FfE » REB T

A R #52,120,000 7T U &
AW EE T & &&= F =
BREZERRBR QA H#E
7= W BE AR AN R 3B IRt
% W ELEFERE
ERB AR AR A #HR

E BEAREENERE
RETEZENEEREZE
R ARA GBS o
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(BH Bl s) -

EHEEMBARET)

V. Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(cont’d)

11 Goodwill (cont’d)
(1) Changes in goodwill (cont’d)
(b) The Group acquired the equity interest of Yong;ji

Andre Juice Co., Ltd. at an aggregated cash
consideration of RMB56,201,585 in 2011. The
goodwill represents the excess of the cost of the
acquisition over the Group’s interests in the fair
value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of
Yongji Andre Juice Co., Ltd.

The Group acquired the equity interest of Yantai
Longkou Andre Juice Co., Ltd. at an aggregated
cash consideration of RMB32,035,810 in 20083.
The goodwill represents the excess of the cost of
the acquisition over the Group’s interests in the
fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of
Yantai Longkou Andre Juice Co., Ltd.

200 Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd. B&it AR EFRTROERLD T

I EHMBERRAEZERGE)

1 BHE(E)

(b) R2011EE » KEBLfF

AR #56,201,585 7T Ut &
RAWEE T KELZEFR
FOTERARMER - I
HE PX N B 3R i L R 1S A
KEZEFREABRA
AR HREE - ABEAR
BENEZEAEKELE
MR THER AR MA@
G

MR2003F & @ AEE X
AR #32,035,8107t Y i
BRAUE T HRE DR E
FIR T 8OR B R A 7 B 4
= WK AN R B IRt
ESNBAaEAIZENR
TR BRAR A HRE
E BRI ABEMNES
AHEREEDRENRT
FRIERARERENEE o
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I EHMBERRAEZERGE)

V. Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(cont’d)

11 Goodwill (cont’d)
(2) Provision for impairment of goodwill

1 BHE(E)
2) BHEREER

The Group’s asset groups which the goodwill
recognised are Anyue Andre Lemon Industry
Technology Co., Ltd., Yongji Andre Juice Co., Ltd.
and Yantai Longkou Andre Juice Co., Ltd.

The recoverable amounts of Anyue Andre Lemon
Industry Technology Co., Ltd., Yongji Andre Juice Co.,
Ltd. and Yantai Longkou Andre Juice Co., Ltd. are
determined based on the present value of expected
future cash flows. The present value of expected future
cash flows was projected based on the next five-year
financial forecast approved by management and a
pre-tax discount rate of 10.17% (2018: 10.86%). The
cash flows beyond the five-year forecast period were
assumed to be stable.

Key assumptions used in estimating the present value
of expected future cash flows of Anyue Andre Lemon
Industry Technology Co., Ltd., Yongji Andre Juice Co.,
Ltd. and Yantai Longkou Andre Juice Co., Ltd. include
the budgeted gross margin based on past performance
and expectations on market development, and stable
sales volume, which were determined by management
based on past performance.

A ERE R Ea B
BEMAES RTERENER
EXMXBRAT - KEZE
MREABRARRMAEGER
ZENFTRHBERRA -

TEREMNESREEREER
DA KERZREFRETHE
RAaaMAEEOREIRT
R IR A B HY AT IR [ 4 58 A
B ARR S REBRENH A
BT AEBRESEEH
B BRI R SRS F B #5 T8 & N
10.17% (20184 : 10.86%)
RATIT IR RIBt 2 EEAN R
KIEeMERE - BBSFEH
BHEEZ R EHhNBREREY
BRRFEE -

HRERBNESEEMESR
RAR]  KBRBIRGETE
RAmMEEEORZBMNRT
R B R R RE ARKE DR
ERENFERBTREES
REBRHMISERANNEE
EMEMHEREBRFTIZEN
REARRBR - EEERERE
F 2 B B R S AR L e RE 5 e

3% -
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I EHMBERRAEZERGE)

V. Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(cont’d)

12 Deferred tax assets
(1) Details of unrecognised deferred tax assets

12 EEFRSHERE
(1) REEZAEAL T35 B A

2019 2018

Item IHE 20195 20184
Deductible temporary differences  m[#XINE RS =R 39,101 2,962,043
Deductible tax losses A EE 12,012,339 42,827,591
12,051,440 45,789,634

(2) In accordance with the accounting policy set out in (@) ZBME=  283FTE M5
Note [I1.23, the Group has not recognised deferred BER - BRAEBETRRAIEE
tax assets in respect of cumulative tax losses of ESAARENEEBENR
RMB12,012,339 (2018: RMB42,827,591) as it is not REBRAE - Bt ANEE =R
probable that future taxable profits against which the FAR®12,012,33970(2018
losses can be utilised will be available to the Group. F o AR®A42827,5917T) )
The domestic deductible tax losses can be deducted ZE AR B ERRELEMS
from future taxable income within 5 years and the MEE - BREBITHE &
overseas deductible tax losses can be deducted from LR EIEa B EFER -
future taxable income within 20 years from the year BEN AN EE R AET B R
when such losses were incurred under current tax 54 9 HA A P9 3 40 R 2R P 75 A
laws. B SBAHNATIE I E 18 ] ATE R

1B 3B204F &Y HAfE 45 30 oK 2R g
A o
(3) Expiration of deductible tax losses for unrecognised (3) RFERIEEFSHEEMN K

deferred tax assets

HEEN2IEER

2019 2018
Year FH 20195 20184
2018 20184 - -
2019 20194 - 576,342
2020 20204 11,844 11,844
2021 20214 - -
2022 20224 11,059,433 41,298,343
2023 20234 941,062 941,062
2024 20244 - -
Total &5t 12,012,339 42,827,591
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

V. Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(cont’d)

13 Assets with restricted ownership or right of use
As at 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018, there
are no assets with restrictions placed on the Group’s
ownership.

14 Short-term loans

ltem BH
Guaranteed loans IRFBIEFK
Guaranteed loans IRABIEFK
Total BET

As at 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018, the
Group did not have short-term loans past due.

Information for guaranteed loans is set out in Note IX.6.

(BRH 5T RS - 2RRE BARET)

I EHMBERRAEZERGE)

B FEENERAEZZRENEE

2019512 A31H Kk20184F12H
318 » NEBEEEEX DR G
MEE °

14 BHIER

2018
2018%F
Annual
interest rate Currency RMB
FH = e AREe®

4.44% RMBAERM 20,000,000
4.35% RMBAEM 30,000,000

50,000,000

2019512 A31H Kk20184F12H
318 » AEEEE FHKREED
GHBfESK o

BRARZBERNEER  28ME
N6
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BR1FFIE RSN - 2B E ML B ARKET)

V. Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(cont’d)

15 Accounts payable
(1) Accounts payable by supplier type are as follows:

Supplier type HrEr Al
Third parties R E=7
Related parties &1~ BB
Total BE

(2) The ageing analysis of accounts payable, based on
the date of receipt of goods, is as follows:

Ageing BRER

Within 1 year (inclusive) 1FELAR(E1E)
Over 1 year 1AL

Total 1

16 Contract liabilities
The contract liabilities mainly represent advance payments
received from the customers according to sales contracts
with the amounts equivalent to 20% to 100% of the
considerations. The contract liabilities are recognized
as revenue after the Group satisfies its performance
obligations to the customers.
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15 BATIERK
(1) JE 1 BE R H 2 B A8 551 5 A
T

2019 2018
20195 20184

50,285,640 38,174,800
47,659 14,694

50,333,299 38,189,494

@) BRI E A2 5698

BRI -
2019 2018
2019 20184
47,932,221 35,095,445
2,401,078 3,094,049

50,333,299 38,189,494

16 EREE
EREBBEEESRASERETE
BEEMEESRFT KA EK
e ZFERAEAREEHK
B ¢8EAARYEEN20% ~
100% ° %A RIF KR A SR
SEBITROEHEER -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 75 Ak Y o

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

V. Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(BRH 5T RS - 2RRE BARET)

I EHMBERRAEZERGE)

17 Employee benefits payable
(1) Details of employee benefits payable:

17 BB ITEHH
(1) FEITB T EH 3T -

At Accrued Decreased At

1 January during during 31 December

2019 the year the year 2019

20195 20195

1A1H EEi0 TERD 12A31H

Short-term employee benefits 42 &% B 20,939,844 57,464,519 62,706,175 15,698,188
Post-employment benefits - EEBRZEF| — % 7E

defined contribution plans RiFATEl - 4,534,063 4,534,063 -

Total &t 20,939,844 61,988,582 67,240,238 15,698,188

At Accrued Decreased At

1 January during during 31 December

2018 the year the year 2018

2018%F 20184

1A18 AR REFHD 124318

Short-term employee benefits 52 i Bl 21,005,744 51,817,247 51,943,147 20,939,844
Post-employment benefits - BB & @RI -2 7E

defined contribution plans R1FarEl 209,923 4,397,980 4,607,903 -

Total G 21,275,667 56,215,227 56,551,050 20,939,844

—Z-AFFH Annual Report 2019

205



Notes to the financial statements

§t 35 ¥ AR B o
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V. Notes to the consolidated financial statements h SR EEERREEE(E)

(cont’d)
17 Employee benefits payable (cont’d) 17~ FEAS B T 35BN (48)
(2) Short-term employee benefits (2) *ZHREZT BN
At Accrued Decreased At
1 January during during 31 December
2019 the year the year 2019
20195 20195

1A1H EEEm FERD 12A31H

Salaries, bonuses, allowances L& - #% - 285

and subsidies Gkl 10,563,278 53,701,182 58,436,408 5,828,052
Staff bonus and welfare fund B T 228 & /&5
e 10,371,394 50,054 565,891 9,855,557
Social insurance treRRE
Medical insurance BER Kﬁ & - 1,900,505 1,900,505 =
Work-related injury insurance  LT{ZR& - 293,221 293,221 -
Maternity insurance £B Wﬁ% - 271,501 271,501 =
Housing fund EERES - 912,235 912,235 -
Labour union fee and staffs’ LT &@&E&MET
education fee HERE 5,172 335,821 326,414 14,579
Total &&t 20,939,844 57,464,519 62,706,175 15,698,188
At Accrued Decreased At
1 January during during 31 December
2018 the year the year 2018
20184 20184

1818 REL REFHD 12A31H

Salaries, bonuses, allowances L& - #4 - 285

and subsidies GilkeEEl 0,865,194 48,596,493 47,898,409 10,563,278
Staff bonus and welfare fund B T 528 K& 42 7
e 10,727,074 = 355,680 10,371,394
Social insurance HeRBRE
Medical insurance BERRE 78,581 1,646,303 1,724,884 =
Work-related injury insurance  L{5/RIGE 12,124 254,001 266,125 =
Maternity insurance EBERRE 5,613 235,186 240,799 =
Housing fund (ES=UN 377,158 720,129 1,097,287 =
Labour union fee and staffs’ T @& EMET
education fee HERE - 365,135 359,963 5172
Total &&t 21,005,744 51,817,247 51,943,147 20,939,844
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V. Notes to the consolidated financial statements h SR EEERREEE(E)
(cont’d)

17 Employee benefits payable (cont’d) 17« FEAS B TS5 EH (48)
(3) Post-employment benefits — defined contribution plans (3) BER1Z 157 — R EIefraTEl
At Accrued Decreased At
1 January during during 31 December
2019 the year the year 2019
20195 2019%

1A1H XM FERD 12A31H

Basic pension insurance BEAEERR - 4,344,012 4,344,012 -
Unemployment insurance RERRE - 190,051 190,051 -
Total a5t - 4,534,063 4,534,063 -
At Accrued Decreased At

1 January during during 31 December

2018 the year the year 2018

20184 20184

1818 RELLM RERD 12A31H

Basic pension insurance EAXEZRR 202,064 4,233,350 4,435,414 -
Unemployment insurance RERRE 7,859 164,630 172,489 =
Total a&f 209,923 4,397,980 4,607,903 =

As at 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018, the
Group did not have payment in arrears in the balance
of employee benefits payable.

As stipulated by the regulations of the PRC, the Group
participates in various defined contribution retirement
plans organised by municipal governments for its
staff. The Group is required to make contributions
to the retirement plans at certain percentage or
certain amount of the salaries, bonuses and certain
allowances of its staff of last year. The relevant local
government authorities are responsible for the entire
pension obligations payables to retired employees.
The Group has no other material obligation for the
payment of pension benefits associated with these
plans beyond the annual contributions described
above.

MR2019F12 A31 H k20184
128318 ' AEBEEMNEBT
N EIE R B R FRIE o

RETEBREG - AEES
HBT2EGTBNRHEZ
B B EE HFRAREE - AE
BZA LR T IR B TR BN 2
FEBDHLREESBEELHR
K o MR R R AR
MRAREEHNZERIKEL -
AREBR bt F 2 HKEAS -
B/ARLIE Lo AT B A A
BRXNERENEXREE -
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V. Notes to the consolidated financial statements h SR EEERREEE(E)

(cont’d)
18 Taxes payable 18 EXFE
2019 2018
ltem 1HH 20195 20184
Value-added tax BER 640,169 5,981,963
Land use tax b s AR 816,673 597,506
Property tax BERM 696,918 515,534
Others B 513,683 2,677,665
Total a5t 2,667,443 9,772,668
19 Other payables 19 ~ HtE(FR
2019 2018
ltem 1HH 20195 20184
Interest payable FER T 2 - 66,990
Other Hth 16,807,137 17,882,203
Total a5t 16,807,137 17,949,193
20 Share capital 20 ~ &<
Changes during the year (+/-)
FEEMER
Balance
at the Balance
beginning Issue of Share  Purchase of at the end
of the year ~ new shares consolidation ~ own shares Sub-total of the year
2] 1] BTHR &k Bk it EXBE
2019 2019
Total number of shares B {p% 358,000,000 - - - - 358,000,000
Amount (RMB) N5 358,000,000 - - - - 358,000,000
2018 20188
Total number of shares R &% 358,000,000 - - - - 358,000,000
Amount (RMB) ANRESE 358,000,000 - - - - 358,000,000
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V. Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(cont’d)
21 Capital reserve 2 EBERRE
2019 20195
Balance Additions Reductions Balance
at the beginning during during at the end
of the year the year the year of the year
ltem L RN A8 5ERY EXBE
Share premium BaE 17,281,789 - - 17,281,789
Foreign currency translation difference IERANEER 9,02 = = 9,026
Total At 17,291,715 - - 17,291,715
2018 2018%F
Balance Additions Balance
at the beginning during  Reductions during at the end
of the year the year the year of the year
ltem L e AEE KERD FRBE
Share premium BAaE 17,081,789 - - 17,081,789
Foreign currency translation difference NERAREES 9,926 - - 9,926
Total At 17,291,715 - - 17,291,715
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(B 5IRE s - 2 RREBARRTT)

V. Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(cont’d)

22 Surplus reserve
2019

[tem

Statutory surplus reserve

2018

[tem

Statutory surplus reserve

HH

EERBATE

I EHMBERRAEZERGE)

2 BERAR
20195
Balance
at the Additions Balance
beginning during at the end
of the year the year of the year
FMeRE AEEM FEXRBRE
107,581,973 20,633,612 128,215,585
2018%F
Balance
at the Additions Balance
beginning during at the end
of the year the year of the year
FUIERER ANEEIE N FRERER
107,111,132 470,841 107,581,973

Pursuant to the requirements of the Company Law in the
People’s Republic of China, appropriations to statutory
surplus reserve were made at 10% of after tax profit until

such reserve reaches 50% of the registered capital.
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V. Notes to the consolidated financial statements h SR EEERREEE(E)
(cont’d)

23 Retained earnings 28 R B FIE
Appropriation or
Note Amount  distribution rate
ltem ER it &F REESELA
At 1 January 2018 2018F1A1H 1,195,065,141
Add: Net profits for the year attributable to shareholders 1l : AEZERNEAF
of the Company TR M 137,335,846
Less: Appropriation for statutory surplus reserve B RORBAE 470,841 10%
Dividends payable to ordinary shares FERE BT (1) 35,800,000
At 31 December 2018 2018F12A31H ) 1,296,130,146
At 1 January 2019 20191 A1H 1,296,130,146
Add: Net profits for the year attributable to shareholders 1l : ZEZEREAF
of R A EH
the Company 169,268,723
Less: Appropriation for statutory surplus reserve B RIRHAR 20,633,612 10%
Dividends payable to ordinary shares FERTE BT (1) 35,800,000
At 31 December 2019 2019F12A31H ) 1,408,965,257
As at 31 December 2019, the distributable reserve of R2019%F12A31H + XARAI 5
the Company amounted to RMB458,836,300 (2018: ERTARBIRR 2 HEESEAA
308,933,776). R 458,836,300 T(20184F : A

R #308,933,7767T) °

(1) Distribution of dividends of ordinary shares declared (1) Z B E B

during the year

Pursuant to the resolution passed at the annual RIE2019F6 26 AR A E
general meeting on 26 June 2019, a dividend payable RIHEE - AN E) )RR R
to ordinary shareholders of the Company of RMBO. 1 KEHRSKRA - FR01TT -
per share, totalling RMB35,800,000, was approved. H5+35,800,0007T °

Pursuant to the resolution passed at the annual RIE2018F6 A26 HIF R A
general meeting on 26 June 2018, a dividend payable RHEE - ANQ BRI B R
to ordinary shareholders of the Company of RMBO. 1 KERSRA - FK0.1TT -
per share, totaling RMB35,800,000, was approved. #35135,800,0007T °
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V. Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(cont’d)

I EHMBERRAEZERGE)

23 Retained earnings (cont’d) 23 R B A (4)

(2) Retained earnings at the end of the year (2) TR BOFE a9 a7 B
Surplus reserve made by the subsidiaries in 2019 and FAEIANERDINEBR
attributable to the Company is RMB11,010,583 (2018: RAMBHBRAEBERARE
RMB13,131,073). 11,010,58370(20184F : AR

#13,131,0737T) °
As at 31 December 2019, the consolidated R2019F 12 H31H » A& H
retained earnings attributable to the Company BN AT RS R FEH
included appropriation to surplus reserves BE TARRARK T A A REA
made by the Company’s subsidiaries amounting BpANTEARKE153,292,142
to RMB153,292,142 (31 December 2018: JL(2018F12H31H : AR
RMB142,281,559). 142,281,5597L) °
24 Operating income and operating costs A4 EEIRA - BERK
2019 2018
20195 20184
Income Cost Income Cost
ltem B H KA 3% 3 WA [DEN

Principal businesses TEEK 831,529,867 571,156,383 1,061,840,781 774,565,008

Other businesses HME% 6,597,470 2,686,290 5,744,027 2,028,695

Total &5t 838,127,337 573,842,673 1,067,584,808 776,593,703

Operating income generated from principal businesses
represents primarily the sales of condensed juice and
related products. Operating income generated from other
businesses represents primarily the sales of raw materials,
rental income and others.

For information about the group’s operating income
broken down by the location of clients, refer to Note XIll.
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BR1FRIEEAS) » 2 REE [ B ARET)

V. Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(cont’d)

25 Taxes and surcharges

26

27

[tem

Urban maintenance and construction tax
Education surcharges

Property tax
Land use tax
Others

Total

Selling and distribution expenses

[tem
Freight charges

Payroll and welfare
Others

Total

General and administrative expenses

[tem

Payroll and welfare

Depreciation and amortisation expenses
Repair and motor vehicle expenses
Auditors’ remuneration

— Statutory audit services

— Other services

Other consulting services fees

Others

Total

HE

YT M R R ARV
B &M
FER

T E R
Hity

HH

TER
FEBMBHE
KB MERE M
T 2

—AEENE

— HAMAR &
H A F#A AR &
HAtp

I EHMBERRAEZERGE)

25 Bt & K B A0

2019 2018
2019 2018%F
1,100,971 3,161,961
1,133,418 3,218,510
3,388,998 3,579,418
3,476,241 3,870,430
1,103,813 1,536,228
10,203,441 15,366,547

2% HEEA
2019 2018
2019 20184
29,318,003 61,148,344
1,556,311 1,520,959
13,906,520 28,542,524
44,780,834 91,211,827

2 EEEA
2019 2018
20195 20184F
24,565,391 21,972,380
6,901,216 6,257,385
4,907,910 8,771,111
1,480,000 1,480,000
2,660,000 2,360,000
4,276,683 3,393,624
9,481,603 17,233,438
54,272,803 61,467,938
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BR1FFIE RSN - 2B E ML B ARKET)

V. Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(cont’d)

28 Financial expenses

ltem BH

Interest expenses arising from borrowings B Z &5 8 %

Government grants-interest subsidy T B — Bh 2

Government grants-interest subsidy IR T % B — Ab B AR [
refunded

Interest income from deposits FREOFEHA

Net exchange gains R 5 Y

Other financial expenses Hitn 752 A

Total CE

In 2019, Yantai Finance Bureau and Forestry Bureau grant
a interest subsidy of RMB1,050,000 to the Group, which
offsetted against financial expenses.

In 2018, Yantai Finance Bureau and Forestry Bureau grant
a interest subsidy of RMB1,825,000 to the Group, which
offsetted against financial expenses.
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I EHMBERRAEZERGE)

28 -BBER
2019 2018
2019 2018%F
43,123 1,026,756
(1,050,000) (1,825,000)
= 350,000
(4,529,494) (162,730)
(1,235,955) (15,502,375)
304,386 474,930

(6,467,940)  (15,638,419)

R2019F E - MamE T &K
B MERBNAASEMEE
SRR B BAE B & 41,050,000
JC MRS ER o

MR2018E E - A MEF &I
B MERBNGAEENREE
KA B BB B & € 1,825,000
T RIS ER o
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FRIFFEAS) - 2 BB BARET)

V. Notes to the consolidated financial statements h SR EEERREEE(E)
(cont’d)

29 Government grants 29 BT BY
(1) Government grants related to assets (1) & ZEFE R R T 7 8
The government grants related to assets of the Group 7N £5 (B B 2 AR A W AT 4 B
are as follows: P(U N
(a) Effect on assets (@ HEEBEMTE
2019 2018
ltem RN 20195 2018%F
Offset against book value HRETE B EREEE

of fixed assets
Subsidy for purchase of research EEMERERD

and development equipments 800,000 600,000
Grant for production line A E RS BN

modification 3,029,200 -

Total CE 3,829,200 600,000

Effect on deferred income

C

(b) $HEEW AT E

2018
20195
Balance
at the Offset against Balance
beginning book value of at the end
of the year Additions fixed assets Others  of the year
BEHE FEHR HREE BEHE
ltem L FORE [ LUE4 RERE Rten EXBA
Grant for production line modification 4 Z£REHRE - 39,000,000 - - 39,000,000
In December 2019, Longkou Andre obtained 20191278 ' EEOLEF|
a compensation of RMB39,000,000 for the A = 3t Uk [B] 8 BB 3B 5T R
construction of new plant and other production P5 I Hfth 4 7 2R B B2 Rk A
facilities due to the land resumption. For detalils, 39,000,000t © 124
please refer to Note V.(1)(a). REHER - (@) °
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V. Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(cont’d)

29 Government grants (cont’d)
(2) Government grant related to income
The government grants related to income of the Group
are as follows:

ltem B8 B
Industrial development fund THERES
Tax reward iR &
Foreign trade subsidies SN E A B
Research and development subsidies  Aff 2% Bf)
Others A

Total =18

In 2019, the Group received grants totaling
RMB2,455,442 from various government authorities,
which is directly included in other income. The Group
used the interest subsidy to offset against financial
expenses. For the information of interest subsidy,
refer to Note V.28.

In 2018, the Group received grants totaling
RMB2,313,133 from various government authorities,
which is directly included in other income. The Group
used the interest subsidy to offset against financial
expenses. For the information of interest subsidy,
refer to Note V.28.
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29 BT #E B ()
2) Eiz 1EREEIB T B

7R 6% 8 2 W s A B ) U 44 B
e

2019 2018
2019 20184F
1,520,000 50,000
520,000 20,000
213,800 601,500

= 1,603,000
201,642 38,633
2,455,442 2,313,133

R2019F E + K& B K
B % {E BT 2B PY A AL £
2,455,442 7T + & A E fib U
= o ANEEES AV B B L Bk
MG ER  25WiER -
28 °

R2018 F E + A& B I
B % {E B T 2B PY A AL £
2,313,133 7T ' &F A E fib U
= o ANEEES AV BT B L BOh
BB ER  28KEH
28 °
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(B1FRIFFEAS) - 2 BB BARET)

Notes to the consolidated financial statements h SR EEERREEE(E)
(cont’d)

30 Investment income 0 wEWES
Investment income by item I E W 7 57 B B 15
2019 2018
ltem 1HH 20195 20184
Investment income from disposal of BEERXRZMEHMEERS
financial assets held for trading H3% & Wz 8,163,368 6,231,559
Investment income from disposal of debt & & EEREERERKRE
investments Wz 1,899,684 1,153,260
Total BET 10,063,052 7,384,819
31 Credit losses N ERREERL
2019 2018
ltem 1HH 2019 20184
Accounts receivable JE W BR X 426,620 2,962,242
32 Impairment losses R -EEREERX
2019 2018
ltem 1HH 20195 20184
Inventories FE (387,519) 2,412,779
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(B 5IRE s - 2 RREBARRTT)

V. Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(cont’d)

33 Non-operating income

Non-operating income by item is as follows:

ltem BH

Others i

34 Non-operating expenses

[tem

Losses from scrapping of fixed assets
Donations

Fine and penalty

Others

Total

HH

Bl E B E M AER K

BEXH
SRR

Hity
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I EHMBERRAEZERGE)

33 EEIMRA
EEINKADBRIBRUOT ¢
Note 2019 2018
Mo 2019 20184F
4,529 7,888
U EEIITH
2019 2018
20195 20184
2,021,952 2,507,399
= 894,977
5,000 20,000
29,200 87,419
2,056,152 3,509,795




(cont’d)

35 Income tax expenses

[tem

Current tax expenses for the year
estimated in accordance with the
tax law and regulations

Difference between tax filings and
assessments

Total

Reconciliation between income tax
accounting profit is as follows:

[tem

Profit before taxation

Expected income tax expenses
at tax rate of 25%

Effect of non-taxable income

Effect of different tax rates applied by
certain subsidiaries

Effect of unrecognised deferred tax asset
for deductible losses for the current
year

Effect of utilised deductible losses for
which no deferred tax asset was
recognised in previous years

Difference between tax filings and
assessments

Effect of non-deductible costs, expenses
and losses

Tax effect of the temporary differences
that were not recognized as deferred
tax

Income tax expenses

Notes to the Financial Statements
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

V. Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(BRH 5T RS - 2RRE BARET)

I EHMBERRAEZERGE)

B FTEHEHR
2019 2018
IHE 20195 20184
BHE R ARBER T EH
EESH
205,986 12,570
EEEMER
63,229 124,984
&5t 269,215 137,554
expenses and S EREE T AEREERN
g
2019 2018
IHH 20195 20184
IR INE 169,537,938 137,473,400
B E25% T E M TEHE
FriS it 42,384,485 34,368,350
%Wﬁ (33,361,538) (34,658,905)
REEATRMRENTZE
280,236 276,946
REEARERIELT TS
BEMAENEETZ
= 141,159
5 FA BT HA R ME RIS FT 1S A0
BEMAENBENTZZ
(9,211,494) (1,391,071)
EEEMER
63,229 124,984
AR A - BN
BRNTE 106,144 539,332
AR SR RE T TR A B B 1
EENRIGTE
8,153 736,759
REMGHER 269,215 137,554

—Z-AFFH Annual Report 2019

219



Notes to the financial statements

§t 35 ¥ AR B o

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
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V. Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(cont’d)

36 Directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments
Details of directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments are

I EHMBERRAEZERGE)

36

EEREEHE
EENEEMES 2FBEOT

Retirement scheme
contributions Total
by tih it it

2019 2018 2019 2018
RMB RMB RMB RMB
AB%  ARE ABW )RR

= = 50,000 84,606
15,746 19214 621,988 471,666
15,746 19214 262302 209,162

= = 50,000 50,000

= = 25,000 50,000
= = 50,000 50,000
= = 50,000 50,000
= = 26,000 =

= - - 15,000
11,922 10274 245850 209,139
15,724 19214 204582 212929

6,987 19214 254980 222,951

as follows:
Directors’ and Salaries, allowances and
supervisors’ fees benefits in kind
Narme 4 EEREENS EXE  ARRAMRN
2019 2018 2019 2018
RMB RMB RMB RMB
AER AEE  ARE AR%
Executive Diectors: §78%:
Wang An iz 50,000 50,000 - 34606
Zhang Hui KiE 50,000 5,000 562,187 406,392
Wang Yanhui T4 50,000 5,000 19655 143,888
Non-executive Directors: FaES:
Liu Tsung-y 87E 50,000 50,000 - -
Independent non-executive Directors: B JFE172% -
Li Tongning’ Tz 25000 50000 = =
Jang Honggi 15 50000 50000 - -
Li We 3 50,000 50,000 = =
Li Yao* 3 25,000 - - =
Supenvisors: EEE
Wang Chuntang™ IEE - 15000 - -
Dai Liying ElE 30000 30000 203928 163865
Wang Zhiwu IF 30,000 30000 248858 167,69
Wang Kun™ T 30,000 15,000 218048 192677
Total alt 440000 440000 1429572 1,109,083

66,075 76370 1,995,647 1626453

*On 26 June 2019, Mr. Li Tongning resigned and Mr. Li Yao
was appointed as independent non-executive director of the
Company.

**0On 26 June 2018, Mr. Wang Chuntang resigned and Mr.
Wang Kun was appointed as supervisor of the Company.

For the year ended 31 December 2019 and 31 December
2018, no emoluments were paid to the directors or
supervisors as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Company or as compensation for loss of office.
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(BRH 5T RS - 2RRE BARET)

V. Notes to the consolidated financial statements h SR EEERREEE(E)

(cont’d)

37 Individuals with the highest emoluments 37
For the year ended 31 December 2019, of the five
individuals with the highest emoluments, five (2018: five)
are executive directors or supervisors whose emoluments
are disclosed in Note V.36 above.

38 Basic earnings per share and diluted earnings per 38
share
(1) Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing
consolidated net profit attributable to ordinary
shareholders of the Company by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares outstanding:

Consolidated net profit attributable to ~ 5F/& 7
ordinary shareholders of the Company &R K& 455 H

5
>>
pe]]
g
:
5

Weighted average number of ordinary — ZNA &) 3T EINE BA%
shares outstanding B ANHE 5 £

Basic earnings per share (RMB/share)  EAFH Uz
(AR®T/BR)

Diluted earnings per share (RMB/share) #1225
(AR, BR)

The Group had no dilutive potential ordinary shares
during the reporting period.

(2) Weighted average number of ordinary shares is
calculated as follows:

Issued ordinary shares at the EYE BT EBIRITE
beginning of the year
Changes during the year 7N 4F g

Weighted average number of ordinary 7K & 3/ B A hE 15 8K
shares at the end of the year

‘BRE#HAL

HZE2019F12A31HILEFE - 1
UEREHALH » A A(2018%F :
ANERTESHES i
ERMEEE - 360 FUAKRE -

EXASRUENHESREEN

STEBRE

(1) EAXZR W
AEARNFRKEINFBRARF]
LB ARAR R A& GFF A E BR LA
AR B BT I AR A AN
FHHEE

2019 2018
2019 20184F

169,268,723 137,335,846

358,000,000 358,000,000

0.473 0.384

0.473 0.384

AEBAIIRHFEANGTA
BB BEEBA -

(2) BB NI T B3 H
0T

2019 2018
20195 20184F

358,000,000 358,000,000

358,000,000 358,000,000
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(R SIS - 2EEILAARMT)

V. Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(cont’d)

39 Supplement to income statement
Expenses are analysed by their nature:

2019 2018
ltem HE 20195 20184
Operating income =EWA 838,127,337 1,067,584,808
Less: Changes in inventories of B ERmANTEESR
finished goods (144,335,647) 272,111,901
Raw materials and packaging FEAREME R
materials used BEY 628,249,985 454,070,154
Employee benefits expenses BITHMER 61,998,582 56,215,227
Depreciation and amortisation WEMEHER
expenses 43,774,161 43,543,529
Financial expenses P E A (6,467,940) (15,638,419)
Other expenses Hith & A 95,829,215 120,852,496
Add: Other income o Efbias 2,455,442 2,313,133
Investment income KEW 10,063,052 7,384,819
Credit losses ERREERX (426,620) (2,962,242)
Impairment losses BERERX 387,519 (2,412,779)
Gains/(losses) from asset disposals BEREBRD 31,187 222 456
Operating profit & F)E 171,589,561 140,975,307
40 Explanatory notes to items in the cash flow statement N BEHFREREEGSE
(1) Proceeds relating to other operating activities: (1) WG EIE b BELAR &7 ) 75 i A 22
&
2019 2018
20195 20184
Proceeds from the lease of buildings FEEEENIEERMEE
and the sales of raw materials WEIRIR £ 6,597,470 5,744,027
Receipts of government grants and ~ ERF M Bh S U EIHIR &
others 6,284,642 2,913,133
Total &t 12,882,112 8,657,160

9 FBRWERER

I EHMBERRAEZERGE)

HMBERTFOERREE N
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V. Notes to the consolidated financial statements h SR EEERREEE(E)
(cont’d)

40 Explanatory notes to items in the cash flow statement N -BHEREREETRE)
(cont’d)
(2) Payments relating to other operating activities: 2) T1T1A fib BIAR & F B) 5 i A9 3
Ea
2019 2018
20195 20184
Payments for period expenses RS IBEHEER 65,322,813 124,925,040
(3) Proceeds relating to other investing activities: (3) W E A b £ 4 & )& B FA a3
&z
2019 2018
20194 20184
Receipts of interest income on deposits M 2| &9 7% AL 2 U A 4,529,494 162,730

—Z—-hE&EE3HK Annual Report 2019 223



Notes to the financial statements

§t 35 ¥ AR B o

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BR1FREEEAS) - 2 FEE [ BARET)

V. Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(cont’d)

I EHMBERRAEZERGE)

41 Supplementary information on cash flow statement H BHEREREEBR
(1) Supplement to cash flow statement (1) Be nEXHTEH
a. Reconciliation of net profit to cash flows from a. BFFEAGTAKEED

operating activities: HeRE
2019 2018
ltem = 20195 20184
Net profit A E 169,268,723 137,335,846
Add: Depreciation of fixed assets mn: BEBEERTE 41,003,289 41,043,334
Amortisation of intangible assets A E 2,770,872 2,500,195
Credit losses ERRERSK 426,620 2,962,242
Impairment losses BERKEBEESX (387,519) 2,412,779
Gains from disposal of fixed EEETEEEN
assets e (31,187) (222,456)
Losses from scrapping of fixed B 7E B EmEEIA R
assets 2,021,952 2,507,399
Financial expenses MIEER (7,536,687) (6,054,931)
Investment income B W= (10,063,052) (7,384,819)
(Increase)/decrease in gross FEMGLEM), B
inventories D (152,306,705) 274,401,969
(Increase)/decrease in operating S EIRIE R &Y
receivables (&), md (32,837,377) 45,517,280
Decrease in operating payables LM ERNIER &Y
VR (970,745) (47,454,589)
Net cash inflow from operating KETEBEARNRS R
activities 2% 11,358,184 447,564,249
b. Change in cash and cash equivalents: b. Be MR EEWFES
EPI
2019 2018
ltem = 20195 2018%F
Cash and cash equivalents at the ReERBFSZFEYH
end of the year FRBEE 274,050,303 378,686,607
Less: Cash and cash equivalents at & : 3R& MIREHEW
the beginning of the year SR 378,686,607 79,398,474
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and  R& MRS EEYF
cash equivalents CRA), /& n%E
(104,636,304) 299,288,133

224 Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd. B&it AR EFRTROERLDF



Notes to the Financial Statements

B 75 Ak Y o

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FRIFFEAS) - 2 BB BARET)

V. Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(cont’d)

41 Supplementary information on cash flow statement
(cont’d)
(2) Information on disposal of a subsidiary during the year:

I EHMBERRAEZERGE)

# RERBREBIER (F)

(2) BEE T FlEE =8

2019 2018
20195 20184
Consideration for disposal of a subsidiary & & T2 mlH$H1E - =
Cash or cash equivalents received for Bz & T2 B EIRIR &
disposal of the subsidiary MREEZEEY - 40,280,000
Less: Cash or cash equivalents held by & @ FREHEAHIIRS
the subsidiary MRS EEY - =
Net cash received for the disposal of a Bz & F R G EIHIR S
subsidiary FER - 40,280,000
(3) Details of cash and cash equivalents (3) H & FIE & EEYHIIEK
2019 2018
ltem HH 20195 20184
Cash at bank and on hand He 274,050,303 378,686,607
Including: Cash on hand Hih: BEFRE 78,549 102,994
Bank deposits available on AIRERF AR S AY
demand RITIFR 273,971,754 378,583,613
Closing balance of cash and cash FRAE KRS FEYH
equivalents | 274,050,303 378,686,607
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V. Notes to the consolidated financial statements

I EHMBERRAEZERGE)

(cont’d)
42 Lease 2 -HE
As a lessor KEEFERHAANHE R
Operating lease EHE
2019
ltem B H 20194
Lease income HEWA 2,673,995
Including: Income related to the variable — E /@ BLRFF ATE E U GREE A A] &
lease payments not included M E R ERAR R R WA

in the measurement of lease
payments

For the year 2019, part of the plants and buildings were
leased out by the Group for the period from 1 to 3 years.
The Group classified the lease as an operating lease,
because the lease did not substantially transfer all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the assets.

The undiscounted lease payments received by the Group
after the balance sheet date are as follows:

ltem 8 H

Within 1 year (inclusive) 1FLAA(E1F)
Over 1 year but within 2 years (inclusive) 1FEZE2F (£24F)
Over 2 years but within 3 years (inclusive) 24 ZE34F (£34F)

Total =1
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VI. Interests in other entities

Interests in subsidiaries
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(1) Subsidiaries acquired through establishment or investment

Place of
Registration

Fullname ~ Type and operafion  Business nature

iR
L i BRME  RRGE
Baishui Ancre~ Company Limee (Sino- Shaan, PRG
Juce Co, Lid. — foregn ot venturg) of condnsed ice
AKEEH  AREEDD  oERE  RERME
TrER  (bad) it
i

Vantaf Longkou Company Liited (Sio-Shendong, PRG

Aodre Juice ~ foregn ot ventur) 0f condensed fice
Co, L.

eEngEd ARENY  PENRE  RERTEE
SR (WaE) Rt

i

Nuzhou Ancte  Company Liited (Sio-Jlngsu, PRC

duice Co,, L. foregn ont veture 0f condensed fice
MRS  BREEAY  wEIGE  RERME
FreR  (had) ke

M

Foore Juce ~ Company Linted~ Brih Vign~~ Ivesiment holding
Co, L Isnas

TEiRT  ERERNY  EBEERES REAR
ERAT

Registered-
captal

ihas

Manufacture and sae - USDAT 125,000

1T1500E%

Manufacture and see~ USD19,500,000

1950000057

Manufacture and sale~ USD10,000,000

100000T

USDa0,000

B0

(BRH 5T RS - 2RRE BARET)

N ERfERDHER

EFRARFHERE
(1) B#HEK 7R EE 75 X RIFH)F
A=)
Closing halance of Group
other items that share- (roup
insubstance form ~holding  voting rights
Year-end actual netinvestmentina percentage  percentage  Consolidated  Organisation
Busingss scope investment Subsidiary (") (") YN code
ERLHRY  SERR  SERM
FhFRRAN ] 4] )
figie EXRRERD  RuueRd ) () abdx H&RARE
Manufacture ofice, fut and USD17,125,00 = 100% 10% Y 7366478
Vegetabe beverage, and releted
prodlets, and iron packaging; and
e of onn products
ERRARET RAT {7 1250057 SN B THouS
L EE e
kN BEgRED
Manufacture ofjice and sele of own~ USD19,300,000 - 10% 10% Yo 782971
products
R UeeE 93000057 S 1 T BT
Epe
Manufactre ofice, fut and USD10,000,000 - 100% 10% Yo TAS1045
Vegetebl beverage, and eited
products; sal of own products;
and manufacture ofron el or
Jice outer peckagng
HERET - HR 10000007 - B Ti30054
Hiln HEREEn
HERRaRER
vestment holding USD1 - 100% 100% Y
RERR %7 SN (R 2
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VI. Interests in other entities (cont’d) N TEEMERPMHER(E)
Interests in subsidiaries (cont’d) EFATPHER (&)
(1) Subsidiaries acquired through establishment or investment (1) BBRZBIKEE T A RZHF
(cont’d) ~a](#&)

Closing balance of Group
other items that share- Group

Place of in substance form ~~ holding  vofing rghts

Registration Registered- Year-end actual netinvestmentina percentage  percentage  Consolidated  Organisation
Full namg ~ Type and operation  Business nature capial  Business scope investment Subsiiary (") (") (YN code

BEL@RY  SEGR  sE

Rk FhEREY it it 5]
2 i BMME  RhHE LT L FXRREEE  KU%ARE ) () alfx GRAHRE
North Andre Juce Company Limted ~—~ The Unfied Sl ofcondensed~ USD,900,000  Sele of condensed uce USD,300,000 - 10% 10% Y
(USA) . Staesof fice

Amerca

e Btk I000ET BARTHE 1 000007 SR T 7
Dalan Andre Juie Company Limted~~ Liaoning, PRG~ Menufactue and sae RVBB0.000000 Menufecture and sele ofallknds RMBB0 000,000 - 100% 10% Y 000487
Co, Ltd f condensed ice o fut an vegetebl beverage;

biologicel comprefensie ufzation
of apole essence, vegetable

and pomace; and purchase of
agricutural and sdelne products
(excluding gran; and manufacture
offon packaging; mports and
Aparts of goods and fecnology

FEREN  EREENE  mERBE  BERTEE  WONOOAE LEREREREGE. 80000000 - 100% 100% 2 OB
FER R L 3 ARkT
M ENGATE  23ER

(FRRNE  Hrak
B SRKERD

i
Vantal Anfe Juice Company Lited (Sio-Shandong, PG Menufacture and sl USDA 832,000 Memfacture and processng of al -~ USDA832,000 - 100% 10% Y 730667866
Co, L. foregn ot ventur) of i pulp Kinl offut pulp and reeted

products, and sale of oun
(roducts; wholesale and import

and export ofjice and pup
fagefl  BRERNG  PELRE  REGEREE  AR00NET AENIZEAERER LB 00ET S & THT886
o (el HeER UhEaE
BRA R UERERT
F IS
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VI. Interests in other entities (cont’d)

N ERMERDRHER(R)

Interests in subsidiaries (cont’d) EFATPHER (&)
(2) Subsidiaries acquired through business combinations not (2) FEE—HEF D E A HHERZR T
under common control RE]
Closing balance of Group
other items that share- Group
Place of insubstance form ~holding  vofing rights
Registration Regs- Year-end actual netinvestmentina percentage  percentage Consolidated  Organisation
Full name ~~ Type and operation  Business nature ~ tered capital  Business scope investment subsidiary ) ) (YN code
ERLiAY  SEGR  SERM
iR FhRRRES it it} 5
1} i BRME  REE ifds EEEE EXRRERE  KenEmd (% () fi#x HRAHRE
Yongi Ancre Juice Company Limted (Sho-Shand, PRC~ Production and seleof - USD12960000 Manufacte and saeof fitend—~ USDA2,960,000 10% 10% Y TOR%A5
Co, Ltd foreign ont venture) condensed fice Vegeteble uce and beverage,
high netural apple essence, and
biclogicel comprefensie ufzation
of pomace
KEREN  BRAEAT  MEEE  RERMEE  nW0WGET 4R BEARRAL 12960 00T % 0% BT
FraR (bR Rig i RERNERER
i REhEhGaiR
Anyue fncre ~ Company Limited ~~ Sichuan, PR Production and sel of - RMB30,000,000  Menufacture and sal oflemon e, RMBA0.000,000 100% 10% Y o919
Lemon Industy condensed jice 0range jice lemon of, orenge o,
Techndlogy lemon ssence, orange essence
Co, Ltd, and pomace
REREN  BRAEMY  WEMIE  RERME 0000 ReEERE B 5000000 % 0% BRI
ERERHR Rig ARER R B ERA ARET
AL 5 Re2-
Louan Yiong ~ Company Limted ~~ Shean, PRC~ Production and sl of RMBI00000,000  Manfachure and sae of futand— RMB100,000,000 100% 100% Y o6062759
uice Co, Lt condensed jice Vegetatle ice and heverage
BRERRAT ARAEAY  WENEE  RERME 00000000 &% HERERAT {00000 % 0% B SHeEnd
ARAR 5 ARET g ARET
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VII. Risk related to financial instruments + R &R T A EE RS
The Group has exposure to the following risks from its use AEBEAREHTEEGSESHT
of financial instruments in the normal course of the Group’s BERE » TEaE

operations, which mainly include:

—  Credit risk - ERREE

- Liquidity risk - mENIEE PR

— Interest rate risk - PR

— Foreign currency risk - EXEE

—  Other price risk - HEMmMERRRE

The following mainly presents information about the Group’s TXEEsmiall EutERg A &EFK
exposure to each of the above risks and their sources, their RENRERFEENE L « BERE
changes during the year, and the Group’s objectives, policies B EHEZE - BERMERFUAMGTZERERA
and processes for measuring and managing risks, and their FAEAREFERFHEANE(LE o

changes during the year.

The Group aims to seek the appropriate balance between AEBKERREEN R IESERAR
the risks and benefits from its use of financial instruments Mz BESEE R FE - kB
and to mitigate the adverse effects that the risks of financial 1K & = e 35 2N £ (B B 75 S AR A9 T A
instruments have on the Group’s financial performance. FE HNZEREIERE »r KNEFH
Based on such objectives, the Group’s risk management 2 &I 7F B b B IR BUSE DA 3 B A0 A AN
policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced SEEERER @ ZTEEE /R
by the Group, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and A] 32 27K S 5% 51 48 FE B A 3B | 52
to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management FF AEEZEARSERRRKFE - &
policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes SEerHENEEREEERRR X
in market conditions and the Group’s activities. The internal BREARNEIEH Z4 - DUEEMSIER
audit department of the Group undertakes both regular and s AREBKLEEHNE - KREBR
ad-hoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures. A 2P 25T 20 Pt 7E HA Bk BE # i 25 (A 2
EHIZFRAITRE KA R E R
% o
(1) Credit risk (1) EARE
Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument ERER  EESBMIAN—7F
will cause a financial loss for the other party by failing TEEBITER @ ERKS — %4
to discharge an obligation. The Group’s credit risk is FEEANER - AEBEMEA
primarily attributable to cash at bank and receivables, Rl ERAEKE S MEKE
etc. Exposure to these credit risks are monitored by RE BEESE ST L=
management on an ongoing basis. RO o
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+ -R&RT RIEMaYEE(HE)

VII. Risk related to financial instruments (cont’d)

(1) Credit risk (cont’d) (1) ERREK(E)

The Group generally invests only in securities (excluding
long-term strategic investments) and trust products with
active markets and trades in good credit. In view of this,
the management of the group does not expect that the
counterparty will not perform its obligations.

The cash at bank of the Group is mainly held with well-
known financial institutions. Management does not
foresee any significant credit risks from these deposits
and does not expect that these financial institutions may
default and cause losses to the Group.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by
the carrying amount of each financial asset in the balance
sheet. The Group does not provide any other guarantees
which would expose the Group to credit risk.

Accounts receivable

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly
by the individual characteristics of each customer rather
than the industry, country or area in which the customers
operate and therefore significant concentrations of credit
risk arise primarily when the Group has significant exposure
to individual customers. At the balance sheet date, 40%
(81 December 2018: 26%) of the total accounts receivable
were due from the five largest customers of the Group.

AEE-—RASKRERBERD
BES(RERERERINM
SREEMER  MAXZHITH
ERARRL - ERL - ARE
EEEYTERRZE T EE
BITET °

AEERBRENINEBESE
ZEHREARIOS BEE
EEERRETFEEANER
R - BHTERASHTENM
MR ANREERIER ©

LR B P A SR B OKAE R LR R
NOREERBRTEHESREE
MERETE -  ANREREGRHET
A g NEBARE R RERS
iR -

JEYER L
AEEBEHARRETFZEXEER
FERBFENZE MIERF
FrER TR BIR MR o E it
EAEARBREFNBERLEZR
BEAREEFEHENEFPHEXR
FEURBRZR ° 72019512 A318 &
201812 A31H  AEB WA R
RE P e R 3L 78 5 B pE Uk
R RRE D R A40% ~ 26% °
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VII. Risk related to financial instruments (cont’d) + BemTAMHRAREE (&)

(1) Credit risk (cont’d) (1) EREk(HE)
Accounts receivable (cont’d) JENCBR K (4B )
In respect of receivables, the risk management committee HREWERR - AEERE K EIE
of the Group has established a credit policy under which ZEEeRREETREBEREET S
individual credit evaluations are performed on all customers BAHBE  SRFPEITERTEA
to determine the credit limit and terms applicable to the HEREEE G AR - 58
customers. These evaluations focus on the customers’ FEEBREZFEHE SRR
financial position, the external ratings of the customers INEBET AR M iR1T1E AR 8 (A0 B Al
and their bank credit records where available. Due dates 8%) - BRAM IR B B ARRE
of receivables vary from 15-240 days from the day of H#E15-240 K E Hf - fE U AR 5
issue. Debtors with balances that past due are requested HMEBEASHERLSERE
to settle all outstanding balances before any further credit REERE A AESE—F
is granted. Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral MEEREE - E—HRBAT @+ &
from customers. SETERFFPREMERGS -
For detail information about accounts receivable, please BREAEWERNAEEES B2
refer to the relevant disclosures in note V(3). RMER - KRR -

(2) Liquidity risk (2) FEN R B
Liquidity risk is the risk that an enterprise will encounter mENMERRE - RECEEBITA
difficulty in meeting obligations that are settled by TR EMERmEEN T
delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company EEMNEEKRELEESRERARE
and its individual subsidiaries are responsible for their own R ARARREFARBEEH
cash management, including short term investment of MIBSEEITIE EERcAS
cash surpluses and the raising of loans to cover expected G EMER ERIAEMNIE
cash demands, subject to approval by the Company’s SRS E R (MR EREE R BT L
board when the borrowings exceed certain predetermined TERRELR » BFEESAAT
levels of authority. The Group’s policy is to regularly BEEemiE)  c AEEMEERE
monitor its liquidity requirements and its compliance with FHEXREHMEHENORHE S
lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient TR URRERAERBER
reserves of cash, readily realisable marketable securities BE  UAERES THNE SR
and adequate committed lines of funding from major ERA R SR N EERES -
financial institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in RRFESEZESEERERMR
the short and longer term. EHNERES - D EEA
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VII. Risk related to financial instruments (cont’d) + HempT AERMAI RS (1)

(2) Liquidity risk (cont’d) (2) FENER B ()
The following tables set out the remaining contractual rEEREERBERENEREA
maturities at the balance sheet date of the Group’s BiRATENERE S EE(BE
financial liabilities, which are based on contractual cash EARFIR(NRZF B8 FI = BIi%
flows (including interest payments computed using 12831 BMIRITH R )G E R F
contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current E)RNRIGE QHRE - LAREEK
at the balance sheet date) and the earliest date the Group YRHEFERENT :

can be required to pay:

2019 Contractual undiscounted cash flow

W19FERFANAAALTE

More than ~ More than Carrying

Within 1yearbut 2 years but amount at

1 year or on less than less than ~ More than balance

demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total  sheet date

1ERE BERR

ltem R EGRE 152 2FF5E 5L &t RGERE
Financial liabilties cRAR

Accounts payable FEfTERR 50,333,299 - - - 50,333,299 50,333,299

Other payables LA 16,807,137 - - - 16,807,137 16,807,137

Long-term payables KR 90,000 - 629,840 1,111,000 1,830,840 1,634,491

Total CE 67,230,436 - 629,840 1,111,000 68,971,276 68,774,927

2018 Contractual undiscounted cash flow
NIBFRARNERBETE

More than More than Carrying

Within 1yearbut 2 years but amount at

1 year or on less than less than More than balance

demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total sheet date

1M, BESR

ltem 1BH BRREE 162 2ER5E 58 E a i RERAEE
Financial liabilties TRER

Short-term loans B 50,884,065 - - - 50,884,085 50,000,000

Accounts payable AN 38,189,494 - - - 38,189,494 38,189,494

Other payables HEpE 17,882,208 - - - 17882203 17,882,208

Long-term payables REEAT 90,000 90,000 629,840 1,111,000 1920840 1,687,458

Total &t 107,045,762 90,000 629,840 1,111,000 108,876,602 107,759,155
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VII. Risk related to financial instruments (cont’d) + HempT AERMAI RS (1)

(3) Interest rate risk

Interest-bearing financial instruments at variable rates and
at fixed rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate
risk and fair value interest risk, respectively. The Group
determines the appropriate weightings of the fixed and
floating rate interest-bearing instruments based on the
current market conditions and performs regular reviews
and monitoring to achieve an appropriate mix of fixed
and floating rate exposure. The Group does not enter into
financial derivatives to hedge interest rate risk.

(@) As at 31 December, the Group held the following
interest-bearing financial instruments:

(3) Fl== =B

Bl EMEMFBNENE ST B
TASRIEAKEEEERAEBE
MEEBREBEERENRRAR -
AREBERBEMHRRAORE B E
MEREFENH R T A - A
BATHEHNEERERESN
BEMIBMNETAES - K&
B R IADT A & B T B S A =X
[\ o

(a) AEER 12831 HiFHEIETE
EHITAMT

Fixed rate instruments: BEEfE&MITA :
2019 2018
2019% 20185
Effective Effective
interest rate Amount interest rate Amount
ltem BE EWRFE & BRI fix
Financial liabilities PRAR
- Short-term loans - REEHN - - 4.35% ~ 4.44% (50,000,000)
Total At = (60,000,000)
Variable rate instruments: FHAESHMTE :
2019 2018
20196 20185
Effective Effective
interest rate Amount interest rate Amount
ltem EE FHE & EH% &8
Financial assets SHEE
- Cash at bank Rk 0.01% ~ 0.3% 213971,754  0.01% ~ 0.30% 378,583,613
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VII. Risk related to financial instruments (cont’d)

(3) Interest rate risk (cont’d)
(b) Sensitivity analysis
As at 31 December 2019, it is estimated that a general
increase of 50 basis points in interest rates, with
all other variables held constant, would increase the
Group’s equity and net profit by RMB 1,027,394 (2018:
RMB1,419,689).

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
instantaneous change in the net profit and equity that
would arise assuming that the change in interest rates
had occurred at the balance sheet date and had been
applied to re-measure those financial instruments
held by the Group which expose the Group to fair
value interest rate risk at the balance sheet date. In
respect of the exposure to cash flow interest rate risk
arising from floating rate non-derivative instruments
held by the Group at the balance sheet date, the
impact on the net profit and equity is estimated as
an annualised impact on interest expense or income
of such a change in interest rates. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for the previous year.

(4) Foreign currency risk

In respect of cash at bank and on hand, accounts
receivable and payable, short-term loans and other assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies other
than the functional currency, the Group ensures that its
net exposure is kept to an acceptable level by buying or
selling foreign currencies at spot rates when necessary
to address short-term imbalances.

(BRH 5T RS - 2RRE BARET)

+ -R&RT RIEMaYEE(HE)

(8) =@M (&)

(b) SRNES T
R2019F 12 A31H » EEAM
BETEHNBERT - BEF X
EASOEER S B AER
[ B A 2 A ARG N A R
1,027,394 70 (20184 : #ANA
R#1,419,6897T) °

HRNEBERBRAFANEAR
SEEER R BENXRREN
TRTHE - EASRESTH
HEMBERRERNRZER
BREEERBERANEREZLE
'''''' HE) - WA RE Ft S R
TEETEMFIEROTE -
HRNEEREREFKAN - &
AEEE RS RENERER
HUFBRIRIEDTAET A - bt
SURME DT B3R R BCR
BRNTER DA RSB
REEGLENMEERIEA
MEE - L—FENITER
R RERFITA

(4) E=mE b
HRTEUAREA I BFHENE
MES - ERFRIEMNENRIE
EHERFIINEEENEE  ©@
EHEEHENREER A&
EerENBEREMBERE I
W DAREIR A5 5 EL B it O #E 45 1E
AR AKE o
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VII. Risk related to financial instruments (cont’d)

(4) Foreign currency risk (cont’d)

(@) As at 31 December, the Group’s exposure to currency
risk arising from recognised assets or liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies is presented in
the following tables. For presentation purposes, the
amounts of the exposure are shown in Renminbi,
translated using the spot rate at the balance sheet date.
Differences resulting from the translation of foreign
currency financial statements and the description of

other exposure items that are excluded.

[tem 15H

Cash at bank and on hand E#44%

usD X
HKD B
Accounts receivable EUAR X
Usb eV
Accounts payable FERTHRR
usD ETT

Net balance shest exposure A & B0 F58
UshD eI
HKD ks

236  Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd. B&itH R EFRTROERLD T

+ -HenT REMAYEE(E)

(4) ERERE)
(a) AEBEMR12A31HH &N
AEAEEE EXRK D0
T o HRZIREE - RO
SHEUARKEIIR - LWEESR
BEXRBAHERTE - JhEER
RIMEZMABEENRN °

2019 2018

20195 20184
Balance Balance at Balance Balance at
at foreign RMB at foreign RMB
currency equivalent currency equivalent
A e
S ARWRE ISR ARWHE
6,786,937 47,347,032 28,372,585 194,726,723
558,572 500,358 851,421 746,015
22,384,608 156,159,501 22,999,288 157,848,717
(274,142) (1,912,469) (1,054,866) (7,239,756)
28,897,403 201,594,065 50,317,007 345,335,684
558,572 500,358 851,421 746,015
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VII. Risk related to financial instruments (cont’d)

(4) Foreign currency risk (cont’d)

(b) The following are the exchange rates for Renminbi
against foreign currencies applied by the Group:

HKD ot
usD ETT

(c) Sensitivity analysis

(BRH 5T RS - 2RRE BARET)

+ -HenT REMAYEE(E)

(4) ERER(H)
(b) EBEH A R EL A

EZE T -
Average rate Reporting date mid-spot rate
FiER HEARRESE
2019 2018 2019 2018
20195 20184 20194 20184
0.8860 0.8561 0.8958 0.8762
6.9197 6.6987 6.9762 6.8632

Assuming all other risk variables remained constant,
a 5% strengthening of the Renminbi against the US
dollar and Hong Kong dollar at 31 December would
have decreased the Group’s equity and net profit by
the amount shown below, whose effect is in Renminbi
and translated using the spot rate at the year-end

date.

As at 31 December 2019
UsD
HKD

Total

As at 31 December 2018
usD
HKD

Total

20195124314
e
B

2018412 A31H
EJT
ik

(c) BT

1R 7€ B [ 2= A SN EL i [ e 22
=g KEBEMN12A318
A B S 22 T T 7 1 Y B o
B F AR A E5% 15 E B
B 25 AF A A R A B R
T o tEmEEaERAA
HERITE B ARKTIR o

Equity Net profit
BERES BFE
7,559,777 7,559,777
18,763 18,763
7,578,541 7,578,541

12,950,088 12,950,088
27,976 27,976

12,978,064 12,978,064
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VII. Risk related to financial instruments (cont’d)

(4) Foreign currency risk (cont’d)
(c) Sensitivity analysis (cont’d)
A 5% weakening of the Renminbi against the US dollar
and Hong Kong dollar at 31 December would have
had the equal but opposite effect to the amounts
shown above, on the basis that all other variables
remained constant.

The sensitivity analysis above assumes that the
change in foreign exchange rates had been applied
to re-measure those financial instruments held by the
Group which expose the Group to foreign currency
risk at the balance sheet date. The analysis excludes
differences that would result from the translation of
foreign currency financial statements. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for the previous year.

(5) Other price risks
Other price risks include commodity price risk.

VIIl.Fair value disclosure

1 Fair value of assets and liabilities measured at fair
value at the end of the year
As at 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018, there
is no financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value.

2 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities not
measured at fair value
All financial instruments are carried at amounts not
materially different from their fair value as at 31 December
2019 and 31 December 2018 on the Group’s ownership.
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(4) EXmE(HE)
(c) BENEDHT (&)

MR12A3818 ' EBREEME
ERBTIENRRT « ARK
HWERITFABBHE RS EHFE A
REEBZE5% 1 E B RAE R
MIBZWEEF ERTREE
BEHRREHRBER

ElgERES T RBREREER
BRAERELET - A
BOETHEERBERAAE
EREEN - MEREXERAS
BMTEETEHNESLD -
BT A BEINERRITE
ZR8 o F—FENOMERR
BEVBRRMIDEA ©

(5) HftEEER
HibEREREERmERRR -

N\ BRRERNEE
1 DREEHE

M2019F12 A31H %2018%F 12 A
318  AEBTHEURAEE
SENERMIA -

HitEMT AN D ABEEERE
A AEETENER)
2019412 A31H 2018512
318 AREZHEREENS
MEENEEEERAABEZ
REEAEER -



IX. Related parties and related party transactions

1

Ultimate holding party of the Company
The ultimate holding party of the Company are Mr. Wang

An and Ms. Wang Meng.

Information about the subsidiaries of the Company
For information about the subsidiaries of the Company,

refer to Note VI.
Information on other related parties

Name of other related parties

RumBs 28

Shandong Andre Group Co., Ltd.

IR ZENERBRAR

President Enterprises (China) Investment Co., Ltd. and
its subsidiaries

S—rE(PE)REERARNREFAR

Guangzhou President Enterprises Co., Ltd.

BNG—EERAA

Chengdu President Enterprises Food Co., Ltd.

KBG-—CFXRRAERAF

Yantai Andre Yangma Resort Co., Ltd.

BAEESRETERNERAT

Yantai Andre Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.

HezENEHEREERAR

Yantai Andre Property Management Co., Ltd.

WERENNRERERAT

Yantai Andre Pectin Co., Ltd.

MazEHRBRABRAR

Yantai Hengtong Heat Co., Ltd.

BasRATERAF

Liquan Yitong Heat Co., Ltd.

BREBRNERAT

Yantai Yitong Heat Co., Ltd.

BaERAEERAR

Yantai Hengda Cement Co., Ltd.

WaFEKRERAR

Yantai Hengli Contrete LLC.

BEFNERLBEREEAR

Yantai Xinping Jian'an Co., Ltd.

e TREZIRER A
Yantai Xingan Investment Centre (Limited Partnership)
WaBEZREDL(FRAH)
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h BBLRABRZS

1 AATHRRKRESFER
RABHRRIEE T BEEARAAT
RHEAEMERHELZL o

2 - ARFANFLRAER
RRARNTARBRBERLRM

A o
3 - EABIH S SR

Related party relationship
)]t

An entity which has significant influence over the Group (i)
HAREEREATENEE()
An entity which has significant influence over the Group (i)

HASEBHREAZENEX()

A subsidiary of the President Enterprises (China) Investment Co., Ltd.

GEROERAFANT AR

A subsidiary of the President Enterprises (China) Investment Co., Ltd.

B—ERNERRAN TR

Under control of the same ultimate holding company

AR KB RN %

Under control of the same ultimate holding company

RIXREEH TR %

Under control of the same ultimate holding company

RIX KA R %

Under significant influence of the same ultimate holding company

XEEEHREAZENRE

Under control of the same ultimate holding company

AR EREHI ARG RE

Under control of the same ultimate holding company (i)

RIS AR A A0 5K i)

Under control of the same ultimate holding company

RARZEEH A EHNE %

Under control of the same ultimate holding company

AR ZEEH A EHNEE

Under significant influence of the same ultimate holding company

REEEHREATENRE

Under control of a close family member of the Company’s key
management personnel

REEH SRR REK SEHN AR

Under control of the Company’s key management personnel

AEERREEARENER
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h BRBLRABERZS (&)

IX. Related parties and related party transactions
(cont’d)

3 - ELftE8EE 5 15 R ()

3 Information on other related parties (cont’d)

Name of other related parties

RtAB A &R

Donghua Fruit Industry Co., Ltd.

Donghua Fruit Industry Co., Ltd.

China Pingan Investment Holdings Limited

China Pingan Investment Holdings Limited

Yantai Andre holiday Hotel Plaza Limited

BazENEREEERA

Yantai Andre construction and Installation Engineering
Company Limited

ARENRERRTRERAR

Kun\ong Spring Resort Ltd

MRERRRERAR

Mitsui & Co., Ltd.

Mitsui & Co., Ltd.

Mitsui Foods Inc.

Mitsui Foods Inc.

Bussan Food Materials Co., Ltd.

Bussan Food Materials Co., Ltd.

Yantai Andre Biotechnology Co., Ltd.

ReRENEMREERAR

Related party relationship
R E

Under control of the same ultimate holding company
X REEH TR %
Under control of the same ultimate holding company
Eh et pell: 0k 3
Under control of the same ultimate holding company
RIX SRR A EH %

Under control of the same ultimate holding company

AR REEH RN X

Under control of the same ultimate holding company
FEeseS it g0kt 3

Own more than 5% of the shares of the Company (iii)
BB D RI5% LA R 1D R4 % i)

Under the control of Mitsui & Co., Ltd ii

R Mitsui & Co., Ltd #9105 i)

Under the control of Mitsui & Co., Ltd (i)

Mitsui & Co., Lt 72 | K9 (i)

Under the control of Yantai Andre Pectin Co., Ltd.
RBERENRBROBRAGEHHAE

U

(i)

(i)

Shandong Andre Group Co., Ltd. and President Enterprises
(China) Investment Co., Ltd. exercised their significant
influence over the Company through their representation
on the board of directors of the Company.

Yantai Yitong Heat Co., Ltd. disposed the 100% shares of
Liquan Yitong Heat Co., Ltd. to Yantai Anlin Fruit Co., Ltd.,
on 1 April 2019.

Mitsui & Co., Ltd. owns more than 5% of the shares of the
Company. Mitsui Foods Inc. and Bussan Food Materials
Co., Ltd. are the subsidiaries of Mitsui & Co., Ltd. These
entities are regarded as related parties in accordance with
the Measures for the Administration of Information Disclosure
of Listed Companies promulgated by the China Securities
Regulatory Commission.
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RARIEEMEFANEREBRRS
BRAAI100% A # T 1H & 2 MR
¥ERAF °

Mitsui & Co., Ltd. (ZHMEKI
B EARRFSRIA ERMD
Mitsui Foods Inc.#Bussan Food
Materials Co., Ltd. % Bl A& 7 §%
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IX. Related parties and related party transactions b
(cont’d)

4 Transactions with related parties

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group entered
into transactions with related parties as set out as follows.
Apart from the items disclosed in the Report of the
Directors under the section “Connected Transactions”,
all the material related party transactions disclosed below
did not constitute non-exempt connected transactions or
continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

(1) Related party transactions

(BRH 5T RS - 2RRE BARET)

ARG RABRES(E’)

4 -BEHIZER
HZE2019F12A31HILEFE @ &K
= E B E TN A &
ZRG  -BEERESSRE
WIEEERS |—&5 - Fia T
WEZ2EABBAIZTSEK
R ETHRAFE1AAZTRTE BTER
CHBRFHIHFERERS -

(1) BB 5

The Group The Company
*5E . I
Note 2019 2018 2019 2018
it 20195 20184 20195 20184
Sales of goods and SHE R m kAR
service B 119,069,855 66,762,076 64,061,086 83,284,548
Purchases of goods and BERmLEE
service G5 8,021,705 18,436,938 317,469,269 438,889,489
Purchases of assets BEEE - - 128,267 280,700
Sales of assets HEBE 88,496 = 166,824 14,450,213
Storage incomes ERBIA - 336,600 - 336,600
Rental income el 963,079 978,220 559,879 642,220
Advance money received Y [EREFIE - - - 86,833,523
Advance money released MR EFIE = - 134,011,188 =
Fund received BWES - 20,000,000 - -
Fund returned ERES - 20,000,000 - -
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IX. Related parties and related party transactions
(cont’d)

4 Transactions with related parties (cont’d)
(2) Remuneration of key management personnel

Key management personnel are those persons holding
positions with authority and responsibility for planning,
directing and controlling the activities of the Group,
directly or indirectly, including the Group’s directors
and supervisors. Remuneration for key management
personnel of the Group is as follows:

The Group

ltem 5 H

Remuneration of key management

personnel R E I A B RN
The Company
ltem HH
Remuneration of key management

personnel RABEE IR A B RN

For the year ended 31 December 2019 and 31
December 2018, no emoluments were paid to the
directors or supervisors as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Company or as compensation for loss
of office. For the year ended 31 December 2019 and
31 December 2018, no fees or any other emoluments
were waived by directors or supervisors.
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h BRBLRABERZS (&)

4 BB ZER (R
2) FBREEANBMNF 2

MREEABRREEINE
TERAMEERS - FEMNE
HIREEEBIAR - BEAN
SENEENES - HHERE

B ABRBMNT ¢
r. 3L
2019 2018
20195 20184
3,902,380 3,331,561
b /N
2019 2018
2019 2018%F
2,473,371 2,455,324

#HZE2019412 A31H %2018
F12A31BLFE - X&EHE
FARBIWRAEEREES
RN PAYE BB E N A
QAR ERE SR BB E o X
£2019% 12 A31H k20184
12A31BILEFE  EFHE
EMEHECSHEMMD -
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IX. Related parties and related party transactions h AR AFREABNES(E)
(cont’d)

5 Receivables from and payables to related parties 5 - BEE A FEUR FE(S B
The Group The Company
*50E b /N
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2019 2018 2019 2018
20195 2018%F 20195 20184
12A31H 12A31H 12A31H 124310
Accounts receivable FEU RN 13,013,291 7,973,345 10,292,001 42,096,010
Other receivable-dividends H b R — PR AR FI
receivable - - 25,699,658 25,699,658
Other receivables-others Hin U — HAb = - 252,921,563 119,058,112
Accounts payable TR 47,659 14,694 16,668,439 5,244,670
Other payables-others HirE—Hi - - 291,347,559 441,389,335
6 Guarantee 6 - BRERIE(R
(1) The Group as a guarantee (1) AEEERRIERT
2019 2018
20195 20184
Guaranty Guaranty
Amount of completed Amount of completed
guaranty (Y/N) guaranty (Y/N)
REEE ERT
Name of guarantor ERA BReE BEETRR EReHE E?&Eﬁ%iﬁ-
Shandong Andre Group ~ ILRZEMEEHR AR N/A N
Co., Ltd. - AER 50,000,000 B
Shandong Andre Group LR ZEFIEEER AR Y Y
Co., Ltd. 50,000,000 Z 70,000,000 I

Total e 50,000,000 120,000,000
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IX. Related parties and related party transactions

(cont’d)

6 Guarantee (cont’d)
(2) The Company as a guarantee

Name of guarantor ERA

Shandong Andre Group IR ZEFIKEBRAH

Co., Ltd.

Shandong Andre Group IR ZEFIEERR A
Co., Ltd.

Total G
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h BRBLRABERZS (&)

6 - BB IR ()
(2) AR EIERHEERT

50,000,000

2019 2018
2019 20185

Guaranty Guaranty
Amount of completed Amount of completed
guaranty (Y/N) guaranty (Y/N)
REER ERRS

REeE EEETRER ERe®E BEETRT
N/A N
- A#A 50,000,000 &
Y Y
50,000,000 Z 70,000,000 =

120,000,000
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Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are
to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern, so
that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders, by
pricing products and services commensurately with the level
of risk and by securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.
The Group defines “capital” as including all components
of equity plus any loans from related parties with no fixed
terms of repayment, less unaccrued proposed dividends.
The balances of related party transactions are not regarded
by the Group as capital.

The Group’s capital structure is regularly reviewed and
managed to achieve an optimal structure and return for
shareholders. Factors for the Group’s consideration include:
its future funding requirements, capital efficiency, actual and
expected profitability, expected cash flows, and expected
capital expenditure. Adjustments are made to the capital
structure in light of changes in economic conditions affecting
the Group.

The Group’s capital structure is monitored on the basis of an
adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio. For this purpose, adjusted
net debt is defined as total debt (which includes short-term
loans and long-term payables) plus unaccrued proposed
dividends, less related-party loans with no fixed repayment
terms and cash and cash equivalents.

During 2019, the Group’s strategy, which was unchanged
from 2018, was to maintain an adjusted net debt-to-capital
ratio of no more than 30%. In order to maintain or adjust the
ratio, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, request new loans, issue new shares, or sell
assets to reduce debt.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject
to externally imposed capital requirements.

(BRH 5T RS - 2RRE BARET)
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(BR1FREEEAS) - 2 FEE [ BARET)

XIl. Commitments and Contingencies +--

1 Significant commitments
(1) Capital commitments

ltem BH

Signed contracts for acquisition of

fixed assets being or to be BRI EESEHERIT
executed WEEEERESR

(2) Operating lease commitments
As at 31 December 2018, the Group and the Company
had no non-cancellable operating leases.

2 Contingent liabilities arising from outstanding
litigations and arbitration and related financial impact
As at 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018, the
Group did not have contingent liabilities arising from
outstanding litigations and arbitration.

3 Contingent liabilities arising from guarantees provided
for other entities and related financial impact
As at 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018, the
Group did not provide guarantees in respect of the bank
loans of other companies.
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

XIl. Subsequent events

The coronavirus outbreak since early 2020 has brought about
additional uncertainties in the Group’s operating environment
and may impact the Group’s operations and financial position.

The Group has been closely monitoring the impact of
the developments on the Group’s businesses and has
put in place contingency measures. These contingency
measures include: increasing our options for logistics and
transportation, evaluating the supply readiness of our raw
materials suppliers, negotiating with customers on delivery
schedule, and continuously monitoring the operations of our
domestic customers. The Group will keep our contingency
measures under review as the situation evolves.

As far as the Group’s businesses are concerned, the
coronavirus outbreak occurred after the end of the Group’s
production season and did not affect the Group’s production,
but the outbreak may increase the risk of delivery delays and
the transportation cost. The Group has initiated the above
contingency measures to respond. Based on the information
currently available, the management estimated that the
coronavirus outbreak may impact the repayment abilities of
certain small and medium-sized domestic customers and,
as a result, may lead to additional provision for bad and
doubtful debts subsequent to the balance sheet date. Such
impact has not been reflected in the financial statements as
at 31 December 2019. The actual impact may differ from the
estimate as more information may become available to the
Group while the situation continue to evolve.

(BRH 5T RS - 2RRE BARET)

BERRRAEER

BH20205FHIAK - HEBRES
BAMMARBENRLEFEGTAE
BREEREFENEEME - 7
BE 3 78 &= B 1O 48 & AR A B 5 AR
MELZE -

AEE-EERTIEEERY
SEEXBNTE  YHETER
B o ELESIERELE M
B R EREE  SFERM
REREEANHEGERBBTR
HEEPHRRERRRAETHA
SERTEARTPHELERR
BELENER  AKEHTEH
EERMNESIEE

RAEEEBRME @ ZRBERE
EAREETHELEESLRZE
REAEBEEEXNTE - B2
&1 1] Be A PR A2 & AT AR A9 LB A
REGEREANTE - XEE
B RUE) Ll fE 258 i T AR o
BIEBEERZEENEE BEEMR
5t 0 ORI AT REH B R E Bl A N
AERENERENEETE &
BEHEERERABNERE
SREREEE £ FEINRE R BT S Rk
VE LNy ERRVEERZE
2019412 A31 B BiRKRAP o &
CSEBEEBRANERMESE
ZEE  BERFEMREHE Fa

SRR -

—Z-AFFH Annual Report 2019

247



Notes to the financial statements

§t 35 ¥ AR B o
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(BR1FREEEAS) - 2 FEE [ BARET)

XIll Other significant items = HEEFER

Segment reporting DEBRE
The Group is principally operating in a single reportable AREFBTEREE —KEDIAKLS
segment, which is engaged in manufacture and sales of BAEHERERTRBEER © A
condensed fruit juice and related products, and provision RIBHEA TR - FrARERR
of juice processing services, therefore the Group has not BRBELEDEEE o
disclose any further information with respect to reportable
segment.
The geographical location of the Group’s operating income INTERAEBEZEF IR R E
from external customers is set out as follows: WA :

2019 2018
Geographical location b & 20195 20184
China s 296,689,334 240,873,341
North America b ZEM 83,522,194 408,497,782
Asia (excluding China) TN (AR BILASN) 214,540,584 157,120,674
Europe BOM 127,374,582 112,841,327
Oceania RAEM 53,108,374 51,451,203
Africa FEM 62,344,081 96,401,274
South America mEM 548,188 399,207
Total A&t 838,127,337 1,067,584,808
As at 31 December 2019, the carrying amount of non-current MR2019%F 12 A31H * NEBEE
assets located overseas is RMB12,652,430 (31 December INEERIEGREEERTE A AR
2018: RMB12,806,254). # 12,652,430 (20184 : AR ¥

12,806,254 7T) °

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group has 2019FEE K2018EE » EAEEER
1 customer (For the year ended 31 December 2018: no Fr o KAEERBERE—ZERAL
customer), the operating income from which is over 10% of REBBKAI0%KIA FHEEHE
the Group’s total operating income. The operating income PRl A1EROME » 2019F EZ2 % —
from this customer represents approximately 10% of the RKEEMHEAREEBLILA10% © KE
Group’s total operating income. The income amount of this ZEZEHIRASREYRET

customer is set out as follows:

2019 2018
20195 20184
Geographical Geographical
Customers location Amount location Amount
B HE b4 L] = K-
Customer 1 Europe 86,532,450 Europe below 10% of
the Group’s
total
operating
income
B EX M 86,532,450 &M (WS
WA EI10%
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T BAFRMBRREERE

XIV Notes to major items in the parent company’s

financial statements ]
1 Bills receivable 1 BREE
2019 2018
ltem EE] 20195 2018%F
Bank acceptance bills RITA L ESE 1,875,118 6,119,488

All of the above bills receivable were due within one year,
and were not pledged.

The carrying amount of undue bills receivable that have
been endorsed and derecognized are RMB309,296. As
at 31 December 2019, the remaining maturities of the
derecognized bills ranged from 1 to 5 months.

The carrying amount of undue bills receivable that have
been endorsed and derecognized are RMB4,028,596.
As at 31 December 2018, the remaining maturities of the
derecognized bills ranged from 1 to 4 months.

According to the Bill Law of the People’s Republic of
China, if the acceptance banks of bills receivable that
are discounted or endorsed by the Company refuse
to pay the bills, the bills holders has recourse to the
Company. The Board of Directors believe that there is no
significant default risk of the acceptance banks which the
bills were endorsed to and the Company had substantially
transferred almost all the risks and rewards of those bills
which have been endorsed and derecognized. Therefore,
the Company derecognized these bills in full.

EUZEAR—FARH - AR
WER -

MR2019%12H31H ' EXEINE
RIETERA AR E B E R E IR R
He %A AR309,2967TT ° i
2019412 A31H » RILFERZE
FISRHARR B1 =5 A -

MR2018%F12H31H ' EXEINE
AR 1 FE SR A oK B HE FE U ZE 5 A9 BR
e A ARKL028,5967T © A
2018512 A31H » RILFERER
FIsRHAR A1 2418 A -

RIEPEAREMEZEL - 10
AR R B ENERERD
EGIRITIRBNFT  HEALHA
PREBERRE - EEERE
EEEZBRNALRTIAGEESE
RNIBITELRR - HRE IR
NEEEZE  ARFAEEH L
EBY TZEEBRATRENER
MERE - Bk - N"ARI 2L L
ERELRIE °
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BR1FFIE RSN - 2B E ML B ARKET)

T BLFRMBRREERE
B\

2~ BURARK
(1) FEWBR X 1% & 5 28 5l 73 47 %0

XIV Notes to major items in the parent company’s
financial statements (cont’d)

2 Accounts receivable
(1) Accounts receivable by customer type are as follows:

T
2019 2018
Customer type = FELER 20195 20184
Subsidiaries FRA] 9,425,152 41,464,465
Other related parties B {th BEEE A R 866,849 631,545
Third parties =75 133,809,356 116,830,606
Sub-total NG 144,101,357 158,926,616
Less: Provision for bad and B SRR
doubtful debts 4,483,096 8,028,504
Total A&t 139,618,261 150,898,112
(2) The ageing analysis of accounts receivable is as (2) FEWBRFIL R D TZO T
follows:
2019 2018
Ageing AR 20194 20184
Within 6 months (inclusive) 61 A AR (E6MEA) 142,637,294 117,492,619
After 6 months but within 1 year (inclusive) 618 A =1F(S14F) 1,461,450 41,431,384
After 1 year but within 2 years (inclusive) 15 ZE24F (&24F) 2,613 2,613
Sub-total /NEF 144,101,357 158,926,616
Less: Provision for bad and doubtful debts 3 : ZERR % 4,483,096 8,028,504
Total A 139,618,261 150,898,112

The ageing is counted starting from the date when
accounts receivable are recognised.
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XIV Notes to major items in the parent company’s 10 -BATMERREERBEF

financial statements (cont’d) : 16 D)
2 Accounts receivable (cont’d) 2~ FEWBRRR (&)
(3) Addition, reversal or written-off of provision for bad (8) AIRERIAEFZEIE © #2[0]
and doubtful debts during the year: IR B
2019 2018
20195 20184
Balance under the original financial Rem T EERTr
instruments standard 5] 5,066,262
Impact on initial application of the new  BEXMITH @ T A%
financial instruments standards Blm A= -
Adjusted balance at the beginning FEIE R F AR
of the year 8,028,504 5,066,262
Reversals during the year AR e (o] (3,545,408) —
Additions during the year REFHR - 2,962,242
Balance at the end of the year FRERTE 4,483,096 8,028,604
3 Other receivables 3~ HiERSR
Notes 2019 2018
ltem IEH 7T 20194 20184
Dividends receivable Gl 25,699,658 25,699,658
Others Hith (1) 253,081,083 119,294,470
Total BEF 278,780,741 144,994,128
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XIV Notes to major items in the parent company’s 10 -BATMERREERBEF

financial statements (cont’d) B\
3 Other receivables (cont’d) 3 HibEW (&)
(1) Others (1) Bt
(@) Other receivables analysis by type are as follows: (a) HBEFHERIDHTIT :
2019 2018

Type =Yl 20195 20184
Subsidiaries FAA] 252,921,563 119,058,112
Third parties F=5 159,520 236,358
Sub-total NE 253,081,083 119,294,470
Less: Provision for bad and B REREE

doubtful debts - -
Total X 253,081,083 119,294,470

(b) The ageing analysis of other receivables is as (o) IREREDITAAT -
follows:
2019 2018

Ageing ARER 20195 20184
Within 1 year (inclusive) 1ELAA(E1E) 186,282,373 52,495,760
Over 3 years 3EA L 66,798,710 66,798,710
Sub-total INET 253,081,083 119,294,470
Less: Provision for bad and B REREEE

doubtful debts - -
Total CE 253,081,083 119,294,470
The ageing is counted starting from the date when BE 5 B E it pE R S RE 2 B
other receivables are recognised. HEEIIAETE o
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XIV Notes to major items in the parent company’s 10 -BATMERREERBEF

financial statements (cont’d) B\
4 Long-term equity investments 4 -RERERE
(1) Long-term equity investments by category are as (1) REIRERE SR -
follows:
2019 2018

ltem ELS 20195 20184
Investments in subsidiaries HFRARHKRE 465,462,159 465,462,159
Less: Provision for impairment W OREZEE 35,667,335 34,867,415
Total A&t 429,794,824 430,594,744
As at 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018, 72019412 A31 A k20184
the Company recognised impairment provisions of 12A318  ARBH T LA
RMB35,667,335 and RMB34,867,415, respectively TELXRNEEEZRBREAR
for the long-term equity investment in Anyue Andre RANKRBRERETRE
Lemon Industry Technology Co., Ltd. = R B £ £ 35,667,335 7T &

34,867,4157C °
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XIV Notes to major items in the parent company’s
financial statements (cont’d)

4 Long-term equity investments (cont’d)
(2) Movements of long-term equity investments for the

T BLFRMBRREERE

B\

4 RERERE(R)
2) RERIERE R FEEER D

year are as follows: WrEaT  :
2019 20194
Book value of long-term equity investment
RURARARERE
Balance of
provision for
impaiment - Shareholding  Voting rights Cash
nvestment Increase/ M3 Provisionfor attheendof percentage percentage dividend for
cost AtfJanuary  Decrease  December impainment  the year (") () theyear
BiRE  nEkE
BERR REEE  BORE  EGEAE 3
Ivestee BREEN fEas AR EASD  uRMR RERR  FRBE MR HAG)  BEAH
Cost method-subsidaries BRE-TA7
Bashu Andre Jice Co, Ltd. — FkREFEATARAT 10630130 110630130 - 110630430 - - TAMN T4 -
Vanta Longkou Ande Juce ~ |RAEORERZE
o, Lt RO 80626%  806226% - 806269 - - E0%  d650% 84283070
Xizhou Ancve dice Co, Lt #HREHEATARAT 56548 58645418 - 548 - - 5% 5%
Andre Juie Co, L. REHEEELT 8 8 - 8 - - 100% 100%
Delln Ancre Jiee Co, Lid.— REREHREERAT 56000000 56000000 - 56000000 - - 0% 0%
Yenta e ice Co, Lld.— RagEHEAAARAT 30000000 30000000 - 30000000 - - 5% 5% -
YogiAndie dice Co, L. KERERRAIERAD  TARNT  TT4R007 - T - - 5% T 63000000
Anyue Andre Lemon lolsty R RERERELRR
TechnologyGo, i BRAH 52420000 52,120,000 - R0 (19000 (367,33 100% 100%
Tot Al 465460159 465,462,159 - 454010 (To90%) (36667, 147,263,070
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XIV Notes to major items in the parent company’s 10 -BATMERREERBEF

financial statements (cont’d) ®(E)
4 Long-term equity investments (cont’d) 4 - REIBRFERE (M8)
(2) Movements of long-term equity investments for the (2) REJARIER &R FZE) S5 7
year are as follows: (cont'd) war (&)
2018 20184

Book vl ofong-tem equity ivestment

FHRERARERR
Balance of
frovison for
impaiment - Shareholding  Voting rights Cash
Investment Increase/ A3t Podsonfor attheendof  percentage  perceniage  clvidend for
cost  AtfJanay  Decrease  December  impaiment the year ] ] the year
ke HRE
Ferlk  GERE  Bimk ENRRE 15
Ivestee G REIAZ MR EREE 0AYR REEE EREE o wBlw  Redd
Oost method-suosidares Bk -T2
Beish Andre uce Co, Lt BAEEHRATERAZ 110630180 110830130 - 1083130 - - A% T -
Yenta Longhou Andre Jice FAENZEHEHiER
Co, Ltd. g 80626%  80626% . 7L - - TA% TAIR -
uaou Andre Juie Co, L HREHRRTARAT 6548 5BpA4I8 - 58 - - 5% 5% -
A e Co, Lid REHRTARA 8 B - 8 - - e 100 -
Dalien Andre Juice Co, Lt FEREHZETERAT 5000000 56000000 - 500000 - - 0% T0% -
enta Ancre Juig Co, Lid @éﬂ‘%ﬁxﬂﬁ& 730000000 30,000,000 - 300000 - - 1% 75% -
Yorgi ndre e Co, Lo YEREHERTERAE T4 TrAMeq - T - - T 5% -
Anyue Ande Lemon Industry QEQ%JWE%W
TechnologyCo, LI BRAT 52120000 52,120,000 - BI000 431298 34867415 100% 100% -
Tot & 465,462,159 465,462,169 - UpBdea1e9 431293 3486745 -
The detail of the Company’s subsidiaries is set out NN 7] TE’]*B AEE2R
in note VI(1). Mﬁz/\ o

—Z—-hE&EE£3HK Annual Report 2019 255



Notes to the financial statements

§t 35 ¥ AR B o

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BR1FFIE RSN - 2B E ML B ARKET)

XIV Notes to major items in the parent company’s 10 -BATMERREERBEF

financial statements (cont’d) B\
5 Operating income and operating costs 5 I A ~ EERK
2019 2018
2019% 20184
Income Cost Income Cost
ltem A BA BEF BN AR
Principal businesses 2R 495,367,974 414,319,987 612,300,096 548,566,586
Other businesses Ht %% 9,455,387 7,166,387 9,121,165 7,305,922
Total A&t 504,823,361 421,486,374 621,421,261 555,872,508
Operating income generated from principal businesses TREEI A ZIEARDTH RS
represents primarily the sales of condensed juice and BANLEBEERREEWRA o H
related products. Operating income generated from other MERIWAFTERIEERRYE
businesses represents primarily the sales of packaging MEIEA RS AZE -

materials, rental income and others.
6 Investment income 6 » ®RE WS

2019 2018
ltem 15§ 2019 2018%F

Income from long-term equity investmentsik 2~ A4Z & #) & B iR &

accounted for using cost method W5 147,263,070 —
Investment income from disposal of BREXZtE
financial assets held for trading BERSEH
& e 7,687,080 6,231,384
Investment income from disposal of debt B & E % & S H & Uk
investments o 1,899,684 1,087,260
Total At 156,849,834 7,318,644
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